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Strategic report
At a glance

One of the largest of the 10 regulated water and sewerage companies in England and Wales We
provide high qualty services to more than 4 3 million households and businesses in the Midlands and
mid-Wales

Where we operate

Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from
mid-Wales to the East Midlands
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Who we are
Water 1s essential to Iife and to the commurnities in which we live and work

At Severn Trent Water we are focused on continuing to deliver better value, better services and a
healthier environment today, tomorrow and for the longer term

Our millions of customers rely on us, so our am 1s to do the nght thing, acting with honesty and
integnity and playing an active role in creating a sustainable future for our water and the environment

Our principle, s which govern the way we work are set out in our Code of Conduct Doing the rnight
thing - The Severn Trent way
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Strategic report
Chief Executive’s review

Introduction
I'm delighted to have joined Severn Trent Water, a forward looking and industry leading business

I appreciate all the hard work from Tony Wray and his colleagues over recent years and I'm looking
forward to continuing to deliver for our customers, our regulators and our great people at Severn Trent
Water

Another year of delivery

This was a good year for Severn Trent Water as we delivered on our commitments to our customers,
the environment and employees

Our customers once again benefited from the lowest combined water and waste water charges In
England and Wales The cumulative price increase over the past five years 15 below inflaton We
intend to mamntain below inflation iIncreases, on average, through to 2020

We improved our operational performance despite difficult weather, with a hot summer followed by a
winter of prolonged rain and high winds Although the rain affected the qualty of our raw water, we
continued to deliver high levels of water quality complhance Our overall water quahty continues to be
amongst the best in the UK, however we know we have more to do in delivering the improvements
identified in the Drinking Water Inspectorate {DWI) Chief Inspector's report We remain committed {o
ensurnng our customers continue to receive water of the highest quality

We further reduced the average duration of interruptions to supply We remain on track to bt our
leakage reduction target over the current regulatory cycle and we agam reduced the number of
properttes suffenng internal sewer flooding

While our operating performance 1s good across most parts of our business, as the regulated business
performance review details, scme other performance areas did not meet the required standard Three
of the twenty indicators used to assess the long term health of our assets are not performing within the
required levels This in turn has resulted in three of the four serviceability areas (each with one falling
indicator) bemng assessed as marginal We recognise this performance 1s not what our customers
expect, and we have put actions in place to address this We have included shortfalls in our 2015-
2020 business plan n recognition that we have not delivered the level of performance we had set
ourselves

Also our customer service hasn't always been as good as we would ke We are committed to
delivening the best possible experience for our customers and are focusing on training, better systems
and processes and new ways for customers to interact with us One area where we have targeted
improvements 1s on our New Connections process We recognise the need to provide customers with
a fast and efficient service and are commuitted to doing better to meet developers’ expectations

This year, we've again seen our efforts reflected in our improved Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM)
score, as measured by Ofwat, but there i1s still much more to be done Further details are provided on
pages 16 and 17

Our SIM score really matters to us — it tells us f we are delivering 5 out of 5 performance every time,
every day for our customers We know we have lots stli to do and that we need to deliver
improvement quickly to keep pace with changes in customer behaviours and expectations We've
made good progress in our Quantitative SIM scores with a 14% improvement this year, meaning that
customers are recewving a more responsive service from us QOur Qualtative SIM score, which
captures how our customers feel about their interaction with us, 1s where we need to place more focus
in the year ahead For the year as a whole for this measure, our score 1s 4 48 compared to 4 36 in
2012113 Although this leaves us In seventh place out of the 10 water and waste water companies, we
are improving at a faster than average pace
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Severn Trent Water has one of the lowest levels of bad debt in the sector, at around 2 2% of
revenues This I1s important for our customers because those who pay bear the cost of those who
don't We therefore put considerable effort into ensuring that customers who can pay actually do pay
and we have invested in new technologies that make it easier than ever to do so — see further details
on page 17

However, we recognise that economic condiions remain tough As a responsible business, it's
important that we help people who are genuinely unable to pay, so we have a comprehensive range of
social tarffs Our relationship with the Citizens Advice Bureau also helps customers to address therr
broader financial problems

We continued to look after the environment during the year, with our investment programme producing
further environmental improvements that also benefit our customers We cut the number of sewer
blockages and we reduced the number of senous pollution incidents by over a thrd We're also
improving the quality of our rivers, achieving our best ever waste water treatment works comphance of
99 29% Knowing that we will supply them with water 1s critical for our customers and the security of
supply index measures our ability to supply water in a drought Our score this year was 100 {based on
our Ofwat measures — see page 7), reflecting the work we've done to improve resilience and extract
water sustamnably

Our tax posttion this year reflects an outline agreement we have reached with HMRC on a long
standing discussion regarding overpayments of tax in prior periods and have now factored this into our
bustness plan for 2015 - 2020 to support lower customer prices in the next regulatory pericd (AMP 6 —
see further details on page 9)

This performance and continuous improvement 1s made possible by our committed and experienced
team Good performance is underpinned by doing things the nght way, safer, better and faster Our
teams have sustained last year's industry leading safety performance — for further details see pages
20 and 21

On behalf of all of my executive colleagues, | would like to thank our employees and supply chan
partners for their continued commitment

Looking forward, conclusion and outlook

Severn Trent Water has submitied a balanced p'an for AMP6, which offers better services and
continued better value for customers, along with a healthier environment At the same time, our plan
will deliver investment and growth In our business, to produce farr and sustamnable returns for our
nvestors We continue to work with Ofwat to conclude the price review process We expect a draft
determination from Ofwat on 29 August and a final determination on 12 December 2014

Wales remains an important area of operation for us We welcome the publication of Welsh
Government's Water Strategy and we will be playing our full part o make a success of its
implementation We also welcome the publication of the Silk Commission’s report into further
devolution and look forward to ongoing discussions about ensuring our customers in Wales continue
to recewve excellent value for money

My focus for the next 12 months will be on making sure our customers are rght at the heart of Severn
Trent Water and delivering further operational and process improvements, so that we are ready to
deliver on our plan for the next five years

| look forward to working with everyone in Severn Trent Water, as we build the next phase of our
journey to deliver for our customers, employees and the environment

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive
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Strategic report
Our strategy

Qur aim s to dnve value for our customers with a focus on water and waste water services Qur
strategy delivers better value, better services and a healthier environment

How we are orgamsed to deliver

Severn Trent Water provides water and waste water services to over 4 3 millon homes and
businesses

Our business plan for the next regulatory period (AMP6 see page 9) 1s dnven by — and for — our
customers Qur aim s to provide what our customers want and what the environment needs, whilst still

keeping our charges as low as possible

See our business model on pages 12 and 13

What we stand for

Value

We aim to deliver
value for our
customers Our
customers get good
value for money —
qualty products, the
lowest possible
charges and a good
overall service Our
stakeholders benefit
from long term
sustainable growth

Responsible leadership
We have long advocated
a more socially,
environmentally and
financially sustainable
future for our industry
through our ‘Changing
Course’ series of
publications We aim to
have an open and honest
conversation with our
customers, our
colleagues and our
regulators about the
changes we can all make
towards a more
sustainable future.

Page 4 of 126

Sustainability

At Severn Trent
Water we balance
the interests of all
our stakeholders
and the
environment We
believe in doing the
right thing for the
longer term and in
operating our
business in a
sustainable way.




Strategic report
Our strategy

Our strategy delivers

Better value

and better services

for customers

We already have the
lowest combined water
and waste water bills in
England and Wales
Through a focus on
continuous improvement
and efficiency, we aim to
deliver the service
improvements our
customers want and which
the environment needs,
whilst keeping prices as
low as possible

A healthier
environment

Our aim 1s to protect and
enhance the environment
improving the quality of our
rivers and safeguarding the
infrastructure that our
customers and the
environment depend upon
We strive to operate our
business In a sustainable
way, reducing the amount of
water we take out of the
environment, reducing our
carbon emissions and
generating our own
renewable energy
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Our objectives
Our objectives
moge Quulity water 1 We will provide you with water that is good to drink
rermnoved
Service you 2 We will ensure water is there when you need it
Image
removed can rely on
3 We will safely take your waste water away
4 We will provide you with excellent customer service
Affordable bills 5 We will have the lowest possible charges
Image
removed
6 We will help you If you struggle
Responsible 7 We will protect our local environment
Image o
removed service
8 We will protect the wider environment
9 We will make a positive difference in the community
Sustainable 10 We will finance our business sustainably
1
removed finance

Image
removed

To achieve our objectives we need to support our great people
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Strategic report
Market and industry overview

The water and sewerage industry \n England and Wales has more than 50 millon household and non-
household customers More than 30 privately-owned companies serve these customers, of which 10 —
ncluding Severn Trent Water — provide both water and sewerage services The industry invests
around £5 billion each year and employs over 35,000 people

The water industry has achieved much n the 25 years since it was privatised It has attracted over
£100 bilhon of private investment to fund improvements i, among other things, customer service,
drinking water and environmental standards

However, our sector shll faces significant short and long term challenges

» customers’ Incomes have been squeezed, Iimting their ability to pay for service improvements We
need to ensure that our services are affordable,

» the UK’s population 1s growing, placing more pressure on our water resources and on our networks
We need to ensure we have sufficient capacity,

» we're experiencing more flooding and droughts We need to ensure that we have resilient services
able to cope with this increased volatility,

- financtal markets have changed significantly since the 2008 financial crists, raising questions about
how the industry can best finance its long term investment We need to ensure that the industry 1s
financed sustainably,

- we still face considerable challenges to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive and
other environmental imperatives We need to play our part in improving the environment, at a price
that 1s affordable to our customers, and
» some of our infrastructure 1s old Whilst it has served us well it 1s no longer able to deliver the quality
standards and reliability customers want We need to ensure that our investments are timely, provide
good value for money and will deliver many years of future service

We have actively sought to be at the forefront of the debate about our industry’s future and how we
tackle these challenges, through our senes of ‘Changing Course’ publications We have championed a
mare socially, environmentally and financially sustainable water industry

We've been pleased that many of the iIdeas we have championed have been reflected in the emerging
UK policy and regulatory framework that 1s being put in place Challenges remain, but we are
encouraged by the direction of reform We look forward to helping to make it a success

How the industry Is regulated

Severn Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work within five year regulatory planning cycles, with
the prices we charge our customers set at the beginning of each cycle by our economic regulator
Ofwat These five year cycles are known as Asset Management Plan (AMP) periods We have just
reached the end of the fourth year of AMPS However, we don't just think in the short term Having a
sustainable business requires us to also balance longer term requirements that stretch beyond our five
year plans For example, our water resource plans look 25 years into the future and we study the need
for investment iIn some of our assets over a 40 year penod We use this information to adjust our
investment plans for the next AMP cycle to ensure we do the nght thing for the long term whilst
helping to keep customers’ bills affordable

As well as being regulated by Ofwat, our performance 1s monitored by -

* the Dnnking Water Inspectorate, which makes sure we comply with drinking water quality
regulations,

- the Environment Agency (‘EA’), which controls water abstraction, nver pollution and flooding, and
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- Natural Resources Wales, which brings together the work of the Countryside Council for Wales, the
Environment Agency Wales and the Forestry Commission Wales to manage the natural resources of
Wales, and

-Natural England who protect and improve England’s natural environment
We also work with other agencies including

«the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs which sets the policy context for the water
industry in England,

-the Welsh Government which sets the policy context for the water industry in Wales, and
« the Consumer Council for Water which represents customers in the industry

Our business plan for AMP6

Ofwat requires us to produce business plans for each five year regulatory period In December 2013,
we submitted our business plan for the next regulatory period (AMP8), which runs from April 2015 to
March 2020 This plan 1s currently being reviewed by Ofwat who will give us its final deterrmnation in
December 2014

Our plan i1s dnven by — and for — our customers The ‘golden thread' running through our plan
compnses four essential elements

1 Our plan delivers better value for money

We're proud to have the lowest average combined bills in England and Wales Qur AMPGE plan
delivers even better value, by imiting price nses to below the rate of inflation This means our average
price rises from 2010-20 will have been below the rate of inflation over that 10 year period

At the same time, we'll increase overall capital investment to around £3 billion We'll priontise
improvements in those areas most important to our customers, including better services and healthier
nvers In particular, our plan proposes to reduce

+ leakage by a further 6%,

- the length of time our customers’ water supply 1s interrupted by 47%,

» the number of homes affected by sewer flooding by 14%, and

+ our carbon footprint by 3%

We've also set challenging efficiency targets, reducing total costs in AMP& by over £370 milhon,
helping to keep average bills lower in 2020 than they otherwise would have been

2 Qur plan s farr and balanced

We've taken into account the interests of all our stakeholders We're shanng the benefits of
outperformance with our customers by Investing an extra £150 million, to improve the service our
customers receive — see further details about how we have spent this extra investment so far on page
17 We'll continue this approach In the next regulatory penod, to ensure customers share in the
rewards of our success and also ensure that there 1s no need for regulatory intervention in AMP6
We'll have the opportunity to earn more, through incentives that encourage us to deliver even better
services |f we don't deliver on our commitments, penatties will result in lower prices to customers
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3 Qur plan 1s robust and rehable

Our approach buillds on our track record of producing robust business plans and 1s based on the
largest customer research and engagement exercise we've ever undertaken through our Let's Talk
Water consultation We also put In place a ngorous assurance process, to test the plan's robustness

In total, we talked to more than 16,000 customers and other stakeholders We gave customers real
choices about where their money should be spent and we were challenged hard by the Water Forum,
our customer challenge group, and changed our plan as a result The Water Forum includes
representatives from customers, our environmental regulators and local authonties, and has an
independent Chair, Dame Yve Buckland, who is also the Chair of the Consumer Council for Water

4 QOur plan does the nght thing for the long term

We've long advocated a more socially, environmentally and financially sustainable water industry and
published our first ‘Changing Course’ report 1n Apnl 2010 Qur plan 1s shaped by the philosophy that
underpins 'Changing Course’ and provides a solid foundation for the long term

Qur future plans include major investments over the next two AMP periods to increase the resilience
of Brmingham's water supply

We're alsc planning to make significant investment in 20152020 to improve the quality of rivers and
on strategic resilience, which we're phasing over 10 years {0 ensure the right balance for customers’
bills iIn AMP6 We plan to double our programme of sustainable urban drainage systems, to help
prevent sewer flooding We also plan to reduce the amount of water we take out of the environment
per customer by 6%, further strengthening our leading position in this area

A changing regulatory environment
The water industry continues to be affected by a number of changes to legislabon and regulations

New legislation intreduced this year through the Water Act 2014 bnings a number of significant
changes to the way the industry operates In particular, it will allow more competition for non-
household customers and greater ‘'upstream’ competition which should eventually lead tc a more
efficient iIndustry

The European Water Framework Directive (WFD) will be a significant dnver of our future capital
expenditure It will help to protect and enhance our rivers, lakes, streams and groundwater Dunng
2013/14, we published a Changing Course report on implementing the WFD and shared it with the EA
Thus 1s our contrtbution to the debate about achieving environmental improvements at an affordable
cost to customers We've also begun to look at which technologies offer the best solution to
tmplementing the WFD, in preparation for AMP&
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Case study:
Better for Jessica

We made sure that we listened to our customers’ problems, like Jessica's, in our AMP6
business plans

Listening to customers in shaping our plans
Tackling the nasty problem of sewer floading for customers like Jessica Hinnett from Alfreton

tn Derbyshire 1s a top priority for our customers which came out of our Let's Talk Water
consultation - ]

. Over 16,000 customers ghave us thetr views In our biggest ever customer consultation We

made sure ther voices were heard loud and clear when we submitted our AMP6 business

plan to Ofwat

Thankfully for Jessica, her problem was sorted out quickly “I can’t speak highly enough of

_everyone at Severn Trent who helped me at a time when | was very emotional ”
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Business model

Water 1s essenhat to ife and to the communities
inwhich we live and work. Severn Trent Water

15 intnnsically inked to the life cycle of water

The customer is at the heart of cur continuous
drive to improve our operations and services across
collection, delivery and cleaning of water

Severn Trent Water i1s a regulated business We work
within five year planning cycles, with custorner prices
set by our economic regulator, Ofwat, to allow us

to fund our investrment programme and cover an
efficent level of operating costs We are also subject
to regulation by two quality regulators - the Drinking
Water [nspectorate and the Ervironment Agency
{details of these regulators are provided below)

Cur prices and asset base are adjusted by RPLinflation
each year In certain arcumstances we can ask for
prices to be reviewed within the five year penod due
to costs associated with ‘notified itemns’ or ‘relevant
changes of crcumstance’ Customer bad debt and
the adoption of pnvate drans and sewers are included
in these categones for the current five year perod
Severn Trent has not sought to review pnces for either
of these reasons during 2010-15

The company eamns a return on its asset base We can
generate additional returns if we outperform Ofwat's
assurmptions by becorming more efficient in the
delivery of our capital programme, managing our
operationat costs more effectively, and by finanang
our business at a lower cost

Our operating perforrance 1s assessed and
benchrmarked against the sector by Ofwat Within the
current pnce review there 15 scope to eam additional
Income, or incur penalties, based on our performance

Regulatory framework

Consumer Council for Water
Consumer Councl for Water 1s an independent body designed to
protect the nghts of consumers www cowater org uk

Dnnking Water Inspectorate (DWI1)

The Drinking Water [nspectorate makes sure comparies supply
woter that 1s safe to dnnk and complies with all netional and
European standards www dwi defra govuk

Environment Agency (EA)
The Eraronment Agency s a public body set up to protect and
Improve the environment. www environment-agency gov uk

Health and Safety Executive
The Hedlth ond Safety Executive s the enforang authonty on
health and safety law www hse gov uk

Natural England
Natural England protects and improves England’s
natural emaronment. www naturalenglond org uk

Natural Resources Wales

Naturat Resources Wates bnngs together the work of the
Ermronment Agency Wales, The Forestry Comnnuission Wales
and the Countryside Council for Wales

www naturalresourceswales gov uk

Ofwat

The economic regulator for the woter and sewerage industry
It makes sure that water companies use customers’ money
efficiently and effectively ond sets our price birmuts

www ofwat govuk

Graphic
removed

The role of Severn Trent Water
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Water is collected
(abstraction)

We pay the Environment
Agency for the water we
collect from reservoirs, rivers
ond underground aquifers
across our region

Regulatory framework

+ Ofwat

+ Natural England

» Natural Resources Wales
+ Environment Agency

Risks

- Failure of key assets may
result in domage to property,
Imury to people andfor
disruption to our ability
to supply our customers
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 6 and 8)

(Where nisks are currently
considered Principal Risks,
further details are provided
on pages 31 - 35)

Image
removed

+ Health and Safety Executive
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Water

is cleaned

Our 156 water treatment
works clean raw water
to the hughest standards
making it safe to drink

+ Ofwat

+ Drinking Water
Inspectorate

* Health and Safety
Executive

+ Fallure of key assets or
processes moy result in
a decline in water quality,
disruption 11 our supply
to customers or falure 10
meet requlatory targets
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 7 and 8)
Hazardous processes
or chernicals may result
in people being injured
(Prnoipal Risk Ref 6)

Irnage
removed

Networks invested
and maintained
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Clean water

is distributed

A 47,000 km network
of pipes and enclosed
storage reservoirs bring
a continuous supply of
clean water nght to our
customers’ taps

 Ofwat

+ Dnnking Water
Inspectorate

+ Health and Safety
Executive

+ The perforrmance of our
distribution network may falt
below the standards expected
by DWI or Ofwat, resutting in
poor senvice to our customers
and increased leakage from
our network (Principol Risk
Ref 7)

» Failure of one of cur key
assets could resultin
disruption to supply to
custormers
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 8}

Y

Image
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Customers

enjoy our services

We bill 4 3 mithon
businesses and households
ayear In return, we provide
a safe, reliable supply of
water and the collection of
waste water 24 hours a day,
365 days a year

+ Ofwat
= Consumer Council for
Water

+« Drinking Water
Inspectorate

- We may be unable to
sufficiently improve our
performance in relation to
customer service in order to
delver what our customers
tell us they want,

{Principal Risk Ref 1)

+ We may be unable to respond

effectively to the opening up
of the business retall market

to competition (Principal Risk
Ref 2)

Y

Image
removed

Waste water

is collected

Our ¢ 92,000 kmm of sewers
and pumping stations
collect waste water from
homes and businesses, and
surface water from outside
properties and drains

* Ofwaot

+ Environment Agency

+ Health ond Sofety
Executive

- Fallure to dec! wath customer
waste effectively may lead
to sewer flooding
{Pnncipol Risk Ref 7)

Image
removed

Waste water
is treated and
returned to the

environment

Waste water 1s carefully
screened, filtered ond
treated in our 1,019 sewage
treatment works to meet
stringent environmental
standards We pay the
Environment Agency an
annual consent fee to
return the now treated
water to the water systern

- Ofwat

« Natural England

- Natural Resources Wales
* Environment Agency

+ Health and Safety
Executive

+ We may suffer operational
faure in our waste water
operations which results
in damoge to the tocal
environment (Principal Risk
Ref7)

We are an investrment led industry, and our capital programme this
year was £602 rmullion, or around £140 per connected property,
reflecting Increased imvestrment year on year {2012/13 £555 mitlion)

In our water and seweroge networks, including finding and fixing more

leaks and reducing the number of supply mterruptions, improverments
1o our woter and sewage tregtment plants and upgrades to our
sewer network to reduce naidents of sewer flooding We fund this
investrnent programime from the profits we generate, but also by
borrowing money from the capital markets Capital nvestment 1s
added on to our asset base, called the RCY Our asset base also nses
in Line with nflation each year The returns that we generote for
shareholders on thot asset bose are set by our economic regulotor,
Ofwat, aver five year planning cycles We conincrease these returns
by outperformance

Risks

We operate within a complex legal and regulatory emaronment as a water
and sewerage service provider In England and Watles. As a result we face o
number of nsks Including these assoaated with pessible non-compliarce
with our legal and regulatory framework, fallure 1o obtan support

frorn Ofwat for our business plan for 2015-2020 and falure to meet

the terms of our regutatory controct as set out in our ogreed business
plan for 2010-2015 We also face nsks assoaated with possible future
changes In legislation which may result in our business plans becorning
unsustainable (Pnncpol Risk Ref 3, 4 ond 5 on pages 31 and 32)

Regulatory Framework

« Ofwat

+ Health and Safety Executive
+ Environment Agency

+ Dnnking Woter Inspectorate
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Delivering better value, better services and a healthier environment
Our goal 1s to be the UK's best water and waste water company This means we must deliver better value and
better services to customers and investors, while protecting the environment on which we depend

To reach our goal and meet our customers’ needs, we set 10 long term objectives in 2013 Each year, we report
against our objectives and explain how we've improved our performance

Quality water
Objective 1 We’ll provide you with water that 1s good to drink

Our drninking water 1s amongst the best 1 the UK and we achieved 99 96% overall comphiance with the Drinking
Water Inspectorate’s (DWI) quality standards (2012/13 99 98%)

However, some aspects of our performance have fallen below the standard we and our customers expect We
reported one more significant event to the DWI this year than last The two most recent DWI Chief Inspectors'
reports have highlighted a number of improvement areas, and there has been one prosecution during the last
year In relation to water quality Specifically, our performance n relation to the number of outbreaks of detected
coliforms (non-harmful bacteria) has exceeded the maximum level expected by Ofwat twice in three years
{including 2013/14) As a result our serviceability on above ground assets 1s rated as marginal

We are taking these failures extremely senously and accept that we have more to do in order to address the
issues and nisks we face We have identified several areas where improvements to our assets are required and
investment programmes are already in progress We have a programme of work dedicated to 1dentifying and
delivering improvements We have stepped up our operational monitoring and remain committed to doing what is
needed to address 1ssues In this area at pace We remain committed to ensuring that our customers receive
water of the highest quality

We continue to invest in our people and in our treatment works to enable us to improve our performance For
example, this year we have run a programme to improve knowledge and awareness of water quality for our
network operators and operational call-centre colleagues We are in the process of investing to renew assets
and improve processes at our largest works at Frankley At Bamford, Derbyshire, we've improved our processes
to increase therr resilience and ability to treat water from the local peat moors

We continue to look to the future with our water quality strategy and our AMP6 plan will also look to addressing
deteriorating raw water quality in more innovative and sustainable ways, for example, extending our catchment
approach It involves working in partnership with landowners and users to minimise the risk of pollution entering
the raw water system, so we can avord additional investment in our treatment works

Services you can rely on
Objective 2. We will ensure water 1s there when you need it

Qur customers expect water to be there when they turn on the tap and for leakage to be lower

As part of our commitment to improvement we have reviewed the basis on which we calculate our leakage
figure The net impact of the improvements i1s neutral with respect to actual and target performance

We maintained leakage at 441Ml/d beating our Ofwat leakage target of 456Ml/d Severn Trent Water 1s one of

the few companies to target lower leakage during AMP5 and we're on track to deliver an 11% leakage reduction
over AMP5

Page 14 of 126




Strategic report
Performance review

We've further reduced the average number of minutes that customers are without supply from 29
minutes per property to 16 minutes We're investing in new pipes, valves and other assets, and
improving our ability to restore customers' supplies quickly For example, new technology allows us to
keep water flowing while we repair a ptpe We were pleased to win an award for innovation of the year
at the Water Industry Achievement Awards 2014 for new equipment we have developed that mproves
leak detection efficiency and 1s particularly effective with plastic pipes which 1s a problem throughout
the industry This equipment has been developed by us working in partnership with Loughborough
University from a research and development project through to commercial launch with Echologics

The number of properties that experienced a supply interruption longer than 12 hours was 2,699, an
increase of 142 on last year Over 900 of these interruptions occurred following the extreme storms of
February when power supplies were interrupted for extended periods This s a key input measure to
serviceability assessment Despite an underlying improvement on this measure, and the fact that other
indicators performing within or ahead of the cperating ranges agreed with Ofwat, the apphcation of the
serviceability framework means our serviceability is rated as marginal

We are committed to reducing the number of interruptions longer than 12 hours In order to achieve
this we have increased our focus on improving our fisk and contingency planning and emergency
response

Towards the end of the year, we consulted on our water resources management plan This explains
how we'll provide sustainable and affordable water to our customers, over the next 25 years and
beyond We also i1ssued our drought plan, which sets out how we’ll mantain supplies during
shortages

Our future plans include major INvestments over the next two AMP penods to increase the resilience
of Birmingham's water supply This will extend the life of the Elan Valley Aqueduct, saving customers
hundreds of millions of pounds over the coming decades and reducing nsk to the UK’s second largest
city We'll also continue to improve our trunk main network and strategic grd of pipes to provide
customers with increased resilience

Objective 3 We will safely take your waste water away

We continue to invest to reduce the nsk of internal sewer flooding and have protected a further 121
properties this year, putting us on track for 741 properties over AMP5 Our efforts have reduced the
number of customers who suffered repeated internal sewer flooding, from 255 in 2012/13 to 204 this
year We also mitigated the nisk of flooding for around 160 properties this year We're increasingly
using sustainable drainage systems to reduce flooding, as well as increasing our partnership working
with local authonities, the Environment Agency, local drainage boards and highways authorties

This year, we completed our flood protection scheme in Gloucester It has kept the town free from
flooding, despite extreme weather over the last two winters QOur Royal Leamington Spa sewer
improvement project, which will protect 103 properties from flooding, 1s going to plan and will complete
n 2014 This project won a national Green Appie award for recycling excavated material and we're
explonng how to extend this to other schemes

Our overall serviceability remains marginal We have continued to deliver good performance on five of
the six Indicators included in the serviceabilty assessment On the sixth indicator, sewer blockages,
our performance has shown an improving trend over 18 months (faling 13% last year) but remains
above the target agreed with Ofwat The improvement 1s reflective of the action we have taken
throughout the AMP5 period Although our overall environmental performance remains positive, and
the other customer and environmental indicators within this area are performing within or ahead of the
operating ranges agreed with Ofwat, the application of the serviceability framework results in a
continuing ‘margnal’ assessment This 1s consistent with the assessment included in our PR14 Plan
Our pollutions performance 1s included within Objective 7 — We will protect our local environment — set
out below
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We've made a good start to adopting and upgrading private pumping stations, ahead of their transfer
on 1 October 2016 We've already adopted and upgraded 24 stations and will adopt another 150 in
the next year

We will continue to improve our blockage and pollution performance by increasing our focus on
customer education 75% of blockages are due to unwanted items that customers put down the toilet
so we are speaking to customers following any local incident and developing a broader campaign to
provide more focus in this area
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Objective 4 We will provide you with excellent customer service

We want to make it easy to be a Severn Trent Water customer In recent years we've worked hard to
offer our customers a broader choice of contact channels, and to deliver an improved expenence from
each of those channels For example, today we answer more than 80% of calls within 20 seconds,
and very soon we will be answenng customer emails within 4 hours We're also working hard to
simplfy our processes and provide our customers with more straightforward journeys through the
varous touchpoints of our organisation Our company-wide Customer Expenence Programme will
continue to focus on practical, measurable improvements te what really matters to our customers so
that we can consistently deliver to them a 5 out of 5 expernence, every ime, every day

There are a number of cther ways that we capture and try to measure customer satisfaction Qfwat
measures our customer service using its Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM), which has qualitative
and quantiative elements The qualtative element reflects our customers’ views of our service This
year, our gualitative score rose to 4 48 from 4 36, narrowing the gap between us and our peer group
Despite our efforts we are still in seventh place for the year for this measure and we recognise that our
pace of change needs to improve

The quantitative metnc reflects the number of customers who have to contact us QOur performance
tmproved by 14% Overall, our SIM score was 81 55, up from 78 11 last year
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We also capture data through our ‘Voice of the customer’ surveys, which gives us feedback from
around 10,000 customers each month This shows that we're now resolving 84% of customer issues
first time, while 93% are satisfied with the way our advisors helped them

Customers want o interact with us in ways that are convenient to them, so we've strengthened our
web self-service offering, giving customers full access on a smartphone or tablet We're also the UK's
first utiity to launch Pingt, Barclays' mobile payment app We're already explonng the next
innovations that will make it easier to pay

This year, we worked hard to understand how we could more accurately predict customer demand
This helps to ensure that we have the night resource at the night time, so we can respond faster to our
customers’ needs

During the year, we continued to roll out our Great People programme This gives our frontline
advisors better customer interaction skills and helps our managers to run more customer focused
operations

Affordable bills

Objective 5. We will have the lowest possible charges for our customers

With household budgets under pressure, we are pleased that our customers benefit from the lowest
combined water and sewerage bills in England and Wales, at £335 in 2013/14 Cumulatively, our
prices over the last five years have nisen by less than inflation, a record we intend to mamtain unti
2020

This year, we have absorbed the additional operating costs of the private drains and sewers we
adopted in October 2011 rather than seeking to pass these on to customers We estimate that we'll
absorb additional operating costs of up to £38 milion In AMPS5, with around £42 million more capital
investment

We continue to share efficiency benefits with our customers The additional £150 million of investment
we announced in May 2012 1s helping to deliver our services, including cleaning our sewers, iImproving
our sewage treatment works and reducing leakage To date, we've invested £120 milion, with the
remainder to follow in 2014/15

Customers who don't pay increase costs for those who do, so we take a ngorous approach to
ensuring that everyone who can pay actually does We have one of the industry’s lowest levels of bad
debt, at 2 2% of turnover

We continually improve the way we work, so we can keep our customers' bills down and enhance our
service We have introduced common systems and processes which exploit our investment in our SAP
enterpnse software solution, which underp.iis and connects our business operations For example, we
are simplifying our ‘Plan to Adopt' process (the way we build new assets) helping us to deliver greater
efficiency in our capital programme

Durning the year, we invested in our Customer Operations Service Centre to mprove efficiency and
save money When a customer reports a problem, our agents have better informatian on the affected
asset, work crew avallability and other key factors, so we can fix problems faster and give our
customers a better service We've also invested in Netbase, a system that analyses our
infrastructure’s performance so we can identify where we need to focus the efforts of our work crews
to rapidly stop leaks

Collaborative working with our supply chain partners also delivers efficiencies and business
improvements In 2013/14, we renewed our ‘One Supply Chain’ approach for a further five years
Extending these relationships has enabled us to put together a robust capital programme for AMP6
More generally, our Procurement team has continued to help us cut the cost of the goods and services
that we buy with a total of £58 million saved this year
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Objective 6. We will help you if you struggle

Poverty rates In our region are significantly higher than the national average and we recognise that
some customers genuinely struggle to pay therr bills We offer a wide range of social tanffs and
schemes to help, benefiting a total of over 20,000 customers in 2013/14

This support iIncludes the WaterSure tanff, which caps bills for customers who have particular difficulty
in paying, and Water Direct, which allows custemers to arrange small deductions from benefits, to go
towards their bill arrears

The Severn Trent Trust Fund 1s a registered chanty, which has helped many customers to meet therr
water bills

The Big Difference Fund is our partnership with the Cihzens Advice Bureau (CAB) The CAB helps our
customers to address their broader financial 1ssues, so they can minimise or avoid household debts
more effectively in the future Dunng 2013/14, we donated a further £3 5 million to these funds

Responsible business
Objective 7 We will protect our local environment

Pollution incidents are caused by unplanned discharges of water or sewage Into the environment
We've further reduced the number of pollution incidents, with serious pollution incidents down by over
a third We understand that we are one of only two companies to deliver a year on year reduction in
serous pollutions, as recognised by the Enwironment Agency (EA} Qur overall environmental
performance, assessed in 2012/13 by the EA as 3* (out of a possible score of 4*), has significantly
improved in 2013/14 We await the EA’s final assessment on performance, due to be published in
summer 2014 However, there were two prosecution actions taken by the EA during the year, this
highlights the need for continued improvement in cur operational performance We've Increased our
visibility of our final effluent qualty by nstalling monitors at 350 sites, with 209 of these sites being
commissioned and in service (compared to only 50 the previous year) We aim to have monitors at
520 sites by the end of AMP5

We've continued to invest in our sewage treatment works and we're on track to complete our
investment programme for AMPS Our non-infrastructure improvement group has aiso analysed and
systematically eliminated problems As a result, only five of our 704 consented sites falled to reach
their compliance limits, giving us our best ever performance of 99 29%, which has contributed to the
serviceability of our above ground assets remaining stable

We also continue to innovate, testng the Lonira Blade compressor at our Worcester sewage
treatment works The compressor 1s optimised for aerating wasts water, to reduce the electncity we
use for this process by 20% The tnal demonstrated the unit's efficiency and rehability We've also
begun work on the UK'’s first vertical flow reed bed This technology offers the lowest mamtenance and
most environmentally friendly solutien for sewage works n rural areas

In line with the EA’s Natioral Environment Programme, we invested a further £48 million to enhance
rver qualty, bringing our AMP5 investment to more than £150 milion This included mproving
processes at 15 sewage works and enabling public sewerage networks for four communities to
remove polluting private discharges

We have an important role in protecting biodiversity, mcluding at the 38 sites of special scientfic
interest (SS5Is) we own or partly manage We're working with partners such as Natural England,
Natural Resources Wales, the EA, wildhfe trusts and the RSPB, to bring all of our SSSIs into
favourable condiion by 2020 Our key visitor sites with 8881 status have been entered into Natural
England’'s Higher Level Stewardship schemes, which aim to deliver significant environmental benefits
in prionty areas In particular, we're looking to increase brodiversity and offer sustainable catchment
management on our land
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However, there are water quality 1ssues at the SSSI at the Charnwood Reservorrs, Leicestershire To
address these we're close to finalising a 10 year agreement and lease with Leicester & Rutland
wildife Trust (L&RWT), which will enable L&RWT to manage the woodland and reservair margin, in
Ine with Natural England’s SSSI conservation objectives

We continue to have our woodlands certified by the Forest Stewardship Council and enter them in the
Forestry Commussion's woodland grant schemes For example, a scheme at Carsington Water
manages the landholding to benefit woodland birds while also holding water, so it's slowly released
into catchments We atso liaise with community groups such as bird clubs, to monitor the numbers and
species of birds on and around our reservorrs Volunteer groups have helped create biodiversity
habitats such as new ponds, manage reed beds and restore wildflower grasslands

Objective 8. We will protect the wider environment
Water and sewage treatment I1s energy intensive We've been reporting our carbon emissions

performance for more than a decade and have consistently reduced our emisstons and costs, through
energy efficiency, renewable energy production, improved metering and more effective use of
transport In 2013/14, our emissions totalled 511 kilo tonnes of CO.e, a reduction of 9% Our plan Is to
reduce our carbon emissions by 3% in AMP8

We've had Carbon Trust Standard accreditation since 2009 and contribute to the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP) We've seen a year on year improvement in our CDP score, which 1s above the FTSE
100 average

This year, we achieved 100% compliance on satisfactory sludge disposal and implemented a new 1T
system to modernise our comphance monitonng and control We also invested in biosolids storage, to
mitgate the effects of severe weather, and tnalled innovative solutions to ensure we can recycle
biosolds during challenging weather

We've bullt a sector leading position in renewable energy, which now provides 23% of our energy
requirements A number of these processes use by-products or essential features of our water or
sewage treatment, and are classed as part of our regulated business During the year, we installed
more efficient combined heat and power units at our largest sewage treatment works, to increase
output by 10% We're also buiding our first, and the UK's largest, bio-methane injection plant at
Minworth, Birmingham

Objective 9 We will make a positive difference in the community

Our activities bring broad economic and social benefits to our region According to research we
commussioned from Coventry University, for every £1 we invest £1 66 1s generated and retained in the
regional economy (figures from ‘Making a Difference’, a Severn Trent Water report} With an
investment programme of around £600 million in 2013/14, our contribution I1s considerable

We're also a major employer, of more than 5,900 people We help young people into work through our
apprenticeships and currently have more than 80 apprentices in cur operations and customer
services As well as benefiting the young people involved, this helps secure the skills we'll need in the
coming years

Educating our current and future customers 1s also key to helping people understand how to use water
efficiently and what can be safely disposed of n our sewers Qur schools education programme
reaches more than 45,000 children each year, so they understand the value of water We've extended
this with our company-wide Water Champions volunteering programme This allows our people to
create fun and educational water efficient gardens in local pnmary schools, which they can incorporate
into everyday learning This engages our local communities, while improving our people’s skills and
bullding working relationships Also, in 2013 we were a sponsor of the Big Bang event in our region
The national Big Bang programme s the largest promotional event for science, technology,
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angineenng and maths for young people in the UK and the regional event at the Ricoh Arena in
Coventry, UK, involved nearly 4,000 schoolchildren

Our local communities are actively involved in helping the running of our visitor sites, volunteering
nearly 20,000 hours each year on conservation, maintenance actwity and prowiding excellent
customer service Last year we invested over £1 1 million 1n our visitor sites and over three million
customers visited our sites during 2013, highlighting our continued commitment te offer high levels of
conservation, access and recreation across our region At Draycote Water, our reservorr site near
Rugby, we have spent £330,000 over two years remodelling and refurbishing the wisiter centre,
bullding a children’s play area and increasing parking faciliies Since its re-opening In Apnl 2013 we
have seen an increase in visitor numbers of aimost 56%

Sustainable finance

Objective 10 _We will finance our business sustainably

We aim to finance our business sustainably, so we can invest now to protect our future services We
avold excessive debt, which would transfer nisk to our customers, and look for a sustainable mix of
debt finance at the nght cost, reflecting the long term nature of our investment

Our financing needs are and will remain substantial In AMPS our plan suggests we will need to raise
arcund £2 6 biflon n new and refinanced debt which means it will be necessary to maintain an
invesitment grade credit rating Our long term credit ratings are BBB+ (Standard and Poor’s) and A3
(Moody's) These are in hne with regulatory assumptions and were unchanged during the year Our
gearng and interest cover remain prudent — further details can be found in the Financial review on
pages 23 to 29

Great people
To achieve our objectives, we have a flexible workforce, with people whe are willing to work in new
ways, embrace new skills and focus on our customers’ needs

Our employee survey showed our highest level of engagement in eight years, our engagement index
reaching 81% This compares with 79% last year and 75% for other benchmarked companies

Particular strengths included health and safety, where our people understand our commitment and
their own responsibility for working safely Our Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the nght thing - the Severn
Trent way', explains our approach to 1ssues ranging from bribery and corruption to excellent customer
service Our people recognise ther responsibility for complying with the Code of Conduct and our
focus on doing the nght thing, reflecting our continued training and engagement in this area They also
understand how the company's goals and their role contributes to the customer experience and are
happy to go the extra mile when required

As always, there are areas where we can improve In common with many organisations, our people
think we could be better at handling and communicating change They also want us to simphfy our
processes, reflecting the number of new systems and processes we've introduced In recent years In
response to feedback from last year's survey, members of the Executive Committee have held events
around the business meeting teams and sharnng our future plans We continue to hold events around
the business, allowing employees to ask about our business and contribute their ideas

Excellent health and safety

No one should get hurt or made unwell by what we do We've sustained our lost tme incident {LTI)
rate at 021 per 100,000 hours worked (2012/13 0 21), making us the leaders in our industry
Particular achievements included our Water Production team working for an entire year without an LTI

We've done this through further investment and traming Our ongoing MindSafety® traming
programime helps our people to understand how they should work and take responstbility for their own
safety
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We've also implemented site based safety improvement teams This gives our people ownership of
the 1ssues and allows them to fix the day-to-day problems that can affect ther health, safety and
wellbeing Qur proactive approach to health, safety and wellbeing continues to improve, with around
15,000 hazards identified and resolved per month

Occupational health has been a focus for us this year We've introduced a physiotherapy and
rehabilitation service for those suffenng with musculoskeletal problems, which has reduced employee
absence by more than 1,000 days

We've also developed ‘Fit for the Future', which 1s part of our bespoke injury prevention programme
This programme not only trains people in safe and efficient manual handling but provides health and
nutrtion advice to support our employees 1n maintaining a healthy and productive career The
programme won Rehabilitation Inihiative of the Year at the Rehabilitation First awards

Our next area of focus will be mental health We've taken part iIn Time to Change, England's biggest
programme to end stigma and discrimination for people with mental health problems We want to
wentfy the gaps between supporting people with mental health 1ssues and taking practical action
We've surveyed our people and are educating managers and employees about bullding personal
resihence to better manage challenges at home and in work

Developing our people
We've continued to roll out our Leading for Performance programme This develops leaders who can

coach their teams and inspire greater levels of performance We've also run development centres for
80 managers, benchmarking them externally and internally, and helping them to create high quality
personal development plans

We continue to develop our line managers through our Line Manager Journey So far, we've trained
nearly 700 people In a range of core management skills We've invested in IT and business skills, as
well as project and programme management, with 850 training days this year in those areas

Our Future Skills strategy encompasses our apprentice and graduate programmes We've taken on
more graduates this year, employing 20 for general leadership training and we have introduced a
techrical engineening programme for graduates

A diverse workforce

A diverse and inclusive culture 15 important for business success Qur approach i1s based on doing the
nght thing and we're working to ensure our policies, processes and practices are open, far and
transparent

We monitor our performance against a range of diversity measures and benchmarks, so we can use
the data to inform our actions Qur workforce I1s slightly more diverse than the sector average 31% of
our employees are women compared to the industry average of 28 9% 7 5% of our employees are
Black, Asian & Minonty Ethruc (BAME) compared to the industry average of 2% We're building a
diversity and inclusion plan to address particular areas of improvement Our current focus 1s on
attracting more women nto operational leadership roles and ensuring that our fronthine operational
roles are attractive to BAME candidates To suppoert our goals we have carried out a complete review
of our job descriptions and advertising strategy and trained over 320 managers In effective interview
techniques

Rewarding our pecple
We look to offer innovative rewards for our people, with a strong link to improving business

perfformance Through our flexible benefits scheme (‘Lifestyle’) employees can choose certan
benefits, such as buying or seling annual leave days We also offer a range of products, where we
can use our buying power to offer employees discounts Lifestyle won the Best Flexible Benefits
Scheme at the Employee Benefits Awards in June 2013
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Qutlook
The next 12 months will see us complete the delivery of our AMP5 plan

In the coming months we will also finahise our plan for AMP6, so we can continue to deliver for our
customers, employees and the environment We’'ll ensure we're in a position to start delivenng it from
day one of AMPG&

Ofwat has committed to publshing its final determination of all companies’ plans by 12 December
2014
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Financial performance

The company has delivered a good financial performance overall with year on year improvements in
turnover and underlying PBIT

Costs that we directly control were held at inflation, while other costs over which we have less direct
influence, notably power costs, continued to Increase at levels higher than inflation, a trend we have
seen In prior years We maintaned our good performance on bad debts at 2 2% of turnover (UK
GAAP), which 1s creditable in the current cimate where household incomes remain under pressure
We continued to sustain our planned investment in the assets and infrastructure that support this long
term business with total capital expenditure at £602 milion up 8% on the prior year though
infrastructure mamntenance expenditure included in this figure and expensed under IFRS accounting
rules was down £7 4 million (5%} dnven by shorter term operational requirements

With no substantial change n financing structures this year, finance costs increased to £245 2 million
(2013 £236 3 million) largely as a result of the higher level of net debt

PBIT 1s profit before interest and tax, underlying PBIT i1s PBIT excluding exceptional items as set out in
note 6 Prior year comparative figures have been restated, where indicated, for the change in the
accounting policy for retrement benefits The impact I1s to decrease profit previously reported by
£11 & million, with an equal and opposite movement in reserves

Results

Turnover In Severn Trent Water increased by 2 2% in 2013/14, to £1,544 8 millon Prices were
increased by 1% less than November 2012 inflation of 3 0% from 1 April 2013 which gave nse to an
increase n turnover of £29 8 millon The 2013 dry summer led to higher consumption from metered
customers and overall increased metered consumption year on year (ncreased turnover by £7 1
millon Growth, net of the impact of meter optants, increased turnover by £1 3 millon which was offset
by other decreases amounting to £4 4 million

Underlying PBIT increased by 4 2% to £516 4 milion

Operating costs increased by 2 8% to £602 4 milon in ine with expectations Depreciation increased
by £3 3 million due to the impact of capital expenditure increasing the size of the asset base and there
was a decrease In infrastructure renewals expenditure of £7 4 million

Directly managed costs increased below the level of inflation at 2 8% year on year, reflecting effective

cost management, while indirectly managed costs, over which we have less control, increased by
29%
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2014 2013 Increasef (decrease)
£m £m £m 9%
Drrectly managed costs

Employee costs 2395 2280 15 50
Hired and contracted 154 2 147 6 66 45
Raw matenals and consumables 425 434 {09) {21)
Other 499 509 (1 0) {Z20)
Costs capitalised (92 6) (87 1) {55) 63
3835 3828 107 28

Indirectly managed costs
Bad debts 313 N8 {0 5) {16)
Power 653 606 47 78
Rates and service charges 1123 1101 22 20
2089 2025 64 32
Operating costs 6024 585 3 171 29

Exceptional operating items

There was an exceptional credit of £8 2 milion ansing from the disposal of a number of properties
during the year (2013 £13 3 million credit)

Net finance costs

Net finance costs Increased by 3 8% to £245 2 million Interest payable increased to £332 2 million
(2013 £324 9 milion} and interest recevable and similar iIncome fell by £1 6 milion to £87 0 million

RP1 was lower year on year resuling in a reduction in the non-cash interest charge This was offset
by an increased cash interest charge on a higher level of net debt Changes to the accounting
standard |IAS19 have resulted in an increase of £17 2 million in net pension finance cost (prior year
figures have been restated by £12 4 million)

Gains/(losses) on financial instruments

The company uses financial dervatives sclely to hedge nsks associated with its normal business
activities including

« Exchange rate exposure on borrowings denominated in foreign currencies,

e [nterest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and

+ Exposures to increases in electricity prices

These rnisks are managed centrally by the Severn Trent group treasury department Denvative
financial instruments are not held for trading

Accounting rules require that these dervatives are revalued at each balance sheet date and, unless
the criteria for cash flow hedge accounting are met, the changes In value are taken to the income
statement If the nisk that 1s being hedged does not impact the income statement in the same penod
then an accounting mismatch anses from the hedging activities and there i1s a net charge or credi to
the income statement

Where the dervatives are held to ther full term, these mismatches are expected to net out
Furthermore, the changes In value that are recorded dunng the lives of the denvatives, unless
crystalised, do not represent cash flows Therefore the group presents adjusted earmings figures that
exclude these non-cash tems An analysis of the amounts credited to the income statement In the
period 1s presented in note 11 to the financial statements
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Profit for the year

Profit for the financial year was £482 2 millon (2013 £2392 million) The company measures its
return on capital using the ratic of post tax retumn on regulatory capital value, which is calculated as
current cost operating profit less current tax, over average regulatory capital value For the year ended
31 March 2014 post tax returmn on capital was 6 4% (2013 6 7%)

Taxation

The current year tax charge for 2013/14 before exceptional items was £56 9 million (charge of £33 5
milion) This includes a charge of £9 4 million arsing from adjustments to prior year tax computations
In the previous year adjustments to prior year tax computations resulted in a current tax credit of
£27 2 million, primanly due to an industry agreement over the treatment of infrastructure income in
those computations

An exceptional current tax credit of £569 2 million has been recognised, reflecting the anticipated
refund of overpayment of tax in pnor periods as HMRC has now agreed that certain capital
expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works 1s eligible for capital allowances as
plant and machinery This has also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £56 2 million

In the prior year the group’s UK subsidiary companies adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101,
which changed the basis for those companies' corporation tax computations The most signfficant
impact of this change 1s that certain amounts that had been taxed in previous years were recognised
as profits and will be taxed n future perods Therefore, to prevent such items being taxed twice, the
tax already paid on such items was repayable The impact of this change was an exceptional credit of
£40 5 miliron to current tax and an exceptional charge of £38 8 millron to deferred tax

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted in the period and implemented a reduction \n the corporation tax
rate from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and then to 20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015 This
has resulted in a further deferred tax credit of £119 3 million in the income statement and a deferred
tax charge of £11 3 mullion in reserves

The total tax credit for the year was £163 2 million (2013 credit of £16 1 milion)
See note 12 in the financial statements for further detaii
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Cash flow

20m4
£m

2013
£m

Cash generated from operations 7744 7579
Net capital expenditure {441 2) {392 6)
Net interest paid {198 5) (229 2)
Tax paid {14 5) {53 5)
Free cash flow 120 2 826
Dividends (337 6) {72 0)
Net issue of shares (28) (14)
Change n net debt from cash flows (220 2) g2
Non cash movements (46 0) (120 5)
Change in net debt {266 2) (111 3)
Net debt 1 April {4,578 2) (4,466 9)
Net debt at 31 March {4,844 4) (4,578 2)
Net debt comprises
Cash and cash equivalents 198 3286
Loans recevable from other group companies 1070 1212
Loans payable to other group companies {4,005 4) (3,917 5}
Bank loans (555 2) (717 7)
Finance leases payable (307 0) (317 4}
Intercompany finance leases payable (210 7) (213 3)
Finance leases recevable from other group companies 1013 101 8
Cross currency swaps 58 361
(4,844 4) (4,578 2)

Cash generated from operations was £774 4 million (2013 £757 9 million) Capital expenditure net of
grants and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £441 2 million (2013 £392 6 million) Net interest
paid decreased to £198 5 million (2013 £229 2 million)

Net debt at 31 March 2014 was £4844 4 millon (2013 £4578 2 million) Balance sheet gearing {net
debt/net debt plus equity) at the year end was 82 4 (2013 84 1) The company's net interest charge,
excluding gains/(losses) on financial instruments and net finance costs from pensions, was covered
35 times (2013 3 5 times) by profit before interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional items, and 2 3
times (2013 2 3 times) by underlying PBIT

Treasury management and liquidity

The company's principal treasury management objectives are
= to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest
cost compatible with the need for continued availability,
* to maintain an investment grade credit rating, and
¢ to maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure

The company continues to carefully monitor hquidity At 31 March 2014 the company had £19 8 million
(2013 £328 6 milon) i cash and cash equivalents and committed undrawn facilities amounting to
£500 milion (2013 £500 million), of which £200 million 1s jointly held with Severn Trent Plc Average
debt matunty 1s around 16 years The company is funded for its investment and cash flow needs up to
January 2015 without recourse to commiited facilities or new debt

Cash I1s Invested 1n deposits with highly rated banks and hquidity funds and the list of counterparties 1s
regularly reviewed
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Treasury policy and operations

The company's treasury affairs are managed centrally as part of the Severn Trent Plc group
and in accordance with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement The treasury
operation’s role I1s to manage hquidity, funding, investment and our financial nsk, including risk
from volatility in interest and (to a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty credit nsk Its
activiies are subject to a set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of the borrowings
and ivestments under its management The Severn Trent Water Limited board determines
matters of treasury policy and its approval 1s required for certain treasury transactions

The group strategy 1s to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum
required and lowest cost compatible with the need for continued avallability Severn Trent Water, 15 a
long term business charactenised by multi year investment programmes The group's strategic funding
objectives reflect this and the liquidity position and avallability of committed funding are essential to
meetng our objectives and cbligations The group aim's for a balance of long term funding or
commitment of funds across a range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost

The company uses financial derivatives solely to manage risks associated with our normal business
activities The company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for financial trading

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which 1s fully hedged, cur business does not involve
significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions We have investments in various assets
denominated in foreign currencies, principally the US dollar and the euro Our current policy 1s to
hedge an element of the currency translation nsk associated with certan foreign currency
denominated assets

The company uses cross currency swaps to convert currency debt to sterhng The effect of
these swaps 1s that interest and principal payments on the borrowings are denorunated in
sterling and hence the currency risk 1s eiminated The foreign currency notes and the cross
currency swaps are recorded In the balance sheet at their fair values and the changes in fair
values are taken to gains/(losses) on financial instruments in the income statement Since the
terms of the swaps closely match those of the underlying debt, such changes tend to be
broadly equal and opposite

The company holds interest rate swaps with a net notional principal of £361 2 millon and cross
currency swaps with a net notional principal of £73 6 millon which economically act to hedge the
interest rate nisk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate nisk on certain foreign currency borrowings
However, the swaps do not meet the hedge accounting rules of IAS 39 and therefore the changes in
fair value are taken to gainsf{losses) on financial nstruments 1IN the Income statement Dunng the year
there was a credit of £40 1 million in relation to these instruments

The company has entered into a senes of forward starting interest rate swaps with a notional pnncipal
amount of £450 million that hedge the interest rate nsk on the anticipated borrowing requirements for
AMP5 These swaps are treated as cash flow hedges and the changes in fair value are taken to other
comprehensive income During the year swaps with a notional principal amount of £225 mithion
reached therr start dates Hedge accounting for these swaps was terminated as at 1 Apnl 2013
because the company was not able to identfy specific debt instruments that would qualfy as the
hedged items in a future hedging relatonship The farr value held in other comprehensive income at
the date of termunation will be amortised to the iIncome statement over their remaining hives  This led
to a charge of £4 6 milion in the year

The company manages its electncity costs through a combination of self generation forward pnce
contracts and financial denvatives All of our external power requirements for the first four years of
AMPS and most of the remaining year have been hedged in this way, at prices below those allowed in
the Final Determination
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The company’s long term credit ratings are

Long term ratings

Moody's A3
Standard and Poor's BBB+
Pensions

The company 1s the sponsorning employer of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the
Severn Trent group In the UK As there 1s no contractual agreement or policy statement for allocating
the net defined benefit cost to individual group entities this company has recognised the full cost and
deficit However, the company only makes contributions for its own employees

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, of which the UK Severn Trent Pension
Scheme (STPS) 1s by far the largest Formal tnennial actuanal valuations and funding agreements as
at 31 March 2013 for the STPS and the other smaller defined benefit pension scheme have been
agreed and renewed n the year Deficit reduction contributions in total include a payment of £40
milion in 2013/14, £35 milion in 2014/15, £15 milion 1n 2015/16 and then £12 milllion per annum in
subsequent years to 2024/25 Further payments of £8 million per annum through an asset backed
funding arrangement will also continue to 31 March 2032

As previously announced, the final salary sections of the pension schemes will close to future accrual
on 31 March 2015 The final salary sections were closed to new entrants in 2006 Consequently the
age profile of scheme participants 1s expected to rnise and hence service costs are also expected to
rise until future accrual ceases in March 2015

A new defined contribution pension scheme has been established and members of the defined benefit
pension schemes will then become members of the new defined contribution pension scheme The
existing defined contribution pension scheme will also be replaced by the new pension arrangements
with effect from 1 April 2015 From 1 Apnl 2012 new employees have been automatically enrolled into
this scheme and those employees who were not members of a Severn Trent scheme were
automatically enrolled into this scheme from 1 Apnl 2013

The key actuanal assumptions for the defined benefit schemes have been updated for these accounts
On an IAS 19 basis, the estimated net position of the schemes was a deficit of £348 3 million as at 31
March 2014 This compares to a deficit of £383 7 million as at 31 March 2013 The movements in the
net deficit are summansed in note 33 The funding level has increased to 84 0% (2013 81 8%)

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the defined benefit pension schemes were as follows

2014 2013
Pnice inflation 33% 32%
Pension increases in payment 33% 32%
Pension increases In deferment 33% 32%
Discount rate 4 4% 4 4%,
Remaining Iife expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years)
- men 213 215
-women 24 4 246
Remaning life expectancy for members currently aged 45 upon retirement at 65 (years)
- men 226 227
-women 260 262
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The following table summanses the estimated impact on scheme liabilities resulting from changes to
key actuarial assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme habilities
Discount rate  Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decreasefincrease by £38 million
Pnice inflabon  Increase/decrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by £35 million
Mortality Increase In Iife expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 million
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Our approach to risk-

We manage nsks within the overall governance framework which includes clear accountabilities,
delegated authonty imits and reward policies These are designed to provide employees with an
holistic view of effective nsk management

Our approach reflects our status as a regulated utihty providing essential services and operating as
part of the Critical National Infrastructure for the UK The nature of our business is such that there are
some significant inherent nsks We aim to have a strong control framework in place to enable us to
understand our nsks and manage them effectively

Our Enterprise Risk Management Process.

We use an established Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process to assess and manage our most
significant nsks which are linked to our business objectives Qur ERM process covers all types of risk
including operational, financial and legal and regulatory

Our process considers both the posstble causes of nsk and what the impact would be if a nsk
crystalised This enables us to consider the controls needed to minimise the hkelhood of nsks
occurnng and those which can help to maxirmise our resilience to risks Resilience of our services I1s
vital and we regularly carry out exercises jointly with other agencies such as iccal authontes, police
and fire services During the year we have also started an extensive training programme to increase
the number of trained staff available to respond to incidents

Key nsks are reported to the Severn Trent Pic Audit Committee and discussed at the board every six
months In the form of rnsk maps In additien, individual nsks or specific nsk topics are also discussed
by the board during the year We have regular risk ‘deep dives’ at our executive team meetings These
take the form of updates from individual business teams on their progress with improving controls and
providing effective mitigation for theirr most significant nsks

Risk Appetite

During the year the board held a senes of discussions aboutl our appetite for risk from four key
perspectives consistency with our culture and values, delivering what our customers need, retaining
the confidence of our investors and compliance with the regulatory regime in which we operate

The board will continue to work on refining our approach to nisk appetite in the coming year The board
discussions on risk appetite, in the context of our strategy, influence the outcome of the ERM process
and, in particular, how we establish an appropriate target posihion for each significant nsk

Financial Risks

Like all businesses, we need te plan future funding in ine with business need This is part of our
normal business planning process (see Principal Risk Ref 4} The board receives regular updates
relating to funding, solvency and liquidity matters
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Principal Risks:
The board constders that the following represent the Principal Risks facing Severn Trent Water

Ref What i1s the nisk? What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage
the risk?

Customer perception
i We may be unable to | Faillure te deliver the service |We have co-ordinated
improve and mantain | customers expect will lead to|programmes of work underway
our levels of customer | customer dissatisfachton As a | across all parts of Severn Trent
service sufficiently to | regulated utiity providing essential | Water to improve our processes
delwer what our | services, we recognise that | and our technology to enable us

customers tell us they
want

customer trust 1s wvital for us to
maintain legitimacy

If we are unable to provide the level

of service we want to our customers
we
penalties under Ofwat’'s SIM

may also suffer financial

to deliver outstanding customer
service

Qur performance as measured by
Ofwat's SIM measure continues
to iImprove However, we are not
improving as fast as some of our
compettors and our perfoermance
Is still not as good as we would
ke

We have set ourselves more

challenging targets and our
customer experience
improvement programmes are

working to deliver these at a
faster rate for our customers

2 | We may be unable to | We may lose income as a result of | Within Severn Trent Water our
take full advantage of | business retall customers moving to | strategy reflects the needs of
the opportunities | competitors or we may fal to | different groups of customers —
presented by the | successfully grow our business by | whether large or small businesses
opening up of the|being unable to develop suffictently | and whether water i1s cntical to
business retall market | attractive services to win new |ther  operations We are
to competition customers developing our service offenng

which includes, for example,
services to help customers
understand and reduce therr
water consumption
Legal and regulatory environment
3 | We may be unable to | We operate in a highly regulated | During the year we published the

effectively  anticipate
andf/or influence future
developments in the UK
water industry resulting
In our business plans
becoming
unsustainable

environment Whilst we are broadly
content with the direction of changes
proposed for our
remains a nisk that future changes
could have a significant impact on
Severn Trent Water

industry, there

fourth 1n our “Changing Course”

senies — “Changing Course
through the Sustainable
implementation of the Water

Framework Directive” which sets
out our view on an approach to
implementation which IS
affordable for our customers We
also commissioned a report from
KPMG locking at the challenges
and possible  solutons  for
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Ref What 1s the risk? What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage
the risk?
sustainable investment to
maintain the water infrastructure
We will continue to engage with
our peers, Ofwat and other
regulators, UK Government
departments and other
stakeholders to inform the
direchon of regulatory policy
where appropriate
4 | We may be unable to | We submit a business plan to Ofwat | We are using our established
develop and deliver a 5 | every 5 years At each of these price | business planning processes to
year business plan | reviews, we have a risk that changes | update our plan for the 2015-2020
which 1s acceptable to | will be required to our plan to meet | price review penod We are
Ofwat, our customers, | Ofwat's expectations engaging with Ofwat in order to
other stakeholders and respond to the feedback from
which 15 financeable fOnce plans have been agreed, we theﬁ Risk Based Review We will
ace nsks to dehvery of the plan
within the assumptions be submittimg an updated
we have used :;t;',?n f o?eth t:fonstram;z o te?jnd proposal in June which reflects
plions that we have P Ofwat's feedback, the Risk and
Failure to achieve the targets set out | Reward guidance and the views
in our agreed plan for the current | of our customers
price review period could result in W
Ofwat being less willing to support € are reviewing progress
our business plan submission for the aganst the plan agreed for the
next price review penod and could currft_ant tr[:rllce review perlo: to
result n additional funding fr? niirm ?1 “t'e exiaect to t:;ctleve
requirements in the current penod he agreed largets or thal we
ave included appropnate
compensation in our plan for the
next pencd where we have falled
to fully deliver the required
service levels and outputs
We will continue tc engage with
our customer challenge group
(the Water Forum) to ensure that
we continue to respond to our
customers when refining our plan
5 | The regulatory | Our policies and processes must [ Dunng the year, we have

landscape i1s complex
and subject to on-going
change There 1s a nsk
that processes may fail
or that our processes
may not effectively
keep pace with
changes in legislation
leading to the nsk of
non-compliance

current  legal

envircnment

reflect the
regulatory

changes In actvity

always straightforward

and
and alf
relevant employees must be kept
aware of new requirements Due to
the spread of our operations, and
and
organisational structure ts 1s not

maintained our focus on raising
awareness of updated policies via
e-learning, face to face coaching
and general communications
These communications nclude
reminders of the principles of our
Code of Conduct, Doing the nght
thing the Severn Trent way

We are reviewing our methods of
obtaining assurance in relation to
compliance 1ssues to ensure we
have a consistent approach for all
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Ref

What i1s the risk?

What does it mean for us?

What are we doing to manage
the risk?

key obligations, mcluding licence
conditions, competition legislation
and ant-bnbery and corruption
legislation

Operations, assets and people

6

Our assets or
processes may fail
resulting m jury to an
employee, contractor or
member of the public

The nature of our work requires our
employees and contractors to
undertake achvites or to use
equipment which have potential to
cause sernous harm Whilst we take
every precaution to prevent inury,
asset falure or fallure to follow
agreed processes may result in
someone beng hurt Specific
examples include fallure of one of
our key assets such as a reservoir
which could result in inury to
customers or the public

Our ongoing strategy for Health,
Wellbeing and Safety covers
improving the  management
system, addressing the causes of
incidents and improving health
and wellbeing

Durng the year, we bhave
delivered a number of
improvements including a new
reporting system and a new
standard  for local safety
improvement teams Qur next
steps include implementing new
approaches to our safety
standards and nsk assessment

In addition, to learning lessons
from ncidents, we continue to
measure improvements in culture
and the belef in our vision as well
as substantial proactive safety
activity to 1dentfy and remove
hazards

Our assets are subject to regular
and ngorous monitoring Including
independent nspection of our
reservoirs to ensure that they
remain safe and that maintenance
work 1s  undertaken  where
needed

We will contnue with our

programme of safety
improvements and with our
ngorous monitoring and

maintenance regimes for critical
assets
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Ref What i1s the nisk? What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage
the risk?

7 | We may fall to meet all | If we are unable to meet operational | We continue to focus on finding
of aur regulatory targets | performance targets, we may be | and clearing blockages in our
including targets from | subjected to significant regulatory | sewers and cn our education
Ofwat in relatton to | penalties either within the current | programmes to help customers
operational price review pernod, or applied to the | understand how to use our assets
performance of our | next pnce review responsibly

assets resulting In

regulatory penalties Regulatory targets apply to all of our | Our business plan for 2015-2020

water treatment, distnbution, | includes considerable investment
sewerage and sewage treatment | in our above ground water assets
assets Measures are in place in | to improve the resillence of our
relation to water qualty, continuous | networks, reduce Interruptions
supples, sewer flooding, sewer | and improve the service that our
collapses and polluton events customers receive

8 | Fallure of certain key | Some of our assets are critical to the | Dunng the year, as part of our
assets or processes | provision of water to large | Planning for the next price review
may result in inability to | populations for which there are | period from 2015-2020, we have
provide a continucus | jmited alternative means of supply | undertaken extensive surveys of
supply of quality water | These assets are regularly inspected | some of our largest, most cnitical
to large populatons | and maintained and our assessment | assets As a result we have a
within our area, or I | of the overall condition 1s good If a better understanding of the
damage to third party | failure were to occur the | specific  points  around  our

property consequence would result n | network which could present a
temporary nability to contnue to |threat to  our  continuous
serve our customers operation This has helped us to

prioriise our spending

In addiion, our IT and telephony | requirements and informed our
systems are crnitical to our operations | ggset management plans which
and falure of these systems, for | dnve ivestment in maintenance
example matenalzation of a cyber | gnd improvement of our assets in

threat  affectng  our  remote | order to mantain our service to
monitoring system, could have a | customers

stgnificant effect
Durng the vyear we have

progressed work on implementing
dual data centres to provide
increased resilience for our key IT
systems We have also assessed
the secunty of our systems in line
with the '10 Steps to Cyber
Secunty’ managed by CESG

Our business strategy for 2015-
2025 includes significant
investment to mprove the
resithence  of our network,
particularly by mproving our
ability to move water around our
network

We also have secunty measures
to protect our assets and
contingency plans to maintan
supplies in the event of failure
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Ref What is the risk? What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage
the risk?

Financial risks

9 | Changing We provide significant funding for | We  regularly revalue  our
demographics and | our schemes We may be called | schemes and monitor our
fluctuatons 1n  the | upon to provide more money to | investment performance
investment market may | reduce deficits 1n our pensions
affect our ability to fund | schemes

pensions promises
sustainably

We will continue to monitor the
performance of our pensions
investments and to work closely
with our third party advisors to
ensure that the schemes are
managed effectively

The Strategic report, as set out on pages 1 to 35, has been approved by the board
By order of the board

B

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel and Company Secretary
28 May 2014
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1 DrTony Bailance

BSc (Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (45}

Director, Strategy and Regulation

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Tony's extensive experience in uikiy policy and
regulation teaves him ideally placed to lead

the company's strateqic and regulatory work

Pror to joining Severn Trent he held the pests of Chief
Econamust for Ofwat, director of London Economics
and drrector of Stone and Webster Consultants

Externcl appomtments
Member of Water UK Gounal

2 John Coghlan

BCom ACA (56)

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 23 May 2014

John s a chortered accountant with substantiol
financal expertise ond 1s o valuoble eddition to the
board’s extsting skilt set. He will becorne Chairmon of
the Audit Committee with effect from the conclusion
of tha AGM on 16 July 2014 John s currently
Chairrnan of Inchcope Shipping Servces ond a non-
executive drector and Charman of the Remuneration
Committee of Lavendon Group plc He was previously o
nen executive director of Hibu ple {formerly Yell Group
ple} from June 2002 to February 2014 and Charman
of the Audit Cornmittee Prior to this he was o non-
exacutive director of Ashley House plc and DX Services
PLC and until 2006 he was Deputy Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director of Exel Pic

External appointments

Charman of Inchcape Shipping Services

Non executive director and Chairmnan of the
Rermuneration Cornmittee of Lavendon Group ple
Chawrnan of Freight Transport Associotion Irelond Limited

3 Richard Davey

BA (65)

Senior independent non-executive director
Appointed to the board on 1 January 2006

Richard sperit the majonty of his executive career In
investment banking at NM Rothschild and Sons, in roles
ncluding Heod of Investrment Banking Richord bnngs
rvaluoble specialist finonciol expertise to the board,
the Audit Committee and os charr of the Rernuneration
Comirmittee, hawng run Rothschild’s Finanaial Services
Group and worked with a nurmber of high street banks
ond insurers Previously he held non-axecutive roles at
Yorkshire Bulding Socety, where he was Vice Chairrnan,
Freeserve Pic and Scotish Widows Fund and Lfe
Assurance Society

External appointments

Non-executive Chairrnon, member of the Risk and
Solvency Committee and Charman of the Nomination
Committee of Amlin Plc

4 Andrew Duff

BSCFEI (55)

Non-executive Charman

Appointed to the board on 10 May 2010 and
Chairman on 20 July 2010

Andrew’s extensive expenence of internationot and
reguloted business, strateg:c monagerment and
customer service in hugh profile, dynamic emaronments
hove equipped tern well for the role of Chairrman of the
group Andrew spent 16 yeers ot BPin marketing,
strotegy and ol troding He joined Nationol Power in
15998 and the board of Innogy plc upon its demerger
from Notonal Power in 2000 He ted the restructunng
and subsequent sale of Innogy to RWE in 2003

He becarne CEOQ of the successor company, npower,
and a member of the RWE Group Executive Committee
He was a non executrve director of Wolseley Pic from
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July 2004 unul his retrement in Novernber 2013
Andrew wos apponted non executive Deputy Charman
of Elements plc on 1 April 2014 and becarne

non executive Chawrman of Elementis ple on

24 Aprl 2014

Extemal appointments

Non-executive Chairmnan ond Chawrman of the
Normination Commitiee of Elementis plc

Memmber of the CBI President’s Commuttee

Trustee of Macmillan Cancer Support and Earth Trust
Fellow of the Energy Institute

5 Gordon Fryett

(60

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 1 July 2009

Gordon hos extensive expenence working in ond wath
internaticnal businesses, managing significant capitol
expenditure His in depth retail expertise at both
executve and operational level in a customer facing,
highly cormpetitive envranment, enables hurm to bing
substontial expenence and expertise to the board and
the Corporate Responsibility Commuttee Gorden hetd
the position of Group Property Director at Tesco Pic
uritil bus retirement in November 2013 He previously
hetd o number of senior roles within the Tesco Group,
including Operations Director, international Support
Director and CEOQ Republic of [relond

Externa! oppointments
Alurnnus of INSEAD

6 Olvia Garfield

BA (Hons) (38)

Chief Executve

Appointed to the board on 11 Apnl 2014

Ofraa (L) brings to the board a wealth of expenence
managing customer senace delivery ond complex
infrastructure and organisations in a regulated
envircnment Before joming Severn Trent, Liv wos Chief
Executive Officer of Openreach port of the BT Group,
where she spearheaded and oversow the commeraal
roll out of fibre broadband to two thirds of the country
She joned BT i 2002 and held the prvotal roles of
Group Director of Strategy and Regulation, Managing
Director Commerciol and Brands, Global Services

and UK Customer Services Directer From 1598 to
2002, Liv worked for Accenture as o consultant in the
Cormmunicabions and High Tech Market Urit, designing
and implementing business change solutions across a
number of industry sectors.

External appointments
Nen executive drector Tesco Plc

7 Martin Kane

B5¢c CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIW (61)
Non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Martin jomed Severn Trent Water in 1975 and has
held vonous senior roles ging birn an extensive and
umque understanding of the design, construction and
operation of water and waste water treatment plonits,
water distrbubion networks ond sewerage systerns
Moartin was Director of Custorner Relations, Severn
Trent Water, from May 2006 until January 2012, wien
he was appainted Chief Executive Officer of Severn
Trent Services

External appointrients

Member of the boards of Ubkties ond Servce Industnes
Trairung Limuted and National Asscaation of Waier
Companies {US)

Trustee of [nternational Society for

Frenchless Technology

8 Martin Lamb

BSc MBA (54)

independent non-executive director

Apponted to the board on 29 February 2008
Martin hos extensive expenence of managing ond
developing large engineering businesses in oll parts
of the world. In May 2014, Martin left the boord of
IM! plc having served os Chuef Executsve for 13 years
ond after 33 years with the compary He oversaw the
fundamentot reshaping of IM1 and held a number

of senior management roles there On 1 March
2014, Marun was oppointed Charman of Evoqua
Woter Technologies His strong commercial acumen,
expenence of monoging complex projects, and
farrbionty with current morket pressures leove him
well ploced to add value to the Severn Trent business
Previousty Martin was a non executve director of
Spectns plc

Extemal appointments

Chairman of Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Mernber of the Adwisory Board of AEA [rvestors
Management (UK} Limited

9 Michael McKeon

MA CA (57)

Finance Derector

Appointed to the board on 13 Decernber 2005
Michael bnngs significant finanaat end commeraal
expertise to the beard and has over eight years’
expenence of the Severn Trent group Pnor to joining
Severn Trent he was Finonce Director of Novar Plc and
before that, held various seruor roles with Rolls-Royce
Pie, including Finance Director of the Aerospace Group
He has extensive internatienal business expenence
having worked averseas for CornoudMetalbox, EH
Atocherm ond Price Waterhouse Michael 1s o chartered
accountant and a member of the Insttute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland

External appointments
Non-executwve director and Chairman of the Audit
Cornrmittee of The Merchonts Trust Pie

10 Baroness Noakes

DBE LLB FCA (54}

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 29 February 2008
Shetla bnings voluoble expertise to the board os
anexpenenced director and Audit Comrmittee
Chatrrnan of UK isted comporues and with extensive
ond vaned professional, poliical and public sector
expenence A qualified chortered accountant, she
previously heoded KPMG's Europeon and International
Government practices and has been President of the
Institute of Chortered Accountants in England and
wales, Sheile was apponted to the House of Lords

in 2000 and has served on the Conservative front
bench invanous roles induding as shodow treasury
murnster between 2003 and May 2010 Prewously sbe
heid non-executrve rotes on the Court of the Bank of
Engtand, Honson Plc, 11 Pic, John Laing and SThree
Sheila wall retsre from the board with effect from the
concluston of the 2014 AGM

Externcl appointments

Non executive drector, member of the Group Audit

Committee and Group Normmations Committee and
Chenrrman of the Board Risk Committee of The Royol
Bank of Scotlond Group Pic

Deputy Chairmaon, senior independent director

and Charmaon of the Norminations Comimittee

of Carpetnght Pic
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11 The Hon Philip Remnant

CBE ACA MA (59)

Independent nen-executive director

Appointed to the boord on 31 March 2014

Phitip 15 a senior investment bonker with substantial
adwsory and regulatory expenence A chortered
accountant, he 1s Seror Independent Drrector of
Prudentiol Plc, o Deputy Charman of the Tokeover Panel,
0 non-executive director of UK Finanaiat Irvestrnents
Liruted and Charman of City of London Investrment
Trust plc He was previously a Vice Chainmon of Credit
Sursse First Boston Europe ond Head of the UK
Investment Banking Department. Philip was Director
Generol of the Tokeover Panel for two years between
2001 and 2003, and agoinin 2010 Previously he served
onthe board of Northem Rock pic and from 2007 1o
2012 wos Chawrnan of the Shareholder Executve

External appointments

Senior independent directer and member of the
Audit, Nominations and Remuneration Cornmittees
of Prudental Plc

Deputy Chairmaon of the Takeover Panel

Non executve dwector of UK Finanoal
Investments Limited

Non executve Charman of City of London
Investment Trust plc

Governor of Goedenough College

Trustee of St Poul’s Cothedral Foundation

12 Andy Smith

BTech (Hons) (53}

Director of Water Services

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Andy brings a broad ronge of executrve and operational
expertise goined from dsverse sectors to the board
Andy has significant experience having worked in

the UK and aversans with globol businesses such as

B8P, Mars and Pepsi, in engineenng and operational
management rotes Previcusly he was @ member of
the boord at Boots Group Plc

13 Dr Angela Strank

BSc PhD (Geology) (61)

Independent non-executve director

Appointed to the board on 24 January 2014

Angela 1s Chief Scientist at BP Group She has held
various senior strategic, technical and commercial
leadership roles at BP since joining n 1982, most
recently Vice Pressdent and Head of the Chief
Executve's Office In 2010 Angeta was the winner of
the UK First Woman's Award in Science and Technology
In recognibon of preneenng UK women iy business and
industry Her track record and expenence in strategy,
technology ond transforrational chonge are a
compiementary oddition to the board's skill set

External appointments

Board of Governors of the University of Manchester
Unwersity College London, Energy Institute
Intermational Adwisory Board
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Chairman’s letter

Dear Stakeholder

At Severn Trent Water, we are committed to delivering value to our customers and building a
sustainable business, which 1s underpinned by good governance As a board we are accountable fo
our stakeholders for ensuring that effective governance processes are in place and comphed with The
board's role 1s to
« understand and meet its obligations o the company’s stakeholders,
s govern the company within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enable risk to be
assessed and managed,
approve the company’s strategic objectives, and
ensure that sufficient resources are available to enable it to meet those objectives

Good governance ensures that decisions flow down the organisation, so we implement them correctly,
and that information flows up to those that need it to make decisions Ultimately, good governance
ensures that the board has access to timely, relevant and robust information, so it can run the
business effectively

In January 2014, Ofwat published ‘Board leadership, transparency and governance — principles’ which
it considered should apply to regulated water companies Severn Trent Water 1s fully supportive of
Ofwat's objective of raising standards in this area

Severn Trent Plc 1s the ultimate holding company of Severn Trent Water Limited Severn Trent Plc 1s
a listed company and dunng the year ended 31 March 2014 was compliant with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2012 (the ‘Governance Code’), with the excepton that the adequacy of
arrangements In relation to whistleblowing procedures falls within the remit of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee rather than the Audit Committee The governance section of the Severn
Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts sets out how Severn Trent Plc applies the principles of the
Governance Code

Severn Trent Water's code on complying with Ofwat's principles 1s to continue to comply with the
Governance Code at Severn Trent Plc level, with the exception that the adequacy of arrangements In
relation to whistleblowing procedures will continue to fall within the remit of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee rather than the Audit Committee As a company Severn Trent Water has
voluntanly chosen to apply the principles of the Governance Code to its governance arrangements
Where appropnate and reasonably practicable, Severn Trent Water will, except as stated above In
relation to whistleblowing arrangements, continue to comply with the Governance Code with the
exception that the board committees will continue to operate at the Severn Trent Plc leve! rather than
duplicating the arrangements at the company level The board considers that these arrangements are
appropnate and effective

| believe that good governance is critically dependent on behavior and culture, as well as organisation
and process The following sections of this report set out how good governance supports our activities
at Severn Trent Water and describe how the board applies the principles of the Governance Code — In
the way we are structured, the way we choose to behave and the way we ensure our effectiveness
Assessing our governance arrangements in terms of these headings enables us to establish the nght
long term behaviours, which will help us to deliver the company's strategic objectives In a sustainable
manner

| firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustainable growth for our company
through the successful mix of good governance, a clear strategy with a supporting business plan and
a strong management team to execute it

Andrew Duff
Chairman
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Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

As Severn Trent Water 1s not a isted company it 1s not required to comply with the Governance Code
However, we have voluntanly chosen to apply the pnnciples of the Governance Code to our
governance arrangements, where appropriate and reasonably practicable

The version of the Governance Code applicable to the current reporting period 1s the September 2012
UK Corporate Governance Code The Governance Code 1s avallable on the Financial Reporting
Council's website (www frc org uk}

The boards of Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Plc have the same directors This structure was
implemented in 2007 to reflect the fact that the company 1s the largest part of the Severn Trent group
This approach ensures that the company’s strategic and operational 1ssues engage the Severn Trent
Plc's board and that the two companies have the same governance standards We have processes 1n
place to ensure the directors make formal decisions in their capacity as directors of Severn Trent
Water Limited and Severn Trent Plc respectively None of the directors represent investors and
neither company has alternate directors There i1s also an explicit division of responsibility between
the (independent on appointment) Charrman and Chief Executive

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2014, Severn Trent Water Limited was complant
with the Governance Code, with the following exceptions
s the board committees operate at the Severn Trent Plc level rather than the company level
Whilst the board committees are not duplicated at the company level, in practice theirr remit
includes work In respect of the company In particular the Audit Committee reviews Severn
Trent Water's
o Processes for producing regulatory submissions, and
o Statutory and regulatory accounts prior to thewr approval by the Severn Trent Water
board
The board committees are all led by independent non-executive directors who comprnise the
majonty of membership of each committee Details of the committees are reported publicly in
the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts
» the adequacy of arrangements in relation to the company’s whistleblowing procedures falls
within the remit of the Severn Trent Plc Corporate Responsibility (CR) Committee, rather than
the Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee The CR Committee’'s remit 1s to deal with any
allegations from employees relating to any breaches under Severn Trent's Code of Conduct
The Audit Committee reviews reports of matters ansing in respect of financial or internat control
matters from the company's whistleblowing procedures and the company's procedures for
preventing and detecting fraud and bnbery, and receives reports on non-comphance The
board considers that these arrangements are appropnate
» the company does not comply with the prowvisions relating to Relahons with Shareholders which
covers Dialogue with Shareholders and Constructive use of the AGM, as it would not be
appropriate to do so, however Severn Trent Plc does fully comply

The way we are structured
Board membership

During the year under review your board has comprised the non-executive Chairman, four executive
directors, seven independent non-executive directors and one non-executive director During the year
the board announced the retirement of Dr Bernard Bulkin and the appointment of Dr Angela Strank as
an independent non-executive director, with effect from 24 January 2014 The board also announced
the appointment of Phiip Remnant as an independent non-executive director with effect from
31 March 2014 Dunng the year the board also announced the appointment of Liv Garfield as Chief
Executive with effect from 11 Apnl 2014 Following the year end, the board announced the
appointment of John Coghlan as a non-executive director with effect from 23 May 2014 and the
retirement of Baroness Noakes as a non-executive director with effect from the conclusion of the AGM
on 16 July 2014
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Photographs of the members of the board, together with their biographies and a descnption of the
complementary skills and diverse expenence that they brning to bear, can be found on pages 36 and
37

We believe this unitary board brings an appropnate balance of innovation, expenence, independence
and challenge to ensure effective deciston making

In accordance with the Governance Caode, all the directors will retire at this year's Severn Trent Plc
AGM and submit themselves for election or re-election by the shareholders, with the exception of
Baroness Noakes who will be retinng from the board with effect from the conclusion of the 2014 AGM

Detalls of our pclicy on diversity in the boardroom are provided in the Nominations Committee report
on pages 52 and 53 of the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Role of the Chairman

The role of Andrew Duff, the Chairman, 1s to lead a unitary board, facilitating the contnbution of its
members at its meetings, and to be responsible for ensuring that the principles and processes of the
board are maintained in ine with the board governance framework

Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Chairman in consultation with the Chief Executive and
Company Secretary, although any director may request that an tem be added to the agenda The
Chairman has authonty to act and speak for the board between its meetings, including engaging with
the Chief Executive He reports to the board and committee charmen as appropriate on decisions and
actions taken between meetings of the board He also meets with the non-executive directors without
the executive directoers present, 1o consider the performance of the executive directors and to provide
feedback

Senior iIndependent non-executive director
Richard Davey Is the sentor independent non-executive director The board has agreed that Richard
will act as Chairman of the board in the event that the Chairman 1s unable to do so for any reason

Non-executive directors

The sndependent non-executive directors are appointed te the board to contribute their independent
external expertise and experience in areas of importance to the company Their competencies include
corporate finance, general finance, corporate strategy, customer care, property, environmental and
technology matters, genera!l management, transformational change and supply chain management
They also provide independent challenge and rigour to the board's deliberations and are encouraged
to make independent assessments of the company’s competencies The non-executive directors, led
by the senior independent non-executive director, meet without the Chairman at least once a year for
them to appraise the Charrman’s performance and they have other meetings duning the year without
executive directors present

The board has reviewed the status of the independent non-executive directors and considers them all
to be independent In character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code

Following his appointment as CEQ of Severn Trent Services in January 2012, Martin Kane became a
non-executive director

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive to implement the company’s strategy During
the year under review the Chtef Executive was Tony Wray, who retired on 11 Apnl 2014 Liv Garfield
succeeded Tony as Chief Executive on 11 Apnl 2014 and 1s empowered to take all decisions and
actions that further the company's strategy and which in her judgement are reasonable, having regard
to the Chief Executive mits set out in the company's Group Authonsation Arrangements The
independent non-executive directors, led by the Chawman, appraise the Chief Executive's
performance annually
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Executive directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive In driving the implementation of strategy forward
in the company They are committed to doing this 1n a responsible way which takes account of
commitment te the Code of Conduct, the long term sustainable and responsible stewardship of the
business and the delivery of better value, better services and a healthier environment for our
customers and the communities in which we live and work

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy,
and the Company Secretanat team Bronagh 1s responsible for ensuring that the board operates in
accordance with the governance framework it has adopted and that there are effective information
flows to the board and between senior management and the non-executive directors

The appointment and resignation of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for consideration by the board
as a whole

Terms and conditions of appointment
We have made the terms and conditions of appointment of the directors available for inspection by
any person at the company’s registered office during normal business hours

Board processes

We have documented processes in place regarding

+ the board’s tasks and activites, and

« the matters specifically reserved for the board's decision making

The board has reserved the following for its own consideration

+ the appointment of the Chief Executive, directors and the Company Secretary,

+ the strategy and budgets of the company,

» decisions regarding the company required fo be made by the company’s constitutional documents,
statute or external regulation, and

+ the approval or adoption of documents, including the report and accounts, directors’ statements to
Ofwat concerning the Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement, required to be made by the board
by the company’s constitutional documents, statute or external regulation

Board meetings
We have regular scheduled meetings of the board throughout the year and any additional meetings
and ad hoc committee meetings are convened as and when required

Papers, including minutes of any board committees held since the previous board meeting and
performance reports, are circulated in advance of each meeting

There 1s an agreed procedure in place which allows directors to take independent professional advice
in the course of therr duties and all directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary If a director has a concern over any unresclved matter they may require the Company
Secretary to minute that concern

The chart overleaf shows how the board has spent its time at scheduled board meetings The board
monitors the performance of the business at every meeting and receives monthly updates on
performance against the KPls stated on pages 6 and 7 of the Strategic report The board also
regularly discusses reports on capital efficiency The board monitors governance matters and
developments in best practice through the Governance report provided by the Company Secretary, a
standing item on the board agenda The board also formally reviews compliance with the Governance
Code on an annual basis

Durning the year, five additional board meetings were convened to consider the submission of the
Business Plan to Ofwat and the appointment of the new Chief Executive
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In addition to formal board meetings, the board attended a full day strategy session this year, where
the board and executive management management together considered the areas of future value
creation across the Severn Trent business

How the board has spent its ttme
Focus of scheduled board meetings

12% 1%
B Strategy
9% B Governance
® Performance review
50%

10% W Finance

M Regulatory 1ssues

m other
Board attendance at scheduled Board attendance at additional
meetings 1n 2013/14 meetings in 2013/14
Andrew Duff 7/7 | Andrew Duff 6/6
Tony Ballance 717 | Tony Ballance 6/6
Dr Bernard Bulkin 6/6 | Dr Bernard Bulkin® 2/4
Richard Davey 7/7 | Richard Davey 5/6
Gordon Fryett 717 | Gordon Fryett* 3/6
Martin Kane 777 | Martin Kane* 516
Martin Lamb 7/7 { Martin Lamb* 5/6
Michae! McKeon TI7T | Michael McKeon 6/6
Baroness Noakes* 6/7 | Baroness Noakes* 5/6
Andy Smith 717 | Andy Smith 6/6
Dr Angela Strank 2/2 | Dr Angela Strank 2/2
Tony Wray 717 | Tony Wray 6/6
*unable to attend one meeting owing to personal * unable {o attend certain additional meeting held at short
reasons notice owing to pnor business commitmenis
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The way we choose to behave

Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the right thing — The Severn Trent way'

Every day Severn Trent Water employees have to make choices about what they do and how they do
it Most of the time 1t 1s clear what the nght thing to do 1s, whether it 1s about doing what 1s safe, doing
the nght thing for customers, doing what 1s nght ethically — and indeed what 1s night legally

However, sometimes it 1s not so clear '‘Doing the nght thing — The Severn Trent way' details the
principles we work by This is our Code of Conduct and explains who we are, what we stand for and
how we work, it also tells our customers and business partners that they can trust and rely on us
These prninciples apply to everyone 1n Sevemn Trent Water They provide a common and consistent
framework for responsible business practices and set out the standards we need to follow in our day-
to-day activities

During the year we have continued to roll out the Code of Conduct to make sure that everyone in the
business understands what it 1s all about and upholds our ethical standards All employees are
provided with a copy as part of therr induction Training sessions are also available and all teams have
been encouraged to discuss it through regular communications exercises We have also continued to
roll out our Code of Conduct into our supply chain

During autumn 2013 employees across the company attended ‘Our Journey Continues’ sessions
which focused on the next steps in the journey to be the best water and waste water company in the
UK These sessions also provided a refresher on the importance of doing the nght thing the Severn
Trent way and emphasised how these principles and our Code of Conduct were at the heart of our
standard ways of working

Policies

The Code of Conduct 1s supported by 15 policies and our behaviours model Further detalls of these
can be found on the Severn Trent Plc website (www severntrent com) Durnng the year we have
completed the annual review of the policies to ensure they are fit for purpose

Conflicts of interests
The board has a full documented process n place to authonse situaticnal conflicts in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and under the company's articles of association

At every board meeting there 1s a standing agenda item at the beginning of the meeting to consider
and discuss whether any potential conflict exists If it does then the relevant director does not attend
the meeting when that item 1s discussed

An annual review of conflicts 1s carried out and 1s incorporated into the year end process of venfying
directors’ interests Half yearly reports are also made to the board of all directors’ conflicts and
directors are reminded of their cbligations to disclose any potential conflicts

In March 2014, the board approved the authonsation of the potential situational conflict ansing as a
consequence of the appointment of Martin Lamb as Chairrman of Evoqua Water Technologies and
agreed to consider the management of such conflicts if and when they arose

Interests
No director had a matenal interest at any time during the year in any contract of significance with the
company or any of its subsidiary undertakings

The way we ensure our effectiveness

Induction

On joining the board, a director's induction needs are evaluated and then they are prowided with a
comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes information on ocur business, key
operations and processes, how we are regulated, how we are shaping future regulation, strategic
plans, financial reports, business plans and information on our governance framework
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Meetings are arranged with members of the executive management team and with external advisers
who provide support to the board Visits to operational and office sites across the company and
management presentations are also arranged for directors joiming the board and subsequently
throughout the year

These arrangements have been followed for the induction of Liv Garfield, Dr Angela Strank, Philip
Remnant and John Coghlan

Continuing professional development

The directors received updates throughout the year on matters such as changes to best practice
governance gudelines The drrectors also have access to professional development provided by
external bodies and our advisers

Continuing professional development (CPD) requirements were considered as part of the board
effectiveness review referred to befow No additional requirements were identified

An online Directors’ Resource Library and CPD repository has been created for use by the directors
The library includes a Corporate Governance Manual, Strategy Day matenals and details of board
tratming sessions It also includes a further reading section which contains regular updates and
guidance on changes to legislation and best practice

Performance and effectiveness reviews

An independent review of the effectiveness of the board 15 conducted every three years The last
external review was carned out in November 2011 and an independent review will be commissioned
during the 2014/15 financial year

In January 2014, the board commenced an internal review of its effectiveness and that of its
committees The review was led by the Chairman and was assisted by the Company Secretary who
conducted a senes of confidential interviews with each director Following the feedback from the board
effectiveness review, a review of each individual director's performance was carned out by the
Chairman

In terms of improvements identified in the previous year's internal review, it was concluded that good
progress had been made Steps had been taken to ensure appropnate time was allocated for
consideration of strategic matters The board had considered leadership and succession planning with
particular focus on the development of management below the Executive Committee level Durnng the
year the board reviewed progress against the 5 year talent management and succession plan and the
outputs from the 2012/13 talent management process In addition, the board reviewed the company’s
regulatory performance position, including performance by peer companies

This year's review confirmed continued board strengths, including the quality of the relationship
between executive and non-executive directors, a diverse and complementary balance of skills and
experience and effective use of time The only suggested improvements to effectiveness were n
relation to the annual offsite board strategy discussions which had been impacted by the considerable
amount of time that had been required to be devoted In the year to the preparations for submission of
the Final Business Plan to Ofwat It was anticipated that should not be the case in the current year

The board will continue to formally review progress against the recommendations ansing from the
board effectiveness reviews every six months

Board committees

As previously reported on pages 38 and 39, the board committees operate at the ultimate parent
company level rather than the company level The Severn Trent Plc board has established an
effective commuittee structure to assist in the discharge of its responsibilities to the group The terms of
reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees comply with the provisions of the
Governance Code (except as reported on page 39) and are avallable for inspection, together with the
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terms of reference of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee and Executive Committee, on the
Severn Trent Plc website {(www severntrent com) or on wntien request from the Company Secretary

Reports from the Chairmen of these committees are set out on pages 52 to 76 of the Severn Trent Plc
Annual Repont and Accounts, which 1s available online (www severntrent com)

Whilst the board committees are not duplicated at the company level, in practice their remit includes
work in respect of the company In particular

(1 the Nominations Committee assists the board by keeping the composition of the board of the
company under review and conducting a rnigorous and transparent process when making or renewing
appointments of directors to the board,

(1} the Audit Committee assists the board in discharging its responsibiliies for the integnty of the
systems of internal controls and monitoring the effectiveness and objectivity of the internal and
external auditors The Audit Committee reviews the statutory and regulatory accounts prior to therr
approval by the board of the company

The regulated activities carried out by the company also require two annual reporting requirements to
Ofwat which are reviewed by the Audit Committee an annual submission on the company's regulatory
obligations known as the Annual Regulatory Performance Report, together with the Annual Regulatory
Complance Statement, and a statement that underpins the customer charges made by the company,
known as the Principal Statement

In May 2013 the Audit Committee reviewed the assurance framework in place for the Annual
Regulatory Comphance Statement process In September and November 2013 the Audit Committee
reviewed the process, tmelne and assurance framework for the production of the 2014 Principal
Statement and its submission to Ofwat

Delotte make reports to Ofwat in respect of the company's regulatory accounts The Annual
Regulatory Performance Report, which provides an overall picture of company perfermance, covers
many aspects which are not financial and the company appoints engineering consultants, Atkins, to
report on those aspects The Audi Committee receives reports from Atkins on therr work as part of its
review of the Annual Regulatory Returns

An additional requirement during the year was oversight of the assurance processes which were
designed to ensure that a high quality plan was submitted to Ofwat as part of PR14 This involved both
internal assurance processes and assurance provided by a number of external assurance providers
for specific aspects of the Final Business Plan submssion The Audit Committee reviewed the overall
processes in September 2013 and in November 2013 reviewed the draft reports recerved from the
assurance providers The Audit Committee’s findings were reported to the board as part of s
deliberations prior to the submission of the Final Business Plan in December 2013,

(m) the Corporate Responsibility Committee reviews the key non-financial nsks and opportunihes and
monitors progress, and

(w) the Remuneration Committee determines the Severn Trent Plc policy on the remuneration of
executive directors, other members of the Executive Committee and the Chairman of the board
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The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements of the group, for the year
ended 31 March 2014 The Govemnance section set out on pages 38 to 45 forms part of this report

Principal activity

The principal activiies of the company are the provision and the treatment of water and the removal of
waste water in the UK There have not been any significant changes to the company’s pnincipal activities in
the year under review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in
the company’s activities in the next year

Business review

The Strategic report on pages 1 to 35 provides detatled information relating to the company, its business
model and strategy, the operation of its business and the results and financial position for the year ended
31 March 2014

Details of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the company are set out in the Risk management
section on pages 30 to 35

Directors and their interests
Biographies of the directors currently serving on the board are set out on pages 36 and 37

All of the directors at the year end are also directors of Severn Trent Plc In accordance with the UKLA
Listing Rule 9 8 6, their interests in the share capital of Severn Trent Plc are disclosed in the Annual Report
and Accounts of that company for the year ended 31 March 2014

None of the directors retain any notifiable interest in the shares of the company or any other subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2014

Details of directors’ service agreements and the interests of the directors in the shares of Severn Trent Plc
are shown on pages 60 to 76 of the Severn Trent Plc remuneration report

Remuneration details

The Severn Trent Plc Remuneration Committee (the ‘Remuneration Committee’) addresses the need to
balance risk and reward The Remuneration Committee monitors the vanable pay arrangements to take
account of the nsk levels ensunng an emphasis on long term and sustanable performance The
Remuneration Committee believes that the incentive schemes are appropnately managed and that the
choice of performance measures and targets does not encourage undue rnsk taking by the executives so
that the long term performance of the business I1s not compromised by the pursuit of short term value The
schemes incorporate a range of internal and external performance metrics, measurning both operational and
financial performance over differing and overlapping performance pernods providing a rounded assessment
of overall company performance

Directors’ remuneration and annual bonus scheme
Remuneration for executive directors comprises the following elements

base salary and benefits,
annual bonus scheme,

long term incentive plan, and
pension plan

As all directors are also directors of Severn Trent Pic, details of their emoluments can be found in the
Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc available on the Severn Trent Plc website

As outhned in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts, the non-executive Chairman, Andrew

Duff, and non-executive plc directors, do not participate in the company's incentive arrangements, 1e
annual bonus or share schemes
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Base salaries and benefits

Base salanes for directors are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committeeand take effect from 1
July Salanes are set in ine with reference to individual performance, expenence, contribution, together
with developments In the relevant employment market (having regard to the market median for similar roles
in publicly quoted companies of a comparable size and practice in other water companies} and intermnal
relatvities The Remuneration Commitiee gives due consideration to the economic chimate, affordability
and the broader employee salary review policy when setting base salary levels

In addition to base salary, directors receive a benefits package which contractually includes car allowance,
membership of company pension scheme or cash allowance In lieu, private medical insurance, kife
assurance and incapacity benefits scheme Directors may also take advantage of the Severn Trent flexible
benefit scheme open to all employees

Annual Bonus Scheme 2013/14

The directors’ Annual Bonus Scheme (ABS) focuses on the achievement of specific strategic goals which
are intended to dnive the creation of operational efficiencies and improvements in business performance
The bonus scheme operates on a balanced scorecard of measures based on the company Key
Performance Indicators (KPls), which include operational performance, leakage and customer service The
scheme altnbutes score points to each KPIl and the bonus outturn i1s determined by reference to the
aggregate number of points awarded across all the KPIs Bonus targets were set and measured for the
period 1 Apnl 2013 to 31 March 2014 (detailled overieaf)

Each executive director had between 80% and 90% of ther maximum bonus opportunity linked toc the
performance of Severn Trent Water (the CEQ of Severn Trent Services had 10%) and a proportion
measured against personal objectives The Finance Director and CEO of Severn Trent Services were also
measured against the performance of Severn Trent Services

The ABS i1s designed to encourage improved performance, with targets established by the Severn Trent Plc
Remuneration Committee to align executive directors’ interests with shareholders The maximum annual
bonus opportunity for the executive directors 1s 120% of salary For the achievement of target performance,
60% of salary 1s awarded

The bonus outturn  respect of Severn Trent Water performance was operated by reference to a balanced
scorecard of measures, based on the 10 KPls employed in the previous year The Remuneration
Committee believes that the use of the Severn Trent Water KPIs continues to be both an effective and
challenging annual bonus metric and meets the needs of the business The bonus enttlement was
determined by reference to the aggregate number of points awarded across all the KPIs The targets taken
together are considered by the board to have an impact on the longer term financial performance of the
company and a number of them are reported to Ofwat

The table below shows the points awarded by the Remuneration Committee for bonus purposes under

each of the 10 selected KPls in relation to the 2013/14 ABS As a consequence the Severn Trent Water
bonus award was 63 2% of the maximum opportunity
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2013/14 201314 | 2013/14 outturn Points
Key Area KPI_| Measure target Stretch awarded
Lost Time Incidents per
1 100,000 hours worked 028 027 021 130
Employee Employee motivation- Quest
2 | (engagement index) 79% 80% 81% 130
Service Incentive Mechanism-
4 Qualitative 4 52 473 448 99
Service Incentive Mechamism-
Customer 5 | Quanttative 162 154 147 130
7 Serviceability — Waslte Water 75 66 57 130
8 Serviceability - Water 70 68 201 0
Capital Expenditure versus
9 Final Determination 0% 02% 0% 100
Financial Operating expenditure versus
11 Final Determination 0% 0 6% 0% 100
Pollution Incidents {cat 1,2
Environment 12 &3) 491 475 449 130
16 | Leakage ml/d- Post MLE 456 449 453 130
Total 1079

The bonus payments awarded are detaled below Please note that they incorporate amounts in respect of
personal targets and, in the case of the Finance Director and CEO of Severn Trent Services, Severn Trent
Services’ performance

Director Value of bonus award
Tony Ballance £161,974
Martin Kane £126,534
Michael McKeon £344,834
Andy Smith £210,497
Tony Wray £473,064

Half of the above bonus awards are deferred into shares to be held for three years following payment and
subject to continued employment If the executive 1s summarnly dismissed without notice under his/her
employment contract then the deferred bonuses are forfeited In all other cases of cessation of employment
the deferred bonus 1s not lost and the shares automatically vest on the dealing day after the cessation of
employment The Remuneration Committee determines whether 1t 1s appropriate to release the shares in
‘good leaver' cases A clawback provision continues to operate Annual bonus payments to executive
directors are not pensionable

Annual Bonus Targets for 2014/15

The Remuneration Commuttee has reviewed the operation of the plan and concluded that it should operate
on the following basts for 2014/15 At least 50% of the bonus will be based on the Severn Trent Water
balanced scorecard (compnsing the 10 KPls outlined on the previous page), with the balance related to key
business objectives and personal contnbution No mere than 20% will relate to personal contribution  For
2014/15 the mix will be 50% on the Severn Trent Water scorecard, 40% on key business objectives and
10% on personal performance Martin Kane's bonus will be based 90% on the performance of Severn Trent
Services and 10% on personal chjectives

Share Matching Plan

Under the Share Matching Plan ("SMP’) for 2013/14 directors were eligible to receive matching share
awards over those shares which have been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual
bonus scheme as descnbed above For each share deferred, half a matching share 1s awarded subject to
satisfying the Tetal Shareholder Return {‘TSR') performance cntena Further details of the 2013/14 SMP
can be found in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts Please note that following investor
feedback and our aim to simplify the executive reward package, no further awards will be made under the
share matching plan from 2014
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Long Term Incentive Plan

Directors may also participate in the Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP') Under this plan conditional awards
of performance shares are made to directors up to an annual maximum hmit and vest after three years
subject to out performance of the Return on Regulatory Capital Value (“RoRCV") set by Ofwat RoRCV
replaced TSR in 2011 to focus attention towards the creation of long term value to align with the interests of
shareholders and Ofwat Shareholder approval 1s being sought at the Severn Trent Plc AGM in July 2014
to replace the LTIP as it reaches the end of its 10 year term The performance metrics will remain the same
and the award levels for 2014 will be increased to 125% of salary for the Chief Executive and 80% of salary
for the other executive directors, which will incorporate the value of the SMP forgone Further detaills are
contained in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Share Incentive Plan

A company-wide Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP’) operates whtch includes a performance condition based on
the award of points for the 10 balanced scorecard KPIs used for the ABS For the year 2013/14 awards of
shares to the value of £474 will be made to all eligible employees

Shareholding Requirements

The company operates shareholding guidelnes under which executive directors are expected to build and
maintain a mimmum holding of shares in Severn Trent Plc Following a review of the shareholding
guidelines against market practice, they have been increased from 150% to 200% of base salary in respect
to the Chief Executive and from 100% to 125% of base salary in respect of the other executive directors
Executive directors are expected to retan all of the net of tax number of shares they receive through the
LTIP and other share based plans until good progress i1s being made to meet the guideline holdings  Full
details of the shareholding requirements for directors can be found in the Annual Report and Accounts of
Severn Trent Plc

Insurance and indemnities

The company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance in respect of legal action that might be
brought against its directors and officers In accordance with the company's articles of association, and to
the extent permitted by law, iIn November 2011 the company indemnified each of its directors and other
officers of the group aganst certain llabilities that may be incurred as a result of their positions with the
company

Indemnities were also entered into with Dr Angela Strank, Liv Garfield and Phiip Remnant and upon their
appointments to the board n January, March and Apnl 2014 respectively

Severn Trent Water does not have in place any indemnities for the benefit of the auditors

Employees
The average number of employees in the company 1s 5,634 (2013 5,458)

Severn Trent Water belleves that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key factor in being a successful
business Apart from ensunng an individual has the ability to do the job we do not disciminate in any way
and make every effort to ensure that those with disabihties can take up employment with us We endeavour
to retain employees in the workforce  they become disabled, we make all reasonable adjustments to their
role and, If necessary, look for redeployment opportunities to support them in seeking an alternative role
within the company We ensure that training, career development and promotion opportunities are available
for alt our employees irrespective of their gender, race, age or disability

The provision of occupational health programmes 1s of crucial importance and, in particular, work has been
undertaken during the year to promote awareness of mental health 1ssues and the employee assistance
programme available to employees

The company actively encourages employee involvement and consultation and places emphasis on
keeping its employees informed of its activity and financial performance by way of company-wide
communication forums, bnefings and publication to staff of all relevant informaton and corporate
announcements To help align employees’ interests with the success of the company's performance,
Severn Trent offers two employee share plans The Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme, an HM Revenue and
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Customs approved SAYE plan, 1s offered to employees on an annual basis The Severn Trent Share
Incentive Plan, approved by HM Revenue and Customs, makes an annual award of shares to employees,
based on performance against the company’s KPI targets

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development 1s set out In note 1 (1) to the financial statements on page 65
Details of research and development activity undertaken by the company duning the year 1s set out on
pages 1 to 29 of the Strategic report

Regulation ‘Ring fencing’

In accordance with the requirements of Ofwat, the board confirmed that, as at 31 March 2014, it had
avallable to it sufficient nghts and assets, not including financial resources, which would enable a special
administrator to manage the affairs, business and property of the company in order that the purposes of a
special administration order could be achieved If such an order were made

Regulation ‘Cross directorships’

It 1s the policy of the company that directors and employees of the company may be directors of related
companies when this 1s 1n the best interest of the company, and where appropnate arrangements are in
place to avaid conflicts of interest

Post balance sheet events
There are no post balance sheet events

Dividends

The company’s dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are connsistent with the company’s regulatory
obhigations The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year further to consideration of these
obligations The ordinary dividend declared by the company in 2014 amounted to £340 million (2013 £72
million)

Contributions for political purposes

The company’'s policy 1s not to make any donations for political purposes in the UK, or tc donate to EU
political parties or incur EU poltical expenditure Accordingly we have not made any political donations or
incurred political expenditure in the financial year under review

internal control and rnisk management

The board has overall responsibility for the company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness The board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control including financial,
operational, compliance and nsk management at least annually in accordance with the requirements of the
Governance Code and the guidance set out within t The system of internal control 1s reviewed for
effectiveness and adequacy

The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss, as it 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve
business objectives

The board reviews nsk management and the adequacy of the system of internal control through the Severn
Trent Plc Audit Committee The board also keeps under review ways in which to enhance the control and
audit arrangements in the company The Audit Committee receives reports every six months from the Chief
Executive on the significant risks faced by the company These include an assessment of the effectiveness
of controls over each of those nsks Action ptans to improve controls where necessary are momtored
regularly Any significant control weaknesses that have been identified are also reported to the Audit
Committee The Internal Audit department provides objective assurance and advice on nsk management
and control The external auditors also report on significant control Issues to this committee

The board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing

the principal risks faced by the company have been in place for the year to 31 March 2014 and up to the
date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts
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Key elements of the company’s processes and procedures are

clearly defined and communicated strategic and business objectives,

an organisation structure with clear ines of accountability and responsibility,

performance management and succession planning systems,

regular, structured reviews of business risk by senior management and the Executive Committee,

a scheme of delegated authonty, approval of plans, budgets and significant investments,

robust business planning including the identification and implementation of relevant improvement
plans, and

+ monthly reporting and monitonng of financial results, regulatory compliance and other operational
performance indicators, and independent assurance provided by both internal and external auditors

Auditors
Deloitte LLP have indicated theirr willingness to continue as auditors and, in accordance with Section 487 of

the Companies Act 2006, are deemed to be reappointed

The directors confirmed that

¢ So far as each of them 1s aware, there Is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors
are unaware, and

e Each of them has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a director to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are
aware of that infermation

Relevant audit information means information needed by the company’s auditors In connection with
preparing therr report This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Going concern

The company operates in an industry that 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competition Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set price imits that it believes will
enable the water companies to finance their actvities As a consequence the directors believe that the
company 1s well placed to manage its business nsks successfully The company i1s funded far its
investment and cash flow needed at least for next year

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue In

operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, we continue to adopt the going concern basis
in prepanng the annual report and accounts

By order of the board

BNl

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel and Company Secretary
28 May 2014
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Financial statements in accerdance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial statements for each financial year Under that law

the directors have elected to prepare the Financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting

Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework Under company law the directors must not approve the

Financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the

company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In prepanng these Financial statements,

the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting poticies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Financial statements, and

+ prepare the Financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s iInappropnate to presume that
the company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure that the Financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The drectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information
ncluded on the company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissermination of Financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

The directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the company's
performance, business models and strategy

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

e the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framewaork, give a
true and farr view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company, and

o the management report, which 1s incorporated into the directors’ report, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

By order of the board

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chairman Finance Director

s WA )
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Water Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SEVERN TRENT WATER LIMITED

Opinion on financial statements of Severn Trent Water Limited

In our opinton

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affarrs as at 31 March 2014 and of its profit for
the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

The financial statements compnse the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive iIncome, the
balance sheet, the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 36
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Going concern
We have reviewed the directors’ statement contained within the Directors’ Report on page 51 that the
company 1$ a going concern We confirm that
+ we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements 1s appropriate, and
+ we have not identified any matenal uncertainbes that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement 1s not a guarantee as
to the company’s ability to continue as a going concern
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Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement

descnbed below are those that had the greatest effect on

our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement

team

Risk

Deterrmination of the prowvision for
impairment of trade recewvables

Provisions are made against trade
receivables based on hustoncal
experience of levels of recovery from

accounts in particular agemng categones

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

We reviewed and challenged the information used io
determine the bad debt provision by considering cash
collection performance against historical trends and the
level of bad debt charges over time Specifically, we
reviewed the actual histery of slow paying customers

in the period using data analytics to understand the
collection of previously aged debtors and to recompute
the ageing analysis We also tested the key controls
relating to the data used in the bad debt model and
agreed a sample of this data back to its source, being the
billing system

Revenue recognition risk in relation to the
estimation of unbilled revenue

For water and waste water customers with
water meters, the amount recognised
depends wupon the volume supplied,
including an estimate of the sales value of
units supplied between the date of the last
meter readng and the year end The
estimated usage 1s based upon histoncal
data and assumptions around
consumption patterns

We challenged the valdity of management's estmate of
the current year accrued revenue by companng actual
amounts billed to the estimate made in the pnor year to
determine the accuracy of the estimation techrmiques In
addition, we used data analytics to recompute the total
level of unbilled revenue for the current year as well as
testing the controls around the key data inpuis to the
model and agreed a sample of this data back to its
source

Determining the amount of retirement
benefit obligations

This process I1s complex and requires
management (after taking advice from therr
actuanal adwvisers) to make a number of
assumptions concerning long term nterest
rates, nflatton, salary and pension
Increases, Investment returns and longewvity

of current and future pensioners

With support from the pension specialists within our
audit team, we challenged the assumptions used in the
calculation of the pension scheme deficit as detalled In
note [x], specifically regarding the discount rate,
inflation rate and mortality assumptions with reference
to comparable market and other data

Determination of current and deferred tax
Provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertan tax
positions requires judgements to be made
regarding the result of negotiations with,
and enqurries from, tax authontes in a
number of junsdictions

With support from the tax specialists within our audit
team, we considered the likely outcomes of uncertain
tax posiions and reviewed correspondence with the tax
authonties to assess the appropriateness of the tax
provisions that have been recorded in the balance
sheet

The Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee's consideration of these nsks 1s set out on page 54 of the Severn
Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Qur audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and not to express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures Our opinion
on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of the nsks descnbed above, and we do not
express an opinion on these individual matters

Our application of materiality
We determined planning mateniality for the company to be £15 milion based on revenue
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We agreed with the Severn Trent plc Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit
differences in excess of £750,000, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reperting on quatitative grounds

An overview on the scope of our audit

Our audit was scoped by cbtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal
control, and assessing the nsks of matenal misstatement  Audit work to respond to the risks of material
misstatement was performed directly by the audit engagement team

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion
+ we have hot recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audi, or
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retumns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
+ the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report If in our opimon certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration have not been made We have nothing to report ansing from this matter

Other matters

Although not required to do so, the directors have voluntarnly chosen tc make a corporate governance
statement detaling the extent of their comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code We reviewed
the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s complance with the nine
provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under the International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you If, in our
opinion, information 1n the annual report 1s
« matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements, or
+ apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the
company acquired in the course of performing our audit, or
» otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our
knowledge acquired dunng the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual report 1s
fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual report appropnately discloses those matters that
we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have been disclosed We confirm that
we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors We also comply with International Standard
on Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality
control procedures are effective, understood and applied Our quality controls and systems include our
dedicated professional standards review team, strategically focused second partner reviews and
independent partner reviews

Page 55 of 126




This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and/or those further matters
we have expressly agreed to report to them on in our engagement letter and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are

appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation

of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financiat and non-financial infermation in the annual

report to identify maternal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any

information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge

acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal
sstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Jane itlock (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, UK

28 May 2014
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2013
Restated
{see note 2)
£m £m
Turnover 4 1,544 8 15110
Operating costs before exceptional items 5 {1,028 4) (1,015 4)
Exceptional operating income 6 82 133
Total operating costs {1,020 2) (1,002 1)
Profit before interest and tax 524 6 5089
Interest recevable 9 87 0 886
Interest payable 10 (332 2) (324 9)
Net finance costs (245 2) (236 3)
Gains/{losses) on financial instruments 11 496 (49 5)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3280 2231
Current tax excluding exceptional tax credit (56 9) (335)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional credit (14 6) 96
Exceptional tax credit 2347 400
Total taxation on profit on ordinary activities 12 1632 161
Profit for the financial year 482 2 2392

All results are from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Restated
(see note 2)
£m £m
Profit for the year 4922 2392
Other comprehensive Income
Iterns that will not be reclassified to the profit and loss account
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 132 (36 4}
Tax on net actuanal gain/loss {2 6) 65
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate (11 3) (3 2)
07 (33 1)
ltems that may be reclassified to the profit and loss account
Gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges 12 (378)
Deferred tax on gainfloss on cash flow hedges (22} 86
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss account in the period 33 162
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account {07} (37)
16 (16 5)
Other comprehensive incomef{loss) for the period 109 (49 8)
Total comprehensive income for the period 5031 1896
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2013
£m £m
Fixed assets
Goodwll 14 13 13
Intangible assets 15 693 890
Tangible fixed assets 16 6,988 3 6,7380
Investments 17 3479 347 9
Denvative financial assets 24 302 655
7,4370 7.2417
Current assets
Stocks 18 64 61
Debtors amounts falling due afier more than one year 19 2849 300 4
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 19 450 2 430 2
Denvative financial assets 24 94 09
Cash at bank and in hand 198 3286
7707 1,066 2
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 21 (732 3) (596 2)
Net current assets 384 4700
Total assets less current liabilities 74754 77117
Creditors amounts fallng due after more than one year 22 (5,406 3) {5,628 3)
Retirement benefit obligation 33 (348 3) (3837}
Provisions for labiities and charges 25 {687 2) (832 2)
Net assets 1,0336 867 5
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 27 1000 1000
Hedging reserve 28 (123 3) (134 9}
Profit and loss account 1,056 9 902 4
Total shareholder's funds 1,033 6 867 5

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 28 May 2014 They were signed on its behalf by

=

NV

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chairman Director
28 May 2014

Company Number 02366686
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Share Hedging Infrastructure Profit and loss
capital reserves reserves account Total
£ £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2012 1,000 0 (118 4) 3780 {515 5) 744 1
Profit for the year {restated, see note 2) - - - 2392 2392
Losses on cash flow hedges - (37 6) - - (37 6)
Deferred tax on {osses on cash flow hedges - 86 - - 86
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss
account - 16 2 - - 162
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account - (37) - - (37)
Actuanal losses (restated) - - - (36 4) (36 4)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses (restated) - - - 52 52
Tax on pension contnbutions - - - 13 13
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - (3 2) {32)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (16 5) - 206 1 189 6
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees’ services - - - 66 66
- shares purchased - - - (1 4) {14)
Bonus 1ssue of shares 3780 - (378 0) - -
Capital reducthion (1,278 0) - - 1,278 0 -
Current tax on share based payments - - - o7 07
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 0N {0 1)
Dividends paid - - _ (72 0) (72 0)
At 31 March 2013 1000 (134 9) - 902 4 867 5
Profit for the year - - - 492 2 492 2
Gans on cash flow hedges - 112 - - 112
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges - (22) - - 22)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss
account - 33 - - 33
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account - [(elrd’ - - (07}
Actuanal gains - - - 132 132
Deferred tax on actuanal gains - - - (2 6) (26)
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - (11 3} (11 3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 116 - 4815 503 1
Share options and LTIPs
- vatue of employees’ services - - - 58 58
- shares purchased - - - (2 8} (28)
Omdends paid - - - (340 0} (340 0)
At 31 March 2014 1000 (123 3) - 1,056 9 1,033 6
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013

Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 31 774 4 7579
Tax paid (14 5) {53 5)
Neat cash generated from operating activities 7599 704 4
Investing activities
Interest received 18 52
Dividends received from subsidianes 24 -
Receipts of amounts due from finance leases 57 05
Proceeds on disposal of intangible and tangible assets 101 156
Purchases of intangible assets (8 2} (14 9)
Purchases of tangible assets {473 4) {420 7)
Contnbutions and grants received 303 27 4
Net cash used in investing activities (431 3) {386 9)
Financing actrvities
Interest paid (186 8) {167 4)
Closed out swap - (44 3)
Interest element of finance lease payments (18 7) 227)
Dividends patd (340 0) (72 0)
Repayments of borrowings {168 6) -
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (13 0) (29 1)
Repayment of intercompany loans (320 2) (287 4)
New intercompany loans raised My 635 1
Purchase of shares in ultimate parent company (28) (14)
Net cash used in financing activities (637 4) 108
(Decrease)iincrease in cash and cash equivalents (308 8) 3283
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 3286 03
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period i98 328 6
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

a} Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis {see Directors’ report) under the histoncal cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of certamn financial assets and habilttes (including denvative instruments) at far value,
and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the requirements of the Umited Kingdom
Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act’) The pnncipal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently in the current and
preceding year are set out below

b) Basis of preparation

The company i1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Severn Trent Pic and 1s included in the consolidated accounts of Severn Trent Plc
Consequently, the directors have taken advantage of the exemption availlable under section 400 of the United Kingdom Compames
Act 2006 from prepanng group accounts

in the pnor year, the company elected to adopt early the new accounting framework 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council The
company meets the defimtion of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) Accordingly, in the year
ended 31 March 2013, the company adopted FRS 101 ‘Reduced Bisclosure Framework’ and ceased to apply all UK Accounting
Standards 1ssued pnor to FRS 100 Therefore the recognition and measurement requirements of EU-adopted IFRS have been
apphed, with amendments where necessary in order to comply with Comparies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/410) as these are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard n refaton
to share based payments, financral instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain
assets, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group accounts of Severn Trent Pic The group accounts of Severn Trent
Plc are avallable to the public and can be aobtained as set cut In note 36

c} Turnover
Tumover represents the far value of consideration recewvable, excluding value added tax, in the ordinary course of business for
services provided

Turnover 1s not recogmsed untl the service has been provided to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mans water and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The accrualis
estimated using a defined methodolegy based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by tariff, which 1s caleulated from
histoncal billing infermation

d) [Interest receivable and similar income

Interest mcome 15 accrued on a time basis by reference to the principa! outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable
Dividend income from investments 1s recogmsed when the company's nghts to receive payment have been established Interest
and dividend income are included in interest recervable and similar income

e} Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are income or expenditure, which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the opinion of the
directors, be disclosed by virtue of therr size or nature if the financial statements are to give a true and fair view

f} Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the profit and
loss account because it excludes items of Income and expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible The company's hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided n full, using the hability method, on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assels
and habilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements A deferred tax asset 15 only recognised to the extent it s
probable that sufficient taxabte profits will be avaidabte in the future to utiise i Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non-thscounted
basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s reahsed or the deferred tax hability 1s settled
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Deferred tax assets and habiities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets aganst current tax
habilites and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the company ntends to settle its current
tax assets and hiabilties on a net basis

g) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired Fair value
adjustments based on provisional estimates are amended within one year of the acquisition, if required, with a corresponding
adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out in note 1m) below and camed at cost less accumulated
impairment losses

h) Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitahised at cost Following mihial recognition, the histoncal cost model 1s apphed to
intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight ine basis over ther estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years
Computer software 3-10
Other intangible assets 2-20

Amortisation 15 mcluded within eperating costs

Intangtble assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of iImpawment exst
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1} Research and development
Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s incurred Development expenditure 1s capitalised as an intangible fixed asset and
wrnitten off over its expected useful economic hife where the following cntena are met

its techniczlly feasible to create and make the asset available for use or sale,

there are adequate resources available to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,
there 1s the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,

it 1s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and

the development cost can be measured rehably

]
Expenditure on tangible fixed assets relating to research and development projects 1s capitalised and wntten off over the expected
useful lives of those assets

]} Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are held at cost (or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to FRS 101) less accumulated
depreciation The costs of like for hke replacements of mfrastructure components are recognised 1n the profit and loss account as
they anse Where tt 1s probable that the expenditure will cause future economic benefits to flow to the company, then costs are
capitalised

Where tangible fixed assets are transferred to the company from customers or developers, the fair value of the asset transferred 1s
recogrused in the balance sheet Fair value I1s determined based on estimated depreciated replacement cost Where the transfer s
it exchange for connection to the network and there 1s no further obhgation, the corresponding credit 1s recognised immediately in

turnover Where the transfer 1s considered to be linked to the provision of ongoing services the corresponding credit 1s recorded in

deferred income and refeased to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the related assets

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets, that necessanly take a substanbal
period of ime to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets unti such time as the assets are ready for
their intended use

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated to their estimated residual values over their estimated usefu! lives, with the exception of
freehold land which is not depreciated Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commissioned

The estimated useful ives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15
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k) Leased assets

Where the company obtains assets under leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of an asset to the company as lessee (finance leases), the lower of the fair value of the leased assel or the present value of the
minimum lease payments 1s capitalised as an assel and a corresponding llability representing the obligation to the lessor is
recognised Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the
obhgation to the lessor and the finance charge being wntten off to the profit and loss account at a constant rate over the penod of
the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the estimated useful ife and
the lease penod

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating leases Rental
cosls ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land are normally
treated as operating leases, unless ownership is transferred to the company at the end of the lease

Where the company transfers substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee (finance lease}), the assets
are accounted for as if they had been sold, and the net investment in the lease 1s shown as a receivable due from the lessee Over
the lease term, rentals are apportioned between a reduction in the net investment in the lease and finance lease income, such that
finance lease mncome produces a constant rate of return on the net cash investment In the lease Finance lease income 1s included
within interest receivable and similar income

1) Grants and contributions

Grants and contnbutions received in respect of fixed assets, including certain charges made as a result of new connections to the
water and sewerage networks, are treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account over the useful economic
Iife of those fixed assets

Grants and contnbutions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in
operating costs in the profit and loss account in the penod that they become recevable

m} Impairment of fixed assets

if the recoverable amount of goodwill, a tangible fixed asset, or any other fixed asset 1s estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carmying amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Severn Trent Water 1s considered to be a single
cash-generating umit Therefore where the asset does not generale cash fiows that are independent from other assets, the
company eshtmates the recoverable amount of the company as a8 whole Recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less coslts
to sell or estimated value In use at the date the impairment review 1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell represents the amount
obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable and willing thirg parties, less costs of
disposal Value In use represents the present value of fulure cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-generating unit,
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit
or asset

The discount rate used 1s based on the estimated cost of caprtal of the asset or cash-generating unit

Goodwill 1s tested for imparrment annually tmpairment reviews are also camed out if there 1s an indication that an impairment may
have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that fixed assets are not carmed above their estimated recoverable
amounts

Impairments are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

n} Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impaiment

o) Stocks
Stock and work in progress Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour, matenals, transport and
attnbutable overheads
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p} Retirement benefits

The company 1s the sponsonng employer of the Severn Trent group's defined benefit pension schemes  As there 15 no contractual
agreement or stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual group entities this company has recogrised the
full cost and net deficit relating to the schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabiities 1s recorded
on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value using bid pnce for assets with quoted prices Defined benefit
pension scheme liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date by an independent actuary us:ng the projected unit methed and
discounted at the current rate of retum on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the habiity Service cost,
which 1s the increase in the present value of the liabilities of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected to anse from
employee service in the penod, 1s included in operating costs Finance income and cost are calculated by applying the discount rate
used to determine the present value of the scheme labiities at the opening balance sheet date to the value of the scheme assets
or habilites respectively

Actuanal gans and lesses ansing from experience adjustments, changes (n actuanal assumptons and amendments to pension
plans are charged or credited to equity and recorded in the statement of comprehensive iIncome Contributions made by other
Severn Trent group compantes have been disclosed within actuanal gains and losses in the statement of changes In
comprehensive income

The company participates in the Severn Trent group's defined contribution pension schemes Coninbutions to defined contribution
pension schemes are charged to the income statement in the penod in which they fall due

q) Provisions
Provisions are recognised where

=« there s a present obhigation as a result of a past event,
« 1tis probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
* arelable estimate of this amount can be made

Self-insurance provisions are recognised for claims notffied and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified, based on
advice from the parent company's independent insurance advisers

Where the effect 1s matenal provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the nsks specific
to the liability

r} Financial instruments

(1) Fmancial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categones
« at farr value through profit or loss,

held to matunty investments,

available for sale financial assets,

loans and receivables, and

denvatives designated as hedging instruments

. & »

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset 1s classified al fair value through profit or loss if it 15 so designated or if it 15 classified as “held for trading”
Cenvative financial assets that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are required to be classified as “held for
trading” The company does not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for trading

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or logses ansing on remeasurement
recogmised in gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account Far value 1s detemmined using the methodology
descnbed in note 24 {d} Interest received in respect of denvative financial assets I1s Included m interest receivable
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r} Financial instruments continued

Held to maturity investments

Where the company has the ability and intent to hold an investment to matunty the financial asset Is classified as held to matunty
Such financial assets are measured at amorhsed cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or losses being
recognised in the profit and loss account

Denvatives designated as hedging instruments

The fair value of denvative financial assets that are designated as hedging instruments 1s determined using the methodology
included 1n note 24(d)

Available for sale financial assels

After initial recognition at cost {being the fair value of the consideration paid), investments which are classified as availlable for sale
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income When an available for sale investment
1s disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss previously recognised n other comprehensive income 1s taken to the profit and loss
account Where there 1s no aclive market in the investments and the fair value cannot be measured relhably, the investments are
held at cost

Loans and recevables

Trade recevables, loans and other recervables that have fixed or determinable payments and that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables Such assels are measured at fair value on initial recognition and are subsequently
measured at amoriised cost using the effective interest rate method unless there 1s objective evidence that the asset s impaired.,
where 1t 15 wntten down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable amount 1s recognised as an expense

Trade recevables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are assessed collectively for impairment by reference to the
group’s histoncal collection expenence for receivables of similar age

{n) Financial habiities

Financial liabihties are classified as either
¢ financial habilites at fair value through profit or loss,
« other financtal habiliies,
e denvatives designated as hedging instruments

Financral rabiiies at fair value through profit or loss

A financial hability 1s classified at fair vatue through profit or loss if it 1s so designated or if 1t 1s classified as “held for trading”
Denvative financia! labilities that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are required to be classified as "held for
trading” The company does not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for trading Financial habilibes at fair value through
profit or loss are stated at farr value, with any gains or losses ansing on remeasurement recognised In gains/losses on financial
instruments in the profit and loss account Fair value ts determined using the methodolegy described in Severn Trent Plc's group
financial statements Interest paid in respect of denvative financial habiibes 1s included m interest payable

QOther financial rabihties
Other financial habilities, mcluding borrowings, are intially recognised at fair value less transaction costs After imbial recogmtion,
other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed

Denvatives designated as hedging instruments

The fair value of denvative financial habilities that are designated as hedging instruments 1s determined using the methodology
included in note 24(d)
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r) Financal instruments conttnued

{m) Hedge accounting

The company uses denvative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge its risks assocrated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations Such denvative instruments are recognised
and measured i accordance with the accounting policies descnbed above

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the company documents
¢ the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
« its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking hedge transactions, and
« whether the hedging instrument Is highly effective in offsetuing changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropnate) of the
hedged iem

The company continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or ne longer qualifies for
hedge acceounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationship it 1s remeasured for changes in farr value of the hedged nisk at the
balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in gainsflosses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account
The gan or loss on the hedging instrument s taken to gains/osses on financial INstruments in the profit and loss account where the
effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the
hedged nsk 1s amortised to the profit and loss account from that date

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogmised directly in equity
and the ineffective portion in gainsflosses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account The gains or losses deferred in
equity in this way are recycled through gainsflosses on financial instruments n the profit and loss account in the same penod in
which the hedged underying transaction or firm commitment i1s recognised in the profit and loss account

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 1s held In
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to gansfiosses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account i
the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

(v} Embedded derivatives

Dernvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their nsks and
charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not carmed at farr value, with gains and
losses reported in gansflosses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account

s) Share hased payments
The Severn Trent group operates a number of equity settied share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant

The farr value of employee services 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated using an
appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting condiions The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that
are not expected to vest as a result of falling to meet a non-market condition

The grant of awards of shares of the ulimate parent company 1s treated as a capital contnbution and credited to reserves When
awards vest, payments made to the ultmate parent company for the 1ssue of shares are charged against the capital contnbutions
previously received in respect of the same awards Any payments in excess of capital contnibulions are treated as distributions

t) Foreign currency

Forexgn currency transactions ansing dunng the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the
transachon All profits and losses on exchange ansing dunng the year are dealt with through the profit and loss account

Page 68 of 126




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

2 New accounting policies and future requirements

The company has adopted IFRS 13 “Far Value Measurement” in this financial year This standard sets out the approach to
determining fair values in finanaial statements and provides additional guidance on how to measure far value but does not change
when fair value 1s permitted or required In particular, the standard requires the company to take account of its own credit risk in
detemining the fair value of financial ilabilities The standard 1s apphed prospectively and hence has no impact on amounts
previously recognised In the current pencd the fair value of denvative financial habilities and the gain on financial instruments was
£9 8 milhon higher as a result of the adoption of this standard and 1s reflected within note @

The company has also adopted I1AS 19 “Employee Benefits” (revised) The revised standard changes the method of calculating the
net finance cost on defined benefit pension schemes Previously the discount rate used to caleulate the scheme liabilities at the
previous balance sheet date was apphed to the liabilities and the expected retum on the scheme’s assets was applied to the

assets Under the rewised standard the discount rate 1s appled to the net deficit to determine the net finance cost Scheme
administration costs were previously deducted from the expected return on assets Such costs are now included in operating costs
There 1s no change to the measurement of the net surplus or deficit recogmsed in the balance sheet The difference between the
interest income calculated on the scheme assets and the actual return 1s recognised in other comprehensive income as an actuanal
gain or loss
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The net impact of this change 1s shown below

2014 2013
£m £m
Profit for the pencd
Operating profit (30) {2 6)
Net finance cost (17 2) (12 4)
Decrease in profit before tax for the penod {20 2) {15 0)
Deferred tax 490 35
Decrease in profit for the penod {16 2) {11 5)
Other comprehensive income
Net actuanal gains 202 150
Tax on acluanal gains (4 0) (35)
Decrease in other comprehensive loss 16 2 115

{mpact on net assets - -

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” was issued in May 2011 with an effective date of 1 January 2013 The EU has
adopted these standards with effect from 1 January 2014 but with early application permitted The company has elected not to
apply this standard early and will adopt 1t with effect from 1 Apnl 2014

IFRS 12 provides disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, associates, joint agreements and structured entiies which were
previously covered in |AS 27, IAS 28 and IAS 31 Additonal disclosures may be required in the company financral statements to
meet the requirements of the standard

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments™ 1s likely to affect the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments  This standard has not yet
been adopted by the EU
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3 Significant accounting jJudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, the company 1s required to make certain judgements, estimates and
assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the information available

The more sigmficant judgements were

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires Judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiations with and
enquines from tax authorittes The assessments made are based on advice from independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing
discussions with the tax authonty

The key accounting estimates were

a) Depreciation and carrying amounts of langible fixed assets

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for tangible fixed assets requires estmates to be made of the
useful ives of the assets The estimates are based on engineenng data and the company’s experience of similar assets Details
are set cul in note 1))

b} Unbiiled reventie

The company raises hills and recognises revenue in accordance with its nght to receve revenue in ine with the imits established by
the penodic regulatory price review processes For water and waste water customers with water meters, the amount recognised s
dependent upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales value of units suppled between the date of the last meter read
and the year end Meters are read on a cyclical basis and the group recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated
usage from the last billing to the end of the financial year The estimated usage 1s based on histoncal data, judgement and
assumphons

¢) Prowision for impairment of trade recenvables

Prowvisions are made against trade recevables based on histoncal expenence of levels of recovery from accounts in a particular
ageing category The actual amounts collected could differ from the estmated level of recovery which could impact operating
results

d} Retrement benefit obhgations

As the sponsonng employer of the Severn Trent group’s defined benefit pension scheme, the company recognises the full cost and
net deficit relating to the schemes Determining the amount of retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such
benefits requires assumptions to be made conceming long term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, investment
retums and longevity of current and future pensioners Changes in these assumptons could significantly impact the amount of the
obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The company makes assumptions conceming these matters with the assistance
of advice from independent qualified actuaries Details of the assumptions made are set out in note 33 to the financial statements

4. Revenue

The principal activity of the company is the treatment and the provision of water and the removal of waste water in England and
Wales

2014 2013

£m fm

Water and sewerage services 1,536 6 15026
Other services 82 84
Total turnover 1,544 8 15110
Interest recevable (note 9) 870 886
Total revenue 16318 15996
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5. Operating costs

2014 2013
Before
Exceptional Exceptional Before
COStS costs Total Excepuonal costs Exceptional costs Total
Restated Restated
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Wages and salares 1858 - 1858 176 3 - 176 3
Social secunty costs 173 - 17 3 16 3 - 163
Pension costs 303 - 303 288 - 288
Share based paymenis 61 - 61 66 - 66
Total employee costs 2395 - 2395 2280 - 2280
Power 653 - 653 606 - 606
Carbon reduction commitment 59 - 59 57 - 57
Raw matenals and consumables 425 - 425 43 4 - 43 4
Rates 74 8 - 748 725 - 725
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 313 - 313 318 - 318
Service charges 36 - 36 319 - 3189
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 267 5 - 2675 261 4 - 261 4
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 280 - 280 289 - 289
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 140 3 - 140 3 1477 - 147 7
Hired and contracted services 140 3 - 140 3 1302 - 1302
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 04 - 04 06 - 06
- other 03 - 03 - - -
Hire of plant and machinery 31 - 31 39 - 39
(Profit)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (0 3) (82) (85 14 (13 3) (119
Research and development 41 - 41 47 - 47
Forelgn exchange losses - - - 01 - 01
Other operating costs 559 - 559 580 - 580
1,130 5 (8 2) 1,122 3 1,1118 {13 3) 1,098 5
Release from deferred income {95) - (8 5) (8 3) - (93)
Own work capitalised (92 6) - (92 6) {87 1) - (87 1)
1,028 4 (82) 1,020 2 1,015 4 (13 3) 1,0021
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the auditors
2014 2013
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts 02 02
- other assurance services 04 -
Total audit fees 06 02
Fees payable to the company's auditors for non-audit services 01 01
07 03
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6. Exceptional items before tax

2014 2013

£m Em

Profit on disposal of fixed assets (82) {133

7. Employee information

The average number of employees (including executive directors) dunng the year was

2014 2013

Number Number

Average number of employees 5,634 5,458

8 Directors’ interests and remuneration

a) Directors’ interests

All of the directors as at the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Pic, the ultimate parent undertaking, and their
interests in the share capital of that company are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of that company for the year ended
31 March 2014 Share options were granted and exercised in accordance with the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme as
appropnate

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 97'7/gp each by virtue of having received
contingent awards of shares under the Sevem Trent Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}), deferred shares under the Severn Trent
Annual Bonus Scheme and contingent shares under the Share Matching Plan

The individual interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become entitled,
are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2014
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b} Directors’ remuneration

2014 2013
£m £m

Aggregate directors' emoluments dunng the year (excluding pension contrtbutions) 46 47
Pension contributions 01 01
47 48

1} The emoluments of the non-executive directors are paid by Severn Trent Plc

1) Retirement benefits are accruing to one directors (2013 three directors) under a defined benefit scheme and one director (2013
two directors) under a defined contnbution scheme

) Five directors (2013 five directors) exercised share options or received LTIP awards which vested duning the year
c) Highest paid director

2014 2013
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contnbutions) 13 13

The accrued pension at 31 March 2014 for the tughest pad director was £30,743 per annum (2013 £29,818 per annum) The
pension entitlement 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year The highest paid
director cid not exercise any share options duning the year

9 Interest Receivable

2014 2013
Restated
£m £m
Interest recervable on

- bank deposits 12 08
- amounts due from group undertakings 19 13
- amounts due from group undertakings for finance leases 52 51
Interest income on defined benefit scheme assets 760 758
Cther finance income 03 56
Dividend income 24 -
Total interest receivable and similar iIncome 870 886
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10 Interest Payable

2014 2013
£m £m

Interest payable and similar charges on
- amounts payable to group undertakings (201 3) (180 1)
- amounts payable to group undertakings from finance leases {11 3) (111}
- finance leases on {113}
- bank and other loans {15 1) (19 2}
Pension interest cost 91 7) (92 2}
Other finance costs (31) (10}
Total interest payable and similar charges (332 2) (324 9)

In accordance with IAS 23 borrowing costs of £13 8 million (2013

capitalised at an interest rate of 5 11% (2013 5 12%)
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11. Gains/(losses) on financial instruments

2014 2013
£m £m
Loss on cross currency swaps used as hedging instruments in fair value hedges (16 9) 33
Gatn ansing on adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges 163 35
Exchange gatn on other loans 117 58
Ineffective portion of cash flow hedges 17 -
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred from eguity (33 (16 2)
Gainf{loss) ansing on swaps where hedge accounting 1s not appled 401 (32 3)
496 (49 5)
12 Tax on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of tax credit in the year
2034 2013
Before Exceptional Before
exceptional tax tax Total exceptional tax Excephional tax Total
Restated Restated
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 23% (2013 24%)
- current year 47 5 - 475 607 (40 5) 202
- adjustment (n respect of pnor years 94 (59 2) {49 8) (27 2) - (27 2)
Total current tax 56 9 {59 2) {23) 335 (40 5) (70)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
- current year 254 - 254 {(56) 388 333
- adjustment in respect of prior years (10 8) (56 2) (67 0) 4 1) - (4 1)
Exceptional credit ansing from rate change - (119 3} {119 3) - (38 3) (38 3)
Total deferred tax 14 6 {175 5} (160 8) {9 6} 05 91
715 {234 7) {163 2) 238 (40 0) {16 1)

The current tax charge before exceptional tax was £56 9 million (£33 5 million) This includes a charge of £9 4 milion ansing from
adjustments to pnor year tax computations In the previous year adjustments to pnor year tax computations resulted in a current
tax credit ¢f £27 2 million, pnmarily due to an industry agreement over the treatment of infrastructure income in those years
computations

Tax credits ansing from unusual tems in each year have been disclosed as exceptional and reduce the current total current tax
charge in 2014 to a credit of £2 3 milhon (£7 0 million credit in 2013)

An exceptional current tax credit of £59 2 milhon has been recogrised, reflecting the anticipated refund of overpayment of tax in
pnior penods as HMRC has now agreed that certain capital expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works i1s eligible
for capital aflowances as plant and machinery This has also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £56 2 million

In the prior year the company adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101, which changed the basis for the company's
corporation tax computations The most significant impact of this change 15 that certain amounts that had been taxed in previous
years were recognised as profits and will be taxed in future penods Therefore, to prevent such items being taxed twice, the tax
already paid on such tems was repayable The impact of this change was an exceptiona! credit of £40 5 million to current tax and
an exceptional charge of £38 & million to deferred tax

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted in the period and implemented a reductron in the corperation tax rate from 23% to 21% with
effect from 1 April 2014 and then to 20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015 This has resulted in a deferred tax credit of £119 3 milhion in
the income statement and a deferred tax charge of £11 3 mullion In reserves
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b) Factors affecting the tax credit in the year

The tax assessed for the year 1s lower than (2013 lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23% (2013 24%})
The differences are explained below

2014 2013
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3290 2231
Profit on ordinary activittes multiplied by the standard UK corperation rate of 23% (2013 24%) 757 54
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible/(income not taxable) in determining taxable profits 26 19
Current year impact of rate change (54) {19)
Excepticnal deferred tax credit ansing from rate change {119 3) (38 3)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pror penods (116 8) (31 3)
Total tax credst for the year (163 2) (15 6)

¢} Tax (charged)/credited to equity

In addition to the amount {charged )/credited to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been (charged)/credited to
equity

2014 2013
Restated
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments - 07
Tax on pension contnbutions in excess of profit and loss charge - 13
Total current tax (charged)/credited to equity - 20
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gainsflosses {2 6) 52
Tax on share based payments - -
Effect of change in tax rate (113) (32)
Tax on transfers to the profit and loss account {07} (37}
Tax on cash flow hedges (2 2) 86
Total deferred tax (charged)/credited to equity (16 8} 69
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13. Dividends on equity shares

Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders 1n the penad

2014 2013

Pence per share £m_Pence per share £m

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 - - 72 720
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 340 3400 - -
3400 720

The company’s dmidend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory obligations and at a level
which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, future cash flow
requirements and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared 15 expected to vary each year as the impact of these factors changes

14. Goodwill
2014 2013
Em £m
At 1 April 13 -
Additions - 13
Cost and net book value at 31 March 13 13

Page 78 of 126




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

15. Intangible fixed assets

Comp software Cther
Intemally Internatty
generated Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 126 9 1799 120 3188
Additions 23 59 - 82
Disposals - (74 7} - (747}
Reclassifications 430 {43 9} - -
At 31 March 2014 1731 67 2 120 2523
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2013 (118 4) (101 9) 95) (229 8)
Arortisation for year (139) {13 5) (0 6) (28 0)
Disposals 01 747 74 8
Reclassifications (51 51 - -
At 31 March 2014 {137 3} {35 6) (10 1) (183 0)
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 358 316 19 €9 3
At 31 March 2013 85 780 25 890

Development costs have been capitalised in accordance with JIAS 38 ‘intangible Assets’ and are therefore not treated, for dividend

purposes, as a reahsed loss
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16. Tangible fixed assets

Land Infrastructure Fixed plant and Vehicles and

and buildings assets equipment mohbile plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 27685 4,4135 3,604 2 475 10,8337
Additions 136 5 1271 2511 48 5195
Disposals {50) 03 (107} (34) (19 4)
At 31 March 2014 29000 4,540 3 3,844 6 489 11,3338
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2013 (910 8) {1,151 3) (2,005 1} (28 5) (4,095 7)
Charge for the year (64 4) (309) (167 3) 49) (267 5)
Disposals 37 - 109 31 177
At 31 March 2014 (971 5) (1,182 2) (2,161 5) {30 3) (4,345 5}
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 1,928 5 3,3581 1,683 1 186 6,988 3
At 31 March 2013 1,857 7 32622 1,588 1 190 6,7380

Inciuded In the above are assets under constructon of £589 8 miltion {2013 £504 2 miion) which are not depreciated
Cumulative borrowing costs capitahised included in the cost of tangible fixed assets amount to £48 5 mulion (2013 £34 7 mullion)

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases

Fixed
Land and infrastructure plant and
builldings assets equipment Total
fm £m £m £m
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 180 6 119 6 385 3387
At 31 March 2013 184 1 120 6 548 35985
The net book vatue of land and bulldings 1s analysed as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Freehoid 1,928 2 1,857 4
Short leasehold 03 03
1,928 5 18577
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17. Fixed asset investments

Shares n
subsidary
undertakings
£m
Cost and net book value
At 1 Aprit and 31 March 2014 3479

The company has the following investments

Subsidiary undertakings

Country of operalion and
incerporation

Poncipal actvily

Percantage and class of share capital

hetd

East Worcester Water Limited

Severn Trent General Partnership Limited
Severn Trent LCP Limited

Severn Trent Leasing Limited

Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited

Severn Trent Utiities Finance Plc

England and Wales

Scotland
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Finance company
Finance company
Leasing company
Leasing company
Finance company
Finance company

100% Ordinary &
100% non-voting
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary

The company also has an indirect investment in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, a imited partnership registered in Scotland, as a
result of Severn Trent General Partnership Limited being the general partner

In the opinion of the directors the fair values of the company’s investments are not less than the amount at which they are stated in

the balance sheet
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18. Stocks
2014 2013
£rn £m
Raw matenals and consumables 64 61
19. Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year
2014 2013
£m £m
Trade debtors 2671 2671
Bad debt provision (118 2} {111 3)
Net trade debtors 148 9 155 8
Loans receivable from group companies 120 155
Amounts recetvable from group undertakings under finance leases 05 05
QOther amounts due from group companies 63 105
Other debtors 232 2738
Corporation tax 507 209
Prepayments and accrued income 2086 1991
450 2 4302
Amounts falling due after more than one year
2014 2013
£m £m
Loans receivable from group companies 950 1057
Amounts receivable from group undertakings under finance leases 100 8 1013
Prepayments and accrued income 891 93 4
2849 300 4

Page 82 of 126




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

20, Finance lease receivables

Minimum lease payments recevable are as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Within one year 57 57
Between one and two years 57 57
Between two and five years 170 170
After five years 2498 2555
278 2 2839
Less unearned interest recevable (176 9} (182 1)
1013 101 8
The present values of minimum lease payments receivable are as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Within cne year 05 05
Between one and two years 05 05
Between two and five years 17 17
After five years 986 99 1
1013 1018
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 05 05
Debtors amounts faling due after ocne year 1008 1013
101 3 101 8

The company has granted finance leases of between 46 and 59 years in respect to concrete setthng tanks The interest terms were

set at the incephion of the leases Leases with capital cutstanding of £101 3 million (2013 £101 8 million) bear interest at a

weighted average interest rate of 5 1% {2013 5 1%)
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21 Creditors amounts falling due within one year

2014 2013

£m £m

Bank loans - 165 3
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 306 2 725
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 27 26
Obhgations under finance leases 320 105
Borrowings 3409 2509
Trade creditors 156 151
Other amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 700 571
Other creditors 59 62
Other taxation and social secunty 52 51
Accruals and deferred income 27060 2614
Denvative financial habilities 247 04
7323 586 2
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22. Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

2014 2013
£m £y
Bank loans 5552 552 4
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 3,699 2 38450
Amounts owed 1o parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 2081 2108
Oblgations under finance leases 2749 3068
Borrowings 4,737 4 49150
Other creditors 01 -
Accruals and deferred income 488 5 4471
Denvative financial labihbes 180 3 266 2
5,406 3 5,628 3
Borrowings are repayable as follows
2014 2013
Loans not Loans not
rapayable by Finance repayable by Finance
instalments leases Total Instalmenis leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
;ler;arnaal lhabihities due within one (306 2) (347) (340 9) (237 8) (131) (250 9)
Between one and two years (567 7) (52 8) {620 5) (174 8) (34 7) (209 5)
Between two and five years (697 9) {86 8) (784 7) (1,270 3) {117 0) (1,387 3)
After more than five years {2,988 8) (343 4) (3,332 2) (2,952 3) (365 9) (3,318 2)
Total financial habiities due after (4,254 4) (483 0) (8,737 8) (4,397 4) (517 6) (4,915 0)
one year
{4,560 6) (517 7) {5,078 3) (4,635 2) (5307) (5,165 9)

Page 85 of 126



Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Loans repayable parlly or wholly after five years compnse

5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years >20) years 2014
£m £m £m £m £m

Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings
Fixed rate 296 2 494 0 606 3 246 8 1,643 3
Floating rate - 200 137 - 337
RPI linked - 1823 - 874 3 1,056 6

Bank loans

Fixed rate 1500 - - - 1500
RPI linked 105 2 . - - 105 2
5515 696 2 6200 11211 29888
5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years >20 years 2013
£m £m £m £m £m

Loans due to parent and fellow subsithary undertakings
Fixed rate - 7894 597 9 2467 1,634 0
Floating rate - 208 16 8 - 77
RPI inked - 352 1416 8515 1,028 3

Bank loans

Fixed rate 1500 - - - 1500
Floating rate - - - - .
RPI inked 102 4 - - - 1024
2524 845 4 756 3 1,098 2 2,952 3

The weighted average interest rate on borrowings 1s 5 44% {2013 5 44%)
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23. Finance lease creditor

The mimmum payments under finance leases are as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Within one year 532 315
Between one and two years 717 54 4
Between two and five years 137 6 1697
After five years 496 5 5350
7590 790 6
Less future finance charges (241 3) (259 9)
Present value of lease obligations 5177 5307
The present values of mimimum lease payments are as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Within one year 347 131
Between one and two years 528 347
Between two and five years 868 170
After five years 343 4 3659
Present value of lease cbligations 5177 5307
Disclosed In the balance sheet as
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 347 131
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 483 0 5176
517 7 5307

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 2 to 18 years at 31 March 2014 Interest terms are set at the inception of the
leases Leases with capital outstanding of £415 0 million (2013 £434 7 million) bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of
54% (2013 54%) The lease obligations are secured over the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalabon clauses or matenal renewal or purchase cptions The terms of the finance leases do not
impose restnction on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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24. Financial instruments

a) Categones of financial assets held at fair value
2014 2013
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 121 210
121 210
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Cross currency swaps - farr value hedges 275 445
Energy swaps - cash fiow hedges = 09
275 454
Total denivative financial assets 396 66 4
b) Categones of financial habilities held at fair value
2014 2013
£m £m
Fair vaiue through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted (217) (8 4}
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted (140 7) (140 1)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted - 01
{162 4) (148 6)
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (39 6) (116 2)
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges (30) (18)
(42 6) {118 0)
(205 0) {266 6)

c) Darivatives

The company enters into a vanety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange
rate nsk These nsks are managed centrally by the Severn Trent group treasury department Denvative financial instruments are
not held for trading

interest rate swaps

The company has interest rate swaps in place to manage its exposure to interest rate nsk ansing from its anticipated borrowing
requirements for the remamder of AMP 5 Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the company agrees with other parties to
exchange, mainly semi-annuaily, the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rate swaps to hedge future debt
Economically these act to fix the interest cost of debt which 1s denominated as floating rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting
under the strict entena of IAS 39

During the pnior year the company terminated three of these contracts, with a notional value of £100 million, at a cash outlay of
£44 3 mithon

The company has also entered into a number of interest rate swaps with future start dates n AMP § These contracts enable the
company to mitigate interest rate nsk on debt which ts highly probable to be 1ssued in AMP 5 to fund the capital programme These
have been accounted for as cash flow hedges

Dunng the year swaps with a notional principal of £225 million reached their start dates and hedge accounting was terminated as
at 1 Apnl 2013 because the company was not able to identify specific debt instruments that would quabfy as the hedge items in a
future hedging relationship
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Cross currency swaps

The company holds cross currency swaps to manage the exchange rate nsk ansing from foreign currency borrowings Under the
terms of the contracts, the company agrees with other parties to swap the foreign currency proceeds into sterling debt beanng
interest based on LIBOR The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the undertying debt hence these
are expected to be effective hedges These are accounted for as fair value hedges where the cntena of IAS 39 are met

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The company does not have a significant transactional exposure 1o exchange rates but holds a small number of forward foreign
exchange contracts which are nol matenal These are not in designated hedge relationships and so are classified as 'Held for
trading’

Energy swaps
The company has entered Into a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market prices of electnaty at six-monthly intervals up to March 2015

d) Fair value measurements recogmised in the balance sheet
The fair values of financial instruments that were measured subsequent 1o inibal recogmition at fair value, were based on
observable inputs other than quoted pnces for iIdentical instruments

The far value of nterest rate swaps I1s calculated as the present value of the eshmated future cash flows estimated and discounted
based on the apphcation of yield curves denved from quoted interest rates

Cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracls are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date and yeld curves denved from quoted interest rates matching the matunties of the contracts

e) Changes in valua of financial instruments at far value
Changes n farr value which are included in the profit and loss account are set out in note 11
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25 Provisions for habilities and charges

Deferred taxation Restructunng Other prowisions Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2013 827 1 07 44 8322
(Credited)/charged to profit and loss account (160 9) 04 - (160 5)
Utilised in year - o7 07) (14)
Charged to other comprehensive income 168 - - 168
Unwinding of discount - - 01 01
At 31 March 2014 683 0 04 38 687 2

The restructuning provision reflects costs to be incurred 1n respect of committed programmes Substantially all of the associated

outflows are expected to occur within one year (2013 one year) of the balance sheet date

Other provisions consist of dilapidation costs and onerous leasehold property costs The associated outflows are expected to anse
over a period of up to seven vears (2013 eight years) from the balance sheet date

26 Deferred tax

An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax habiliies and assets recogmsed by the company 1s set out below

Retirement  Fair value of

Accelerated tax henefit financial

depreciation obligation instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2012 9350 (82 9) {49 5) 405 B431
Charge to profit and loss account (restated) (50) (35) {14) 391 292
Credit to profit and loss account ansing from rate change (390) 14 11 {18) {38 3)
Credit to other comprehensive income (restated) - (52) {4 9) - {10 1)
Charge to other comprehensive income ansing from rate change - 21 10 01 32
At 1 Apnl 2013 8910 (88 1) {63 7) 778 8271
Reclassification 525 - - (52 5} -
Credit to profit and loss account (61 1) 45 104 46 {41 6)
Credit to profit and loss account ansing from rate change (123 1) 41 33 (36) (119 3)
Charge to other comprehensive income - 26 29 - 95
Charge to other comprehensive income ansing from rate change _ 74 37 02 113
At 31 March 2014 7593 {69 5) {33 4} 266 6830

Deferred tax assets and liabiities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled after more than 12

months, are as follows

2044 2013

£m £m

Deferred tax asset (1100) {1581 2)
Deferred tax hability 7930 9783
683 0 8271
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27 Share capital

2014 2013
£m fm

Total 1ssued and fully paid
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 1000 1000
100 0 1000

28 Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve anses from gans or losses on interest rate swaps taken to equity under the hedge accounting provisions of
IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

29 Infrastructure reserve

The infrastructure reserve arose on restating infrastructure assets to fair value as deemed cost on transition to FRS 101 Dunng the
previous year, bonus shares were 1ssued from this reserve
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30 Share based payments

At 31 March 2014 there were no options exercisable under any of the share based remuneration schemes (2013 nil)
a) Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}

Under the LTIP annual conditional awards of shares in the ulimate parent company may be made to executive directors and senior
staff Awards are subject to performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting penod

These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess of the level
included n the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting period 1t has been assumed that performance
agamnst the LTIP non-market conditions will be 100% (2013 100%)

The weighted average remaming contractual life of the awards 1s 1 22 (2013 1 16)

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board of the ultimate parent company may grant the nght to purchase ordinary
shares in Severn Trent Plc to those employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Eam contract for a penod
of three or five years

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the penod was £18 12 (2013 £16 49
The options outstanding at 31 March 2014 had a werghted average option price of £11 25 (£10 26) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1 87 years (2013 1 91 years)

¢) Share Matching Ptan {(SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of the Execulive Committee receive matching share awards over those shares which
have been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual benus scheme  Matching shares may be awarded at a
maximum rabio of one matching share for every deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penod Dunng the year
matching shares were awarded ataratio of 0 5 to 1

Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the comparnies ranked 51-150 by
market capitahisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dividends paid through the performance period on the basis of
such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share pnce Awards will normally vest as soen as the Remuneration
Committee determines that the performance condihons have been met provided that the participant remains in employment at the
end of the performance penod

d) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies Dunng the year the board has announced that
it will make awards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent Water's targets for its Key Performance Indicators

Ehgible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum vale of £750 |t 1s expected that these awards will be made in August
2014 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant
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31 Cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2014 2013
£m £fm

Profit before interest and tax 524 6 508 9
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2675 2614
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 280 289
Pension service cost 225 232
Pension contnbutions (63 6) (32 5)
Pension admmnistration costs 30 26
Share based payments charge 58 66
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets (8 5) (119)
Deferred income movement (95) (9 3)
Provisions charged to the profit and loss account 04 (16)
Utisation of provisions for habilites and charges {(14) {(33)
{Increase)decrease In stocks {04) 02
Decrease/(increase} in debtors 25 (19 6)
Decrease in creditors 35 43
Cash generated from operations 774 4 7579
Tax paid (14 5) (53 5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 759 9 704 4

b} Non-cash transactions

No additions to fixed assets dunng the year were financed by new finance leases (2013 nil) Assets transferred from developers

were £28 5 milon (2013 £37 0 million)

c) Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the profit and loss account

2014 2013

£m £m

Restructunng costs - (4 4)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 94 151
94 107
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d) Reconciliation of movemeant in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

As at RPI uphfion Other As at
1 Apnl Farr value index-inked Foreign non cash 31 March
2013 Cash flow  adustments debt exchange movements 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Cash and cash equivalents 3286 (308 8) - - - - 198
Loans receivable from other group
companies 1212 (15 5) - 13 - - 107 0
Loans payable to other group companies (3,917 5) (77 0) 163 {28 3) 17 (106) {4,0054)
Bank loans (717 7) 168 6 - (6 1) - - {555 2)
Finance leases payable (317 4) 104 - - - - {307 0)
Intercompany finance leases payable (213 3) 26 - - - - {240 7)
Finance leases recewable from other 1018 (05) - - - - 1013
group companies
Cross currency swaps 361 - (30 2) - - {0 1) 58
Net debt (4,578 2) (220 2) (139) (3314) 17 (107) (4,844 4)
32 Financial commitments
Capital commitments are as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided for 158 0 2149

In addition to these commitments, the company has longer term expenditure ptans which include investments to achteve
improvements in performance mandated by Ofwat and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage services

At the balance sheet date, the company had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows

2014 2013
£m £m

Within one year 17 19
Between two and five years 40 62
After five years 48 54
105 1356

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment
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33 Retirement benefit scheme

The company 15 the sponsonng employer of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the Severn Trent group in the UK
As there 1s no contractual agreement or stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual group entittes this

company has recognised the full cost and deficit
The amounts disclosed below are for the plan as a whole

a} Defined benefit pension schemes

{1) Amount inctuded in the balance sheet anising from the company’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

2014 2013
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets
Equihes 8706 8772
Gilts 2705 2746
Corporate bonds 3888 3609
Property 148 4 147 8
Hedge funds 569 558
Cash 884 80
Total fair value of assets 1,823 6 1,724 3
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (2,162 5) (2,098 7)
(338 9) (374 4)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes (94) (93)
Liability recogmised in the balance sheet {348 3) (3837)
Movements in the farr value of the scheme assets were as follows
2014 2013
Restated
£m £m
Fair value at 1 Apnl 1,724 3 1,557 2
Interest Income on scheme assets 760 758
Company contnbutions 636 325
Contribution from intra-greup asset backed funding arrangement 82 82
Other contnbutions from Severn Trent group companies 12 28
Contributions from scheme members 51 51
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in finance income) 249 116 3
Scheme admenistrabion costs 20 (2 6)
Benefits paid (76 7) (71 0}
Fair value at 31 March 1,823 6 1,724 3

QOther contnbutions from Severn Trent group companies are included in actuanal gainsflosses recognised in the staterment of

comprehenswe mncome
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

2014 2013
Restated
£m £m
Present value at 1 Apnl 2,1080 1,903 0
Service cost 224 228
Past service cost 01 04
Interest cost 917 922
Contnbutions from scheme members 51 51
Actuanal {gains)losses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions {157) 1555
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in finanaial assumptions o 10
Actuanal gans ansing from expenence adjustments - (10}
Benefits paid (76 7) (710}
Present value at 31 March 21719 2,1080
Of which
2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes 2,1625 2,008 7
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 94 93
Present value at 31 March 21718 2,108 0
(1) Amounts recognised m the profit and loss account in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes
2014 2013
Restated
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost (22 4} (22 8)
Scheme administration costs (30) (26)
Past service cost {0 1) (0 4)
(25 5) (25 8)
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost (91 7} {92 2)
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest Income on scheme assets 760 758
Total amount charged to the profit and loss account {41 2) (42 2)

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £97 2 millhion (2013 gain of £18% 5 milkon}

Actuanal gains and losses for the current and prior year are reported in the statement of comprehensive income The cumulative
amount of actuanal gains and losses recogrised in equity since the adoption of the recognition and measurement principles of

IFRS 15 a net loss of £315 7 milhon {2013 (restated) net loss of £318 3 million)

In addition, contnibutions made by other Severn Trent group entities are atso included in actuanal gains and losses recognised in

the statement of comprehensive mcome

m) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covering the majonty of UK employees The defined
benefit pension schemes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and their assets are held in separate funds
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administered by trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries A formal actuanal
valuation of each scheme 1s carned out on behalf of the trustees at tnennial intervals by an independent professionally gqualfied
actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitied to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion
{varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of their salary for the final year of employment with the group or, if
higher, the average of the highest three consecutive years' salary in the last ten years of employment

The defined benefit pension schemes will close to future accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contnbution pension scheme
has been estabhished and members of the defined benefit pension schemes will then become members of the new defined
contnbution pension scheme

The schemes typically expose the company to actuaral nsks such as investment nsk, inflation nsk and longevity nsk
Investment nisk

The group’s contrnibutions to the schemes are based on actuanal calculations which make assumptions about the retums expected
from the schemes’ investments If the investments underperform these assumptions in the long term then the group will need to
make additional contnbutions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

Inflation risk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are inked to iInflaton measured by the RPI The group's contnbutions to the
schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation If inflatton 1s higher than the levels assumed in the actuanal
calculations then the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued
benefits

Longevity risk

The group's contributions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the ife expectancy of scheme members after
retirement If scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuanal calculations then the group will need to make addibional
contnbuticns to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

Date of last formal actuarial valuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme {STPS)* 31 March 2013
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

* The STPS 15 by far the largest of the group’s UK defined benefit schemes

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 eamings cap Prowvision for such benefits amounting to £9 4 million (2013 £9 3 mitlion) s
included as an unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obligation

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(v) Actuanal assumptions
The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2014 2013

% ﬂl"

Pnce inflation 33 32
Salary increases 30 30
Pension increases tn payment 33 32
Pension icreases in deferment 33 32
Discount rate 44 44

The assumption for pnce inflation 1s denved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on index-
inked giits The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds

The company has adopted IAS 19 Employee Benefits Revised and therefore expected return on assets assumptions are no
longer needed The discount rate 1s apphed to the net deficit to determine the net finance cost

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the tnenmal valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2013

The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the Iife expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumptions are as follows
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2014 2013
Mortality table used
- men "SAPS" SINMA_L "SAPS" S1NMA_L
- women S1NFA_L SINFA L
Mortality table compared with standard table
- men 116% 116%
- women 92% 92%
Future improvement per annum 10% 10%
Remaining life expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years)
- men 213 215
- women 244 246
Remaining life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years)
- men 226 227
- women 260 262

a) Defined benefit pension schemes {(continued)

{v} Actuanal assumptions (continued)

The calculation of the scheme liabilibes 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, pnce flation and mortality The following table summarises the estimated impact on scheme Labiities from
changes 1o key actuanal assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumption _Impact on scheme liabilites
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decrease/increase by £38 milion
Pnce inflation Increasel/decrease by 0 1% Decreasefincrease by £35 milhon
Mortahty Increase in lfe expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 million

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and pnce inflakton The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected umit credit method at the end of the reporting penod, which 1s the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
obhgation habihty recognised in the balance sheet

{vi)Effect on future cash flows

Contnbution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participatng employer

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year i1s 18 years (2013 18 years) The expected cash flows
payable from the scheme are presented in the graph below
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SevernTrent Pension Scheme - axpected bonefit payments
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Following the completion of the tnenrial valuaton of both schemes, future lump sum deficit contnbutions have been agreed with
the Trustee In respect of the shortfall, a cash contribution of £40 million was made i the current year, a further £35 million
contnbution will be made n the year to 31 March 2015, £15 million will be paid in the year to 31 March 2016 followed by £12
million per annum te 31 March 2025

An annual contribution of £8 2m will also be made through an asset backing funding arrangement for at least 13 years
from 31 March 2014

b} Defined contnbution pension scheme

The company participates in the group defined contnbution scheme In September 2001, the Severn Trent Group Pension Scheme
(an occupational defined contnbution penston scheme) was established to ensure compliance with stakeholder legislation and to
provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement This was closed to new entrants on 1 Apnil 2005 and replaced by the
Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scheme The pension charge for this scheme for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £7 7 million
(2013 £5 7 million)

34. Contingent habilities
The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain fellow group undertakings Under these
arrangements participaling companies guarantee each others' balances only to the extent that their credit balances can be offset

against overdrawn balances of other Severn Trent group companies As at 31 March 2014, the company had no contingent
habiities (2013 £0 2 milien)

35. Related party transactions

Directors' remuneration 1s disclosed in note 8

The retirement benefit schemes entered into by the company are considered to be related paries Details of transacthons and
balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 33

36. Ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Severn Trent Draycote Limited

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Sevem Trent Plc, which 1s the parent undertaking and controlling party of
the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements Copies of the Severn Trent Plc consolidated financiat
statemnents can be obtained from Severn Trent Plc's registrars at Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex
BN99 60A
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Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the
company at the date when this report was approved so far
as each of the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditer 1s unaware, and
each of the directors has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the company's auditor 1s aware of that
nformation

Relevant audit information means informatton needed by the
company’s auditor in connection with prepanng their report
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Water Industry Act 1991

Further to the requirements of company law, the directors
are required to prepare financial statements which comply
with the requirements of Condition F Instrument of
Appointment of the company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and
Regulatory Accounting Gudelines 1ssued by the Water
Services Regulation Authonty This additionally requires the
directors to

a} Confirm that, in ther opinion, the company has sufficient
financial and management resources for the next twelve
months,

b} Confirm that, in therr opinion, the company has sufficient
nghts and assets which would enable a special admmistrator
to manage the affairs, business and property of the
company,

c) Report to the Water Services Regulation Authonty
changes in the company’s activiies which may be matenal
in relation to the company’s ability to finance its regulated
activities,

d} Undertake transachons entered into by the appointed
business, with or for the benefit of assoctated compames or
other businesses or activities of the appointed business, at
amm's length, and

e} Keep proper accounting records which comply with
Condition F

Diversification and the protection of the core business —
Condition F6a

Severn Trent Water hereby advises

a) That in the opinicn of the directors, the Appointee will
have availabte to it sufficient financial resources and facilites
to enable it to carry cut, for at least the next 12 months, the
Regulated Activity (including the investment programme
necessary to fulfil the Appointee’s obligations under the
Appointment), and

b} That in the opinion of the directors, the Appointee will for
at least the next 12 months, have available to 1t
management resources which are sufficient to enable it to
carry out those functions

Ring Fencng — Conditon K3 1

In accordance with the requirements of the Water Services
Regulation Authority, the board confirmed that, as at 31
March 2014, 1t had avaiable to it sufficient nghts and assets,
not including financial resources, which would enable a
special administrator to manage the affars, business and
property of the company in order that the purposes of a
special administration order could be achieved if such an
order were made

L\V (M

L Garfield

Chiuef Executive

For and on behalf of the beard
28 May 2014
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Report of the auditor

To the Water Services Regulation Authonty and the Directors of Sevem Trent Water Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the Water Services
Regulation Authority (“WSRA") and Directors of Severn
Trent Water Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of Severn Trent
Water Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014 on pages
103 to 124 which compnse

» the regulatory histencal cost accounting
statements, comprnising the regulatory histoncal
cost profit and loss account, the regulatory
historncal cost balance sheet, the regulatory
tistorical cost statement of total recognised gains
and losses and the histoncal cost reconcihiation
between statutory and regulatory accounts and the
related notes to the historical cost accounting
statements including the statement of accounting
policies, and

« the regulatory current cost accounting statements
{for the appointed business, comprising the current
cost profit and loss account, the current cost
balance sheet, the current cost cash flow statement
and the retated notes to the current cost financial
statements, including the statement of accounting
policies

These Regutatory Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting
policies set out In the Statement of Accounting Policies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely
to the Company and the WSRA in order to meet the
requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of
Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the
Environment to the Company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company and the WSRA those matters that we have agreed
to state to them m our report, in order (a) to assist the
Company to meet its obligation under Condition F to procure
such a report and (b) to facilitate the carrying out by the
WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the WSRA, for our audit work, for this report or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the directors
and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibiites set out on page [x], the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts
and for their farr presentation in accordance with the basis of
preparation and accounting policies Qur respansibility 1s to
audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory Accounts in
accordance with International Standards on Audiing (UK
and Ireland), except as stated in the ‘Scope of the audit of
the Regulatory Accounts’ below, and having regard to the
guidance contained in Audit 05/03 ‘Reporting to Regulators
of Regulated Entities’ 1Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales Those standards require

us ta comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free
from maternial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This iIncludes an assessment of whether the
accounting polictes are appropriate to the company's
circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the Regulatory Accounts n addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial infarmation presented
with the regulatory accounts to 1dentfy matenal
inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory Accounts If we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or
inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report

We have not assessed whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the circumstances of the Company where
these are laid down by Condition F Where Condition F does
not give specific guidance on the accounting policies to be
followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies adopted in respect of the transactions
and balances required to be included in the Regulatory
Accounts are consistent with those used in the preparation
of the statutory financial statements of the company
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate
the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information,
which would have been required If we were to express an
audit opimion under International Standards on Auditing (UK
& Ireland)

The Company has presented the allocation of operating
costs and assets in accordance with the accounting
separation policy set out in note 2 to the accounts and its
Accounting Separation Methodology Statement published on
the Company's website in June 2014, (the “Methodology
Staterment”) We are not required to assess whether the
methods of cost allocation set out in the Methodology
Statement are appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company or whether they meet the requirements of the
WSRA, which would have been required if we were to
express an audit opinion under International Standards on
Auditing (UK & Ireland)

Opinion on Regulatory Accounts
In our opinion, the Regulatory Accounts

« fairly present n accordance with Condition F, the
Regutatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by the WSRA,
n respect of the Accounting Separation Tables the
Methodology Statement, and the accounting policies
set out on page 62, the state of the Company's affairs at
31 March 2014 on an historical cost and current cost
basis, and its histoncal cost and current cost profit and
its current cost cash flow for the year then ended,
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To the Water Services Regulation Authority and the Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited

Opinion on Regulatory Accounts continued for the year ended 31 March 2014 on which we report, which
are prepared for a different purpose Our audit report in
relation to the statutory financial statements of the Company
{our ‘statutory audit’) was made sofely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our statutory audit work was
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in a
Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation statutory audit report and for no other purpose [n these
cumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by taw, we do
ngt accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or

+« have been properly prepared in accordance with
Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the
accounting policies and the Methodology statement

Without modifying our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts,
we draw attention to the fact that the Regulatory Accounts
have been prepared in accordance with Condition F of the shwn or into whose hands 1t may come save where
Appointment and the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the
accounting policies set out in the statement of accounting
policies and, in the case of the regulatory histoncal cost
accounting statements, under the histoncal cost convention

Tr—

itlock (Senior statutory auditor)

fpr and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

hartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
rrmingham, United Kingdom

28 May 2014

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory
financial statements of the Company and have not been
prepared under the basis of United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP") Financial
information other than that prepared on the basis of UK
GAAP does not necessarily represent a true and fair view of
the financial performance or financial position of a company
as shown in statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 Furthemmore, the
regulatory histoncal cost accounting statements on pages
103 and 105 have been drawn up In accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 07, in that infrastructure
renewals accounting as apphed in previous years should
continue to be applied and accordingly, that the refevant
sections of Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be
disapplied The effect of this departure from Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice and a reconcihiation of the
balance sheet drawn up on this basis to the balance sheet
drawn up under the Compantes Act 2006 1s given on page
105

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by Condition F

Under the terms of our contract, we have assumed
responsibility to provide those additional opinions required
by Condition F m relation to the accounting records In our
opimon

. proper accounting records have been kept by the
appointee as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F,
and

+ the Regulatory Accounts are in agreement with the
accounting records and returns retained for the purpose
of preparning the Regulatory Accounts

Other matters

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are
determined by the WSRA It 1s not appropnate for us to
assess whether the nature of the information bemng reported
upon Is suitable or appropriate for the WSRA's purposes
Accordingly, we make no such assessment

QOur opinion on the Regulatory Accounts 1s separate from our
opimion on the statutory financial statements of the Company
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Profit and loss account year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Non- Non-
Appeointed appointed Appomnted apponted
business business Total business business Total
£m £m Em £m £m £
Turnover 1,524 6 120 1,5368 1,492 2 104 15026
Operating costs {593 5) (36) (597 1) (575 0) (38) (5788)
Infrastructure renewals charge {134 8) - (134 8) (135 2) - (135 2)
Histoncal cost depreciation {260 6) - (260 6) (256 5) - (256 5)
Other operating income 85 - 85 118 - 18
Operating profit 544 2 84 5526 5373 66 5439
Other ncome 18 18 36 21 18 39
Net interest payable (238 0) - (238 0) (278 3} - (278 3)
Profit on ordinary activities before
taxation 3080 102 3182 2611 84 268 5
Taxation on profit on ordinary actvities
- Current tax 46 {23) 23 92 22) 70
- Deferred tax 1415 - 1415 30 - 30
Taxation 146 1 (2 3) 143 8 122 22) 100
Profit on ordinary activities after
taxation 454 1 79 4620 2733 62 2795
Dividends {3321) (79) (3400) (65 8) ©2) {72 0)
;i::mad profit/{loss) for the financial 122 0 R 1220 207 § ; 207 §
Statement of total recognised gains and losses year ended 31 March 2014
2014 2013
Non- Non-
Appeinted  appointed Appointed appainted
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 454 1 79 4620 2733 62 2795
Actuanal gainf{loss) (16 1) - (16 1} (47 2) - {47 2)
Tax (charge)/credit on actuanal gainf{loss) 32 - 32 110 - 110
Tax on share based payments - - - 07 - 07
Adjustment in respect of tax rate change on deferred tax {11 3) - {113) (22) - {22)
Tax charge on pension contnbutions - - - 13 - 13
Total recogmsed gains and losses for the financial year 4299 79 4378 2369 62 2431
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Balance sheet as at 31 March 2014

2014

2013

Apponted  Non-appeinted Appounted  Non-sppointed
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangtble assets 6,454 2 - 6,454 2 6,257 5 - 6,257 5
Intangible assets 10 - 10 13 - 13
Investments - loan to group company 656 - 656 656 - 656
Investments - other 3479 - 347 9 3479 - 3479
6,868 7 - 6,868 7 6,672 3 - 68,6723
Current assets
Stock 64 - 64 61 - 61
Debtors 592 1 - 592 1 548 6 - 5486
Short term deposits 131 - 131 3266 - 3266
Cash at bank and in hand 12 55 67 (54} 74 20
Infrastructure renewal prepayment o8 . 08 47 - 47
Corporation tax receivable 50 7 - 507 209 - 209
664 3 55 669 8 8921 74 899 5
Creditors amounts falling due
within one year
Borrowings {355 3) - {355 3) {184 9) - (184 9)
Other Creditors
- Creditors (346 0) (5 5) {351 5) (391 8) (7 4) (399 2)
{701 3) (55) (706 8) (576 7) {7 4) (584 1)
Net current liabilities (37 0) - (37 0) 3154 - 3154
Total assets less current habilities 6,8317 - 6,8317 69877 - 6,987 7
Creditors amounts falling due after
more than one year
Borrowings (4,784 6) - (4,784 6) (4,878 7) - (4.8787)
Other creditors {15) - (15) (17 - (17)
(4,786 1) - (4,786 1) (4,880 4) - {4,880 4)
Prowisions for labflites and charges
- Deferred taxation (351 6) - {351 6) (498 5) - {498 5)
- Other provisions {42) - (42 5N - (51)
Deferred income (37 5) - (37 5) (37 8) - (37 6)
Pension deficit {184 8) - (184 8) {199 4) - {199 4}
Net assets 1,467 5 - 1,467 5 1,366 7 - 1,366 7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1000 - 1000 100 0 - 1000
Profit and loss account 1,367 5 - 1,367 5 1,266 7 - 12667
Shareholder's funds 1,467 5 - 1,467 5 1,366 7 - 1,366 7
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Reconciliation between statutory accounts and historical cost regulatory accounts

2014
£m
Profit and Loss Account / Income Statement
Turnover
Par FRS101 statutory accounts 1,544 8
Renewables Obligation Certificate (ROC) income included in operating costs in regulatory accounts {(82)
Per regulatory accounts 1,536 6
Operating profit
Per FRS101 statutory accounts 524 6
ltems in FRS101 operating profit not in reguiatory operating profit
Non operating income {35)
Amaortisation of development costs which have previously been written off in the regulatory accounts 06
Depreciation of infrastructure assets 283
Deferred income recognised relating to fixed assets 51)
Depreciation ansing on capitalised borrowing costs 14
items n regulatory operating profit not in FRS$101 operating profit
Difference between infrastructure renewals charge and infrastructure renewals expenditure 55
Goodwill amortisation {0 3)
Other 29
Measurement differences
Impairment of trade debtors 27)
Difference in pension charge 09
Per regulatory accounts 5526
Balance Sheet
Tangible assets
Net book value per FR5101 statutory accounts 6988 3
ltems in FRS101 tangible assefs not in reguliatory tangible assets
Remeasurement of infrastructure assets on transition to FRS101 -3780
Cumulative impact of transfernng assets from customers -178 2
Cumulative infrastructure asset depreciation 2394
Grants and contnbubiens deducted from fixed assets -255 2
Cumulative capitahsed borrowing costs 457
Items in reguliatory tangible assets not it FRS101 tangible assels
Cumulative difference between infrastructure renewals charge and infrastructure renewals expenditure 281
Infrastructure renewals accrual -133
Recogmition of intangible assets 693
Other 05
Per regulatory accounts 6,454 2
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Profit and loss account appointed business year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Water Sewarage Total Water Sewerage Total
Naotes. £m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 43
Unmeasured - household 3511 3715 7226 3540 3733 7273
Unmeasured - nen-household 36 296 13 2 34 92 126
Measured - household 2009 186 3 387 2 1865 164 0 3505
Measured - non-household 1337 1705 304 2 127 2 1755 3027
Trade effluent - 109 109 - 123 123
Bulk supphesfintercompany payments 53 - 53 50 - 50
Other third party services 366 398 762 386 s 774
Other sources 11 39 50 18 26 44
Total Turnover 7323 7923 1,524 6 7165 7157 1,492 2
Current operating cost - wholesale 4c (462 7) (456 7) {919 4) (456 0) (443 86) {899 6)
Current operating cost - retail 4c {60 4) (66 8) {127 2 (58 7) (64 8) {123 5)
Other operating mcome 25 28 53 49 55 104
Working capital adjustment (26) {(29) (5 5} (30) 34) (64)
Current cost operating profit 2091 2687 477 8 2037 269 4 4731
Other income 18 21
Net interest payable (238 0) (278 3)
Financing adjustment 805 1138
Current cost profit before taxation 322 1 3107
Taxation on profit on erdinary actvities
- Current tax 46 92
- Deferred tax 1415 30
Taxation 146 1 122
Current cost profit attnibutable to
shareholders after taxation 468 2 3229
Dividend {3321) {65 8)
Current cost retained profit/{loss) 1361 2571
Net revenue movement ocut of tanff
basket {(10) 10 - 02 (0 4) (02)
Back-billing amount identified 06 10 16 04 12 16
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses: appointed business year ended 31 March

2014

2014

2013

£m £m
Profit for the financial year 468 2 3229
Actuanal gain/(loss} {16 1) -
Tax on actuanal gain/loss 32 -
Adjustment in respect of tax rate change on deferred tax {11 3) -
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 444 0 3229
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Balance sheet: appointed business as at 31 March 2014

Notes 2014 2013
Total Total
£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangble assets 5 51,5213 50,159 5
Intangible assets 10 13
Investments - loan to group company 656 656
Investments - other 3479 347 9
51,8358 50,574 3
Current assets
Working Capital 7 453 606
Debtors 209 4 161 4
Short term deposits 131 326 6
Cash at bank and in hand 12 (5 4)
Infrastructure renewal accrual 08 an
Corporation tax receivable 507 209
3205 559 4
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings (355 3} (184 9)
Other Creditors
- Creditors {22) {59 1)
{357 5) (244 0)
Net current habilities {37 0) 3155
Total assets less current habihities 51,898 8 50,889 7
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year
Borrowings {4,784 6) (4,878 7)
Other creditors (15) (18)
(4,786 1) (4,880 4)
Provisions for habiliies and charges
- Deferred taxation (351 6) (498 5)
- Other provisions (42) (31}
Pension deficit (184 8) (199 4)
Net assets 46,5721 45,306 2
Capntal and reserves
Called up share capital 1000 100 0
Profit and loss account 1,1186 1,004 5
Current Cost Reserve 45,353 5 442017
Shareholder's funds 46,5721 45,306 2
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Cash flow statement year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Non- Nan-
Appointed  appointed Appointed appotnted
business business Total business business Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8 903 2 82 9114 8887 158 904 5
Returns on investments and sarvicing of finance (195 4) - {195 4) {228 6) - (228 6)
Taxation paid (12 2) (23) (14 5) (51 3) (22) (53 5)
Capital expenditure
Gross cost of purchase of tangible fixed assets (489 9) - (489 9) (443 2) - (443 2)
Grants and contmbutions receved 386 - 386 362 - 362
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (140 3) - (140 3) (147 7) - (147 7)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 101 - 101 156 - 156
Net cash outflow from investing activities (581 5) - (581 5) (539 1) - (539 1)
Investment in subsidianes - - - - - -
Equity Dividends Received 24 - 24
Equity dividends paid (3321) (78) (3399) (65 8) (62) (72 0)
Net cash outflow before management of iquid
resources and financing (215 6) (19) (217 5) 39 74 13
Management of hguid resources 3136 - 3136 (326 5) - {326 5)
Net cash flow before financing 98 0 (19) 96 1 (322 6) 74 {315 2)
Net cash inflow from financing (91 4) - (91 4) 317 1 - 3171
Net {decrease}/increase in cash 66 (19 47 (5 5) T4 19
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Notes to the regulatory accounts

Year ended 31 March 2014

1 Regulatory reporting

The regulatory accounts as reported on pages 5510 76
should be read in conjunction with the operating and
financial review on pages 23 to 29 for further understanding
of the performance of the business

In particular, attention i1s drawn to pages 46 and 49 of the
Directors’ report which sets out the link between Directors’
pay and standards of performance

2 Accounting policies for historical cost
and current cost financial statements

a) Basis of preparation

The regulatory financial statements are separate from the
statutory financial statements of the company They have
been prepared on a going concern basis (see Directors’
Report on page 46)

The regulatory financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Condition F of the Instruments of
Appointment of the Water and Sewerage Undertakers and
the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines as 1ssued by the
WSRA

Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines do not
specifically address an accounting 1ssue, then they require
UK GAAP to be followed IN13 does not permit the
regulatory accounts to be based on the new FRS100
accounting framework issued by the Financial Reporting
Council and therefore UK GAAP pnor to FRS 100 has been
applied in prepanng these regulatory accounts Fmancial
information other than that prepared wholly on the basis of
UK GAAP may not necessanly represent a true and fair vew
of the financial performance or financial position of a
company as shown In financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In previous years the regulatory accounts have been based
on the consolidated statutory accounts of Severn Trent
Water Limited and its subsidhanes Following the adoption of
FSR 101 the company no longer prepares consolidated
statutory accounts These regulatery accounts have
therefore been prepared for the company as a stand alone
entity and do not include the results or net assets ofits
subsidiaries

b} Turnover

Turnover represents income receivable from regulated water
activities, excluding value added tax

Turnover includes an estimation of the amount of mains
water and waste water charges unhilled at the year end The
accrual 1s eshmated using a defined methodology based
upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by tantf, which
15 calculated from histoncal billing information There has
been no changes in methodology in the year

Turnover s not recogmised In respect of unoccupled
properties Properties are classified as unoccupied when

s  The company is informed that a customer has left a
property and 1t 1s not expected to be reoccupied
immediately,

» New properties are connected but are not
occupied,

+ Properties are disconnected following a customer’s
request, or

+ The dentty of the customer 1 unknown

The following activities are undertaken to ensure properties
classified as unoccupied are in fact not occupied

*«  Where the company Is informed that the customer
has teft a property and the property is expected to
be occupied by someone else, a welcome letter 1s
sent to the property encouraging the occupier to
confact the company

+ Ifthere s no response to the welcome letter within
two months a void letter 1s sent to the property
explaining that we have classified the property as
empty and may schedule the property for
disconnection

+  Meter readings are taken for metered unoccupied
properties, where consumption I1s recorded, a letter
Is sent to the property

* Inspections are orgarnised throughout the year by
geographical area

c) Operattng costs

Income relating to electncity generation (Renewable
Obhgation Certificate income) 1s deducted from operating
costs

d) Bad and doubtful debts

Prowvisions are charged to operating costs to reflect the
company's assessment of the nsk of non recoverability of
debtors Provisions are calculated based on the age of the
debtor balance and the company's previous collection
expernence for balances of that age The bad debt
provisioning rates are updated annually to reflect the latest
collection performance data from the company's billing
system

The company’s bad debt wnite off policy has rematned
unchanged and has been consistently applied in the current
and the pnor years

The policy specifies that debt can only be wntten off if the
following cntena are met

* The debt 1s actually a legrimate charge against the
debtor If it 1s considered that part or all of the debt
1S incorrect or unsubstantiated, then such elements
are dealt with through the 1ssue of a credit note,
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2 Accounting policies continued

+  All availlable economic options for collection of the
debt have been pursued or that debt recovery
procedures have proved to be abortive or
uneconomic to continue Uneconomic
circumstances are those where, following the
application of debt recovery procedures

- the custoemer could not be traced without
Incurnng an unreasonable degree of
expenditure,

- the company has an insufficiently sound
case to justify further expenditure on debt
recovery procedures, or

- the hkelihood of recovering the debt i1s so
small in particular circumstances that
further expenses on debt recovery cannot
be justified

»  The customer does not have any assets or has
insufficient assets on which to levy execution,

+  The customer 1s bankrupt or has gone into
liquidation and no dividend has been, oris likely to
be, receved,

= The customer has died without leaving an estate or
has left an insufficient estate on which to levy
execution, and

+  The company has been unable to prove its case in
court

The above wnte-off rules apply prmanly to customers to
whom the company has ceased to provide a service Only in
exceptional circumstances i1s debt relating to continuing
customers considered for wnte off

a) Research and development

Expenditure on research and development projects is
charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it
1S Incurred

f) Leased assets

Where the company obtains assets under leasing
arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee (finance
leases}, the assets are accounted for as if they had been
purchased and the farr value of the mimmum lease
payments is shown as an obligation to the lessor Lease
payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and
a finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation
to the lessor and the finance charge being wntten off to the
profit and loss account over the penod of the lease in
proporticn to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s
charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the
lease penod

Where the company obtains assets under leasing
arrangements where substantially all the nsks and rewards
of ownership remamn with the lessor, these are classified as
operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating
leases are expensed on a straight ine basis over the term of
the lease

Where the company transfers substantally afl the nsks and
rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee {finance lease),
the assets are accounted for as if they had been sold, and

the net investment in the lease 15 shown as a receivable due
from the lessee Over the lease term, rentals are
apportioned between a reduction in the net investment in the
lease and finance lease income, such that finance lease
income produces a constant rate of retum on the net cash
investment in the lease Finance lease income 1s included
within interest recervable and similar iIncome

g} Goodwill

Goodwl represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
constderation over the fair value of the net assets acquired
Fair value adjustments based on provistonal estimates are
amended within one year of the acquisition, if required, with
a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill 1s amortised over its estmated useful life which s §
years Provision for any impairment 15 made as descnbed
below

h) Imparrment of goodwill and fixed assets

Impairments of goodwill and fixed assets are calculated as
the difference between the carrying value of the net assets
of ncome generating units, including where appropnate
investments and goodwill, and their recoverable amounts
Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of net
realisable value or esbmated value In use at the date the
impairment review 1S undertaken

Net realisable value represents the net amount that can be
generated through sale of assets Value in use represents
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted
on a pre-tax basis, using the estimated cost of capital of the
income generating unmit

Impairment reviews are carned out If there 1s some
indication that impairment may have occurred, or, where
otherwise required, to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets
are not carned above therr estimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised n the profit and loss account
and, where matenal, are disclosed as exceptional

1)  Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost iess
amounts wnitten off

)} Stock

Stock 15 stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost includes labour, matenals, transport and attributable
overheads

k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised where
+ There i1s a present obligation as a result of a past event,

« Itis probable that there will be an outflow of economic
benefits to settle this obligation, and

« Arehable estmate of this amount can be made

Self«nsurance provisions are recogmsed for claims notified
and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified,
based on advice from the parent company’s independent
Insurance advisers
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2 Accounting policies continued
Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the nsks speaific to the liability
where the effect s matenal

[} Pension costs

The company operates both defined benefit and defined
contnbution schemes

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to
operating profit are the current and past service costs and
gains and losses on settlements and curtallments They are
included as part of staff costs Past service costs are
recogmsed immediately in the profit and loss account if the
benefits have vested If the benefits have not vested
immediately the costs are recognised over the penod until
vesting occurs The interest costs and the expected retum
on assets I1s shown as a net amount of other finance costs or
credits adjacent to interest Actuanal gans and losses are
recognised immediately in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the
scheme held separately from those of the company, in
separate trustee administered funds Pension scheme
assets are measured at bid price and liabilities are
measured on an actuanal basts using the projected unit
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current
rate of return on a high qualty corperate bond of equivalent
currency and term to the scheme habilihes The actuanal
valuations are obtained at least tnennially and are updated
at each balance sheet date The resulting defined benefit
asset or hability, net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented
separately

Costs of defined contnbution pension schemes are charged
to the profit and loss account when they fall due

m) Current and deferred taxation

Current taxation 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid
{or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in respect of iming differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxahon and
accounting purposes only to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to
pay less tax in the future Deferred tax s measured on a
non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset 15 realised or the deferred tax hability 1s settied

n) Denvatives and other financial instruments
Debt instruments

The costs of debt instruments are charged to the profit and
loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on
the carrying amount Such costs include the cost of 1ssue
and any discount to face value ansing on 1ssue, or any
premium ansing on matunty

Derivative financial instruments

Financial instruments, in parbicular, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps, are used to manage the financial nsks
ansing from the business actvities of the company and the
financing of those activities

Energy swaps are used to manage the nsks of future
fluctuations in electncity pnces There 1s no trading activity in
financial instruments

Financial instruments are accounted for as follows

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the company's
exposure to movements i interest rates The interest
payable or recewvable on such swaps 1s accrued in the same
way as Interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Interest
rate swaps are not revalued to fair value

Currency swaps are used to hedge the company’s exposure

to movements in foreign exchange rates The interest

payable or receivable on such swaps 1s accrued in the same

way as interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Currency

swaps are not revalued to far value but are recogmsed in

the balance sheet at the difference between the swap rate '
and the spot rate at the balance sheet date and offset

against the associated hedged borrowings

Energy swaps are not revalued to far value
o) Share based payments

The company operates a number of equity settled, share
based compensation plans for employees utiising the
shares of the ultimate parent company The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant 1s
recogmised as an expense over the vesting pernod of the
grant

The farr value of employee services 15 determmed by

reference to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated

using an appropriate pncing model, excluding the impact of ,
any non-market vesting conditions The number of awards
that are expected to vest takes into account non-market
vesting conditions including, where appropniate, continuing
employment by the company The charge 1s adjusted to
reflect shares that do not vest as a result of faling to meet a
non-market condition

p} Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions arising during the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the
date of the transaction All profits and losses on exchange
ansing dunng the year are dealt with through the profit and
loss account

The following policies apply to the histoncal cost
financial statements only
q) Basis of preparation

The histoncal cost financral statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention

r} Tangibie fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets compnse
infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems being
mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water
storage reservoirs, dams, and sludge pipelines
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2 Accounting policies continued
Expenditure on infrastructure assels relating to increases in
capacity or enhancements of the network and on
maintaining the operating capabibty of the network in
accordance with the defined standards of service 15 treated
as an addition and included at cost after deducting grants
and contnbutions (see note 2t)

The depreciation charged for infrastructure assets s the
estimated, anticipated leve! of annual expenditure required
to mamntain the operating capabihity of the network less the
estmated, anticipated level of relevant annual grants and
contnbutions, calculated over a medium to long penod
{being 15 years) In accordance with RAG 1 05 the
difference between the infrastructure renewals charge and
infrastructure renewals expenditure 1s held as an accrual or
prepayment on the balance sheet This s a departure from
the provisions of FRS 15, which requires the infrastructure
renewals charge to be recorded as a depreciation charge
and deducted from the carrying amount of the asset, and
FRS 12 which does not allow provisions for future
maintenance

Other assets

Other assets are included at cost less accumutated
depreciation

Cost includes all costs which are directly atinbutable to
bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use
Directly attnbutable costs on self constructed assets include
an element of the ‘overhead burden’, which 1s the cost of
overheads which would not have been incurred in the
absence of capital works Directly attnbutable costs on self
constructed assets are capitalised up to the point where the
asset 1s capable of operating in the manner intended by
management

Finance costs are not capitalised

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated until commissioned Other
assets are depreciated on a straight ine basis over theirr
eshmated economic ives, which are principally as follows

Years
Buildings 30- 80
Fixed plant and equipment 20- 40

Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 2 - 15

s} Grants and contributions

Grants and contnbutions received in respect of non
infrastructure assets are treated as deferred income and are
recognised in the profit and loss account over the useful
economig life of those assels

In accordance with industry practice, grants and
contnbutions relating to infrastructure assets have been
deducted from the cost of fixed assets

Those grants and contnbutions relating to the maintenance
of the operating capability of the infrastructure network are
taken intc account in determining the depreciation charged
for infrastructure assets

The following policies apply to the current cost financial
statements only

t) Basis of preparation

These accounts have been prepared for the Appointed
Business in accordance with guidance 1ssue by the WSRA
for modified real term financial statements suitable for
regulation in the water industry They measure profitability
on the basis of real financial capital maintenance, in the
context of assets which are valued at their current cost value
to the business, with the exception of speciahsed operational
and infrastructure assets

The accounting policies used are the same as those apphed
in the histonical cost accounts except where set out below

u} Tangible fixed assets

Assets In operational use are valued at the replacement cost
of their operating capability To the extent that the regulatory
regime does not allow such assets to earn a return high
enough to justfy that value, this represents a modification of
the value to the business pnrciple Also, no provision 1S
made for the possible funding of future replacements of
assets by contnbutions from third parties and, to the extent
that some of the tangible fixed assets would on replacement
be so funded, replacement cost again differs from value to
the business Redundant assets are valued at their
recoverable amounis

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of existing assets
as at 31 March 2008 was undertaken dunng 2008/09 and
the adjustments to asset values as a result of that exercise
were included within tangible fixed assets In the intervening
years, between AMP surveys, values are restated to take
account of changes in the general leve! of inflation, as
measured by changes in Retaill Prnice Index (RP!), and any
other significant changes in asset records identified dunng
the year

1) Non infrastructure assets
Speciahsed operational assets

The gross replacement cost of speciaiised operational
assets has been denved using the latest cost information
provided by the AMP

The unamortsed portion of third party contnbutions received
15 deducted in arnving at net operating assets, as descnbed
in note 1t)

Non-specialised operational assets

Non-specialised operational assets are valued on the basis
of open market value for existing use at 31 March 1991 and
have been expressed in current terms by adjusting for
movements i property values

i1) Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage
reservorrs, dams and sludge pipelines are valued at
replacement cost, determined principally on the basis of unit
cost data provided by the AMP

m) Other assets

All other assets are valued on the basis of data provided by
the AMP
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2 Accounting policies continued
v) Surplus land

Surplus land was valued at the current market value for the
purposes of the AMP Any proceeds on disposal to be
passed onto customers will be taken into account, in
accordance with the requirements contained in Condition B
of the Instruments of Appointment as Water and Sewerage
Undertakers

v) Grants and other third party contrnibutions

Grants, infrastructure and other third party contnbutions
received since 31 March 19980 are carried forward to the
extent that any balance has not been credited to revenue
The balance carned forward 1s restated for the change in
RPI for the year and treated as a reduction to fixed assets

w} Real financial capital maintenance adjustments

These adjustments are made to historical cost operating
profit in order to arnve at profit after the maintenance of
financial capital in real terms

Working capital adjustment — this 1s calculated by applying
the change in RPI over the year to the opening total of trade
debtors and stock, less trade creditors

Financing adjustment — this 1s calculated by applying the
change in RPI over the year to the opening balance of net
finance, which compnses all assets and Yiabihbes in the
balance sheet apart from those included in working capital

3 Directors’ Remuneration

and excluding fixed assets, deferred taxation provision,
index hinked debt and dwidends payable

x) Transferred assets

Assets transferred to the company include assets
transferred at 1 October 2011 under the Pnvate Drans and
Sewers Transfer Regulations {(June 2011} These are
included in fixed assets at their Modern Equivalent Asset
value with a corresponding credit to third party contnbutions

y) Accounting separation

The tables presenting the analysis of operating costs and
fixed assets (the ‘accounting separation’ tables, as
descnbed in note 4 and 5) have been prepared In
accordance with our Accounting Separation Methodology
Statement which can be found at

www sevemtrentwater co uk The methodology statement
explains the bases for allocations of costs and assets and
has been updated for changes to the requirements in the
year There have otherwise been no major changes
Wherever possible, direct costs and assets have been
directly attnbuted to business units Where this 1s not
possible, appropnate cost allocations have been applied as
descnbed in the methodology

Information regarding Directors’ Remuneration can be found on page [xx] of the Severn Trent Water Limited Annual Report

and Accounts 2014

4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

a) Reconcihiation of current cost turnover to actual outturn per Final Determimation (FD)

2014

£m

Final Determination {appointed only) 14118
Impact of higher/{lower) nflaton 937
Final Determination adjusted for inflation movement 1,506 6
Optants 09
New Properties (92}
Demolitions {18}
Consumption changes - commercial 113
Consumption changes - domestic 153
1,522 0

Other 26
Actual outturn (appomnted only) 1,524 6

Actual income for year ended 31 March 2014 15 £112 8m more than allowed for In the final determination Of this, £93 7m 15
dnven by higher RPI Higher consumption accounts for £26 6m The remaining (£7 5m) 1s accounted for by a combination of

optants, new properties, demolittons and other
other
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4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

b) Reconciliation of amounts billed and amounts recorded as historical cost turnover

2014
£m
Billed 1,5295
Movement in accrual 71
Total turnover (appointed and non-appointed) 1,536 6
¢) Analysis of operating costs
Water
Raw water Treated Water
Resources  distnbution Treatment  distnbution total
2014 £m £m £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 82 22 248 74 426
Income treated as negative expenditure (0 2) - - - {(02)
Service charges 110 - 03 - 13
Bulk supply imports 72 - 38 - 10
Other operating expenditure g8 16 48 1 857 145 2
Local authonty rates 48 16 201 176 441
Exceptional tems - - - - -
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 408 54 971 1107 2540
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 10 24 - 821 855
Current cost depreciation 88 46 508 54 2 118 4
Recharges to other business units - - - - -
Recharges from other business units - - - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits (G 1) {0 1) {0 8) {0 85) (15)
Amorhsation of ntangible assets - - - - -
Total capital maintenance excluding third party services 97 69 500 1358 2024
Third party services
Operating expenditure 37 - 11 08 586
Infrastructure renewals charge - - - -
Current cost depreciation 02 - 05 - 07
Total operating costs 544 123 1487 247 3 4627
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4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs
c) Analysis of operating costs continued
Sewerape
Sewage Sewage Sludge Sludge Sewerage
collection treatment treatment disposal total
2014 £m £im £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 83 219 (0 8) - 204
Income treated as negative expenditure - (53 (5 3) - (10 6)
Service charges as 55 - - 90
Other operating expenditure 416 682 404 134 1636
Local authonty rates 03 245 43 - 291
Exceptional items - - - - -
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 537 114 8 386 134 2205
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 493 - - - 493
Current cost depreciation 342 1250 268 06 186 6
Recharges to other business units - - - - -
Recharges from other business units - - - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits (1 3) 02) - - {(15)
Amertisation of intangible assets - - - - -
Total capital maintenance excluding third party services 822 124 8 268 06 2344
Third party services
Operating expenditure - - 18 - 18
Infrastructure renewals charge - - - -
Current cost depreciation - - - - -
Total operating costs 1359 2396 67 2 140 456 7
Wholesale Total
Sewerage Wholesale
Water Total Total total
2014 £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 426 294 720
Income treated as negative expenditure {02} (10 6) {10 8)
Service charges 113 90 203
Bulk supply imports 110 - 110
Other operating expenditure 1452 1636 3088
Local authonty rates 441 29 1 732
Exceptional items - - -
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 2540 2205 4745
Capital mamntenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 855 493 1348
Current cost depreciation 1184 186 6 3050
Recharges to other business units - - -
Recharges from other business units - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits {15) {15) (30)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - -
Total capital maintanance excluding third party services 2024 2344 4368
Third party services
Operating expenditure 56 18 74
Infrastructure renewals charge - - -
Current cost depreciation Q7 - 07
Total operating costs 4627 456 7 9194
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Notes to the current cost financial statements

4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs
Retoall
Non- Retaid
Household household total
2014 £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Customer services 343 23 366
Debt management 91 19 10
Doubtful debts 269 71 340
Meter reading 586 08 64
Services to developers - 02 02
Other operating expenditure 199 21 220
Local authonty rates 05 a1 06
Exceptional items - . .
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 96 3 145 1108
Third party services operating expenditure - - -
Total operating expenditure 963 145 108
Capital maintenance
Current cost depreciation 151 14 165
Amortisation of deferred credits {0 1) - 01)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - -
Total capital maintenance 150 14 164
Total operating costs 1113 159 127 2
Dabt written off 218 42 260
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5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service
Water
Raw water Treated
Resources distnbution Treatment distnbution

£m Em £m £m £m
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 4190 1229 1,746 9 1,884 0 4,182 8
Reclassification adjustment 03 04 (37 12 (18)
RPI adjustment 106 31 415 449 100 1
Disposals (6 3) (086) (15 9} (34 2) (57 0)
Additions 18 01 659 69 8 137 6
At 31 March 2014 4254 1259 1,8347 19757 4,361 7
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2013 286 4 738 994 4 1,184 1 2,5387
Reclasstfication adjustment (03) 02 (17 05 (13)
RPI adjustment 73 19 254 300 64 6
Disposals z9) (0 6) (15 8) (33 8) (53 1)
Charge for the year 90 46 £13 542 119 1
At 31 March 2014 2995 789 1,053 6 1,2350 2,668 0
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 1259 46 0 7811 7407 1,693 7
At 1 April 2013 1326 491 752 6 7099 1,644 1
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 1,060 1 13791 37 12,198 1 14,6410
RPIl adjustment 260 338 03 30156 3616
Additions 12 08 086 632 658
At 31 March 2014 1,087 3 1,413 7 46 12,562 8 15,068 4

Page 118 of 126




Notes to the current cost financial statements

5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service continued
Sewerage
Sewage Sewage Sludge Sludge
collection treatment freatment disposal

£m £m £m £m £Em
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 9636 41516 7050 56 58258
Reclassification adjustment (6 0) 36 67 16 59
RP! adjustment 237 960 203 02 140 2
Disposals 91) (27 8) (10 1) (10 {48 0)
Additions 44 1 1425 64 1 01 250 8
At 31 March 2014 1,016 3 4,3659 786 0 65 61747
Depraciation
At 1 April 2013 865 9 2,206 3 418 5 40 3,194 7
Reclassification adjustment {50) 36 39 09 34
RPI adjustment 146 551 123 01 821
Disposals (8 8) (27 7) (98) (10) (47 3)
Charge for the year 342 1250 268 086 186 6
At 31 March 2014 6009 2,362 3 451 7 46 341985
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 4154 2,003 6 3343 19 2,7552
At 1 Apnl 2013 3977 1,945 3 286 5 186 26311
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Aprl 2013 53,3420 16 - - 53,353 6
RPI adjustrnent 1,308 6 01 - - 1,308 7
Disposals - - - - -
Additions 539 21 - - 56 0
At 31 March 2014 54,704 5 138 - - 54,7183
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Wholesale
Total
Sewerage Wholesale
Water Total Total Total
£m £m £m
Non-infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 4,1828 58258 10,008 6
Reclassification adjustment {(18) 59 41
RPI adjustment 1001 1402 240 3
Disposals (57 0) (48 0) {105 0)
Addibons 137 6 2508 3884
At 31 March 2014 4,361 7 61747 10,536 4
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2013 256387 31947 57334
Reclassification adjustment {13} 34 21
RPI adjustment 64 6 821 1467
Disposals (53 1) (47 3) {100 4)
Charge for the year 1191 186 6 3057
At 31 March 2014 2,668 0 34195 6,087 5
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 1,693 7 27552 44489
At 1 April 2013 1,644 1 26311 42752
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 146410 53,3536 67,994 6
RPI adjustment 3616 1,308 7 1,6703
Disposals - - -
Additions 65 8 560 121 8
At 31 March 2014 15,0684 54,718 3 69,786 7
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5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service continued
Retail
Non-
Househeld household Total
£m £m £m
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apn! 2013 2627 244 2871
Reclagsification adjustment {38) (03) (41)
RPI adjustment 65 04 69
Disposals (26 2) (2 8) {29 0)
Additions 34 04 38
At 31 March 2014 242 6 221 2647
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2013 176 8 158 192 6
Reclassification adjustment {19) 02 (2 1)
RPI adjustment 47 03 50
Disposals (26 0) (28) {28 8}
Charge for the year 151 14 16 5
At 31 March 2014 1687 145 183 2
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 7389 76 815
At 1 Apni 2013 859 86 945
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6 Analysis of capital expenditure, grants and land sales
2014 2013
Grants & Grants &
Gross  contributions Net Gross contnbutions Net
£m £m £m £m £rm £
Capital expenditure - water
Base
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (IRE) 977 (8 9) 888 105 4 (75) 97 9
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNI) 1013 (29) 984 98 3 (33) 950
Enhancements - -
Infrastructure enhancements 658 (15 5) 503 507 {157) 350
Non-infrastructure enhancements 379 - 379 323 (04) 319
Total capital expenditure - water 3027 (273) 2754 2867 (269) 2598
Grants and contributions - water
Developer contnbutions (117) (110
Infrastructure charge receipts - new connections {6 6) (60)
Other contributions (9 0) 99
Total grants and contributions - water {27 3) (26 9)
Capital expenditure - sewerage
Base
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (IRE) 54 7 (32 515 511 (13 498
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNI) 1839 - 1839 1516 1) 16156
Enhancements
Infrastructure enhancements 3rs {8 0) 295 349 59 290
Non-infrastructure enhancements 590 {0 1) 589 64 2 22) 620
Large projects capex
Infrastructure enhancements - - - - -
Non-infrastructure enhancements - - - - -
Total capital expenditure - sewerage 3351 {(113) 3238 3018 (95) 2923
Grants and contributions - sewerage
Developer contnbutions {11) a7
Infrastructure charge receipts - new connections {70) (64)
Other contnbutions {3 2) 14
Total grants and contnbutions - sewerage {11 3) (95)
Total capital expenditure - water and sewerage 6378 (388) 5992 588 5 (364) 5521
Land sales - Proceeds from disposals of protected land 101 156
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7 Working capital

RESTATED
2014 2013
£m £m
Stock 64 61
Trade debtors
Measured household 455 477
Unmeasured household 740 785
Measured non-household 218 217
UUnmeasured non-household 06 05
Other 66 27
Measured income accrual 174 0 1658
Prepayments and other debtors 60 2 702
Interco Drs - -
Trade creditors {15 6) (15 5)
Deferred income - customer advance receipts {138 0) (127 0)
Capital creditors and accrnuals {41 4) (337)
Accruals and other creditors {148 8) (156 4)
Working capital 453 606
Total revenue outstanding - household 2182 2196
- non-household 325 293
There has been no significant movement in our total gross debt outstanding (0 4%)
8 Reconciliation of appointed business current cost operating
profit to net cash inflow from operating activities
2014 2013
£m f£m
Current cost operating profit 477 8 4731
Working capitat adjustment 55 64
Movement in working capital 76 (30 7)
Recelpts from other income 18 21
Current cost depreciation after amortisation of deferred income 3191 31249
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (5 3) (10 3)
infrastructure renewals charge 1348 1352
Other non-cash profit and loss items (38 1) .
Net cash inflow from operating actvities 903 2 888 7
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9 Analysis of net debt
Fixed Floating Index
mnterest rate  interest rate inked Total
£m £m £m £m
Bank Loans 1500 3000 106 2 555 2
Loans due from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - (107 0) - (107 0)
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 2,6267 3181 1,056 6 4,001 4
Finance Lease receivables (101 3) - - (101 3}
Finance Lease payables 4120 1057 - 5177
Total net borrowings 3,0874 6168 1,1618 4,866 0
fmpact of interest rate swaps entered into by the company 366 4 {366 4) - -
Total borrowings 3,453 8 2504 1,161 8 4,866 0
Total borrowings 4,866 0
Overdraft {6 7)
Short term deposits {13 1}
Net Debt 4,846 2
Regulatory capital value 76176
Gearing 63 6%
Full year equivalent nominal interest cost 187 1 27 517 2415
Full year equivalent cash interest payment 1871 27 221 2119
Indicative interest rates
Indicative weighted average nomina! interest rate 5 4% 1 1% 4 5% 4 9%
Indicative weighted average cash mterest rate 5 4% 11% 19% 4 3%
Weighted average years to matunty 100 19 354 150

The Severn Trent Water Regulatory Accounts have been prepared on a single company basis for 2013/14 (consistent with
the pnor year) Up to and ncluding 2011/12, we prepared regulatory accounts based on the Severn Trent Water
consolidated group The table below sets out a reconciliation between net debt on a single company basis and net debt on a

consolidated basis, as well as the resultant effect on geanng

fm
Savern Trent Water Limited net debt as at 31 March 2014 4,846 2
Intra group loans and leases -380 8
Net debt held in STW subsidianes 06
Severn Trent Water Limited net debt - consolidated basis 4,464 8
Year end RCV 76176
Geanng based on net debt on consoldated basis 58 6%
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited

Year ended 31 March 2014

Information in respect of transactions during the year with any other business or activity of the
appointee or any associated company continued

a) Borrowings or sums lent

Sums borrowed and repaid by the appointee dunng the year from associated companies were

Pnncipal
amounts Repayment dates. Interest rates
fm %
East Worcester Water Limited Borrowed 139 May 2013 - July 2014 3 Month LIBID
East Worcester Water Limited Repaid 23 October 2013 3 Month LiBID
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Borrowed 85 March 2014 00475
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Repaid 06 Apnl 2013 - January 2014 00475
Severn Trent Plc Borrowed 1120 September 2013 - March 2014 LIBOR + 0 6%
Severn Trent Plc Repaid 46 0 October 2013 - March 2014 LIBOR + 0 6%
Severn Trent Uhlittes Finance Plc Repaid 002 January 2014 3 Month LIBID

b) Diwvidends

The company's dividend policy 1s to declare dvidends which are consistent with the company's regulatory obligations and at
a level which 1s decided each year afler consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, market
expectations, actual and potential efficiencies, future cash flow requirements and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year as the impact of factors changes The ordinary dividend declared and
paid by the company in 2013/14 amounted to £340 0 milion (2013 £72 0 million), being 34 Op per share {2013 7 2p per

share)
c) Transfer of assets/liabilities

d) Supply of services

Services supplied by the appointee to associated compames

Nature of transactions Company Terms £m
Service charges in respect of payroll. legal, transport and other Varous Cost 08
Water, tankering, reception, treatment and disposal of waste Various Market rent 05
Sale of crops Severn Trent Green Power Ltd  Cost c9
Management charge Severn Trent Plc Cost 61
83

Services supplied to the appointee by assooated companies

Services supplied to the appointee

Other
market Mo

Company Turnovar Nature of transactions Competitive leting testing market Total
m £m £m £m

Derwent Insurance Ltd 79 Insurance services - 61 - 61

Supply of matenals and other

Severn Trent Services Lid 59 engineenng services 14 - R 14
Severn Trent Green Power Ltd 32 Supply of Electncity - 12 - 12
Severn Trent Plc (mgmt charge) _ Pass through costs R R 12 12
170 14 73 12 99

e) Omussion nights
None

f) Waivers

None

g) Guarantees
None
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited

Year ended 31 March 2014

Analysis of properties

2014 2013

Water Sewerage Water Sewerage
Number of properties ("000s)
Households billed 3,1384 3,58023 31268 3.5638
Non-households billed 1828 197 8 1835 2000
Household voids 1326 149 6 1247 1541
Non-household voids 299 502 287 419
Properties served by new appotntee in supply area as at 1 Apnl 2009 80 80 60 60
Per capita consumption {excluding supply pipe leakage) I/h/d
Unmeasured household 1383 1209
Measured household 1126 104 6
Volume (Ml/d)
Bulk supply export 552 - 592 -
Bulk supply import 3516 - 3700 -
Distnbution input 1,817 9 1,766 3
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